
For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

AGENDA 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

August 3
rd

 2011 

2:00 p.m. 

 

 

  1-CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 

   2-REPORTS 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

   3-PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 (5 minutes each) 

 

  4-CONSENT AGENDA 
TAB Mc  Minutes of July 6

th
, 2011 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors   

TAB N  Minutes of July 20
th

, 2011 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

TAB O  FY12 Budget Supplement for Park and Recreation Insurance Claim – Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

TAB P  FY12 Supplemental Appropriation for additional Victim/Witness funding awarded – Crystal Besecker,  

Budget Analyst 

TAB Q  FY12 Supplemental Appropriation for Families Learning Together Grant and Teacher Evaluation Pilot  

Funding – Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

TAB R  FY12 Budget Supplement for Social Services Insurance Claim – Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

TAB S  FY13 Budget Calendar – Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

TAB T  Resolution In Support of Restoration of State Funding for Aid to Localities – Jay Scudder, County  

Administrator 

TAB U  FY Budget Transfer to County Attorney – Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

    5-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

TAB V  Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

 

   6-PRESENTATIONS (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 

TAB W  Provision of Pound Services – Gracie Roberson, Fluvanna SPCA Treasurer 

Self-Insured Medical Plan with Gateway Health Alliance – Dan Farmer, MBA, PHR, CRS, Director of  

Marketing and Sales  

 

   7-ACTION MATTERS 

TAB XYZ Authorization to Self-Insure Medical Plan – Barbara Wall-Magee, Human Resources Manager 

TAB A  FSPCA Contract – Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

TAB B  Authorization to Writing Off Uncollectible Water Account Balances – Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

TAB C  Authorization to Fund the Line of Duty Act through VACO and Opting Out of VRS – Renee Hoover,  

Finance Director  

TAB D  DHCD Planning Grant Administration – Pat Groot, Grants Administrator 

TAB E  FY11 to FY12 Carryover requests – Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

  Board, Commissions and Committees – Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

TAB F   Economic Development Authority – two positions 

TAB G   Youth Advisory Council 

 

  8-OLD BUSINESS 

 

  9-NEW BUSINESS 

 

RECESS – DINNER BREAK 

 



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

RECONVENE @ 7:00pm 

 

   10-PUBLIC HEARING  

TAB H Proposed Lease of Real Property to US Cellular Wireless – Water Tower Lease Agreement between 

the Board of  Supervisors of Fluvanna County, Virginia and USCOC of Virginia RSA #3, Inc. for the 

lease of certain Land Space, Tower Space on the existing Fork Union Sanitary District water tower, and 

Rights of Way, for the location and operation of radio communications equipment, antennas and 

appurtenances at 2984 James Madison Highway, Bremo Bluff, Virginia 23022, shown on the Tax Map of 

the County of Fluvanna as Tax Map Parcel 51-A-78.  The lease has an initial term of five (5) years and 

shall be automatically extended for four (4) additional five (5) year terms unless terminated by the lessee 

in accordance with the terms of the lease.  The lease provides that the lessee will construct a new platform 

and corral on the water tower, in addition to the existing platform and corral, and contains other terms and 

provisions as more fully set forth in the lease.   

 

TAB I  Proposed Lease of Real Property to Verizon Wireless – Water Tower Lease Agreement between the  

Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County, Virginia and Cellco Partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless for 

the lease of certain Land Space, Tower Space on the existing Fork Union Sanitary District water tower, 

and Rights of Way, for the location and operation of radio communications equipment, antennas and 

appurtenances at 2984 James Madison Highway, Bremo Bluff, Virginia 23022, shown on the Tax Map of 

the County of Fluvanna as Tax Map Parcel 51-A-78.  The lease has an initial term of five (5) years and 

shall be automatically extended for four (4) additional five (5) year terms unless terminated by the lessee 

in accordance with the terms of the lease.  The lease contains other terms and provisions as more fully set 

forth in the lease.   

   

11-PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (5 minutes each) 

 

12-CLOSED MEETING 

  Consultation with legal counsel to discuss potential litigation 

 

13-ADJOURN 

  

 

********** 
Pledge of Allegiance 

I pledge allegiance to the flag  

of the United States of America  

and to the Republic for which it stands,  

one nation, under God, indivisible, 

 with liberty and justice for all. 

********** 

ORDER 

 
1. It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The Chairman shall speak to points of order in 

preference to all other members. 

 

2. In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be challenged and no debate shall be allowed until after 

the Chairman declares that order has been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the disorder or the 

bringing of order; the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss the matter. 

 

3. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use abusive language, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons to use such tactics.  

The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of such breaches, however, the Board may vote to overrule both. 

 

4.    When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the building, or may order the  

       person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, order the person removed from the County property. 



 

 

MOTION: I move the regular meeting minutes of the Fluvanna County Board of 

Supervisors for Wednesday, July 6
th

, 2011 be adopted. 
 

 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  August 3
rd

, 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Adoption of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors regular meeting 

minutes. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  None 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

Staff:  Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Copy:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

Comments: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 1 

 

 

  FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

July 6
th

, 2011 

2:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice-Chairman  

    Joe Chesser 

    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker 

Chris S. Fairchild  

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

    Fred Payne, County Attorney 

Barbara Wall-Magee, Human Resources Manager 

    Darren K. Coffey, Director of Planning 

    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Gooch called the meeting of July 6

th
, 2011, to order at 2:00 p.m., in the Circuit 

Courtroom of the New Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia; and the Pledge of Allegiance was 

recited, after which, Chairman Gooch called for a moment of silence. 

 

REPORTS 

Ms. Karen Kilby, VDOT Programming & Investment Management Director, provided the board 

with an update on the following VDOT projects:  

 Rural Rustic Road Projects – resolutions will be presented to the Board on July 20
th

, 

2011 for Old Drivers Hill Road, Garden Lane, Martin Lane and Cannery Lane, to be rural 

rustic roads. 

 Traffic Study – for Route 15 is underway. 

 Turkeysag Project – LMOA has concerns with traffic configuration, looking at a 

December advertisement. 

 Intersection Rt 15 & Rt 53 Roundabout - $550,000.00 in Revenue Sharing Funds 

received for project. 

 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, reported on the following topics: 

 Water Committee – met with Aqua Virginia and discussed ways to get water and sewer to 

Zion Crossroads. 

 Trash on Roadways – this past month a cleanup was held and 1433 trash bags and other 

miscellaneous items were collected.  The litter grant was used to fund this. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 

 Tom Muir, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in regards to redistricting, please to 

what is best for the county. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 2 

 

 

 Jerry Passer, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in reference to the Capital 

Improvement Plan. 

 Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in reference to financial 

consequences. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the first round of public comments. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 

 MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved to approve the consent agenda with corrections to minutes, 

which consisted of: 

 Minutes of June 15
th

, 2011. 

 County Attorney Contract renewal.   

 Resolution Updating the Fluvanna County Pay and Classification Plan 

Mr. Fairchild seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 

Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  

None. 

 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

Renee Hoover, Finance Director, addressed the Board regarding the accounts payable.  

After some discussion the following motion was made: 

MOTION:  

Mr. Weaver moved that the Accounts Payable from May 25
th

, 2011, through June 

24
th

, 2011, and payroll for the month of May, 2011, in the amount of 

$1,156,530.35, be ratified.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a 

vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   

NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None.    

Fund 100 General Fund                    $ 513,749.20 

Fund 105 Social Services       32,508.59 

Fund 120 Recreation          2,011.73 

 Fund 202 Federal Grants          1,229.42  

Fund 302 Capital                  228,397.77 

 Fund 401 Debt              350.00 

Fund 502 Utility (Sewer)         3,702.43 

 Fund 505 Fork Union Sanitary District           8,514.67 

Payroll                               366,066.54 

Total                      $   1,156.530.35 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Ordinance that gives the Board of Supervisors the Authority to Pay a Monetary Bonus to County 

Officers and Employees – Mrs. Barbara Wall-Magee, Human Resources Manager, reviewed with 

the Board the reasons for this ordinance. 

Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing. 

 Jerry Passer, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in support of the bonus ordinance 

when the need is justified. 

 Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – addressed the Board opposed to the bonus ordinance. 

 Dennis Holder, Kent Store – addressed the Board opposed to the bonus ordinance. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 3 

 

 

 Elizabeth Franklin, Kents Store – addressed the Board opposed to the bonus ordinance. 

 Tom Payne, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in support of the bonus ordinance. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 

 

Discussion – Mr. Weaver and Mr. Fairchild expressed their concerns and opposition to this 

request.  Mr. Kenney, Mr. Gooch and Mr. Chesser shared their reasons for supporting for this 

request. 

MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance entitled 

“An Ordinance to Amend the Fluvanna County Code by the Addition in Chapter 

2 of Article 8, Section 2-8, Concerning Payment of Compensation of County 

Officers, Employees and Agents”.   Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried, 

with a vote of 4-2.  AYES:  Gooch, Chesser, Booker and Kenney.   NAYS:  

Weaver and Fairchild.  ABSENT:  None.    

 

Redistricting to Five Districts – To receive comments on the proposed ordinance amendment to 

Chapter 2, Article 2 of the Fluvanna County Code in Chapter 2, Article 2, Sections 2-2-3, 2-2-4, 

and 2-2-6 concerning reapportionment of election districts; creation of certain new districts; and 

the establishment of certain new precincts. 

Mr. Darren Coffey, Director of Planning, reviewed with the Board the five district map that 

was advertised for public hearing. 

Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing. 

 Jerry Passer, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

 Cliff Altschull, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

 Barry Bibb, Cunningham District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

 Adrian Miller, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

 Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

 Marvin Moss – Cunningham District – addressed the Board in support of a five district 

scenario. 

 Elizabeth Franklin, Columbia District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five 

district scenario. 

 Jerry Padget, Columbia District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

 Len Gardner, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in support of a five district scenario. 

 Bob Leapolt, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

 Frances Shutts, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in regards to not listening to the 

invective and doing what’s best for the county. 

 Tom Payne, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in support of a five district scenario. 

 Norma Hutner, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 4 

 

 

 Janice O’Malley, Fork Union District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five 

district scenario. 

 Dennis Holder, Kents Store – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Fred Payne, County Attorney, addressed the legal issues that were brought up during the 

public hearing.  After some extensive discussion the following motion was made: 

MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved that the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors approve the 

amended redistricting ordinance reapportioning its electoral districts consistent 

with its decennial redistricting mandate.  Further, move to forward these proposed 

changes to the County Attorney for prompt submission to the Department of 

Justice.   Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 4-2.  AYES:  

Gooch, Chesser, Booker and Kenney.   NAYS:  Weaver and Fairchild.  ABSENT:  

None.    

 

PRESENTATIONS: 

None 

 

ACTION MATTERS 
Reassessment of Real Property 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, addressed the Board in regards to advertising for 

Request for Proposals to conduct the general reassessment, starting no later than October 1, 

2011. 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved that the Board of Supervisors direct staff to advertise a 

Request for Proposals in order to conduct a reassessment of real property, to be 

effective January 1, 2013.   Mr. Weaver seconded.  The motion carried, with a 

vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker, Fairchild and Kenney.   

NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None.    

 

OLD BUSINESS 

None 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 Organizational Sign – Mrs. Booker inquired about the status of a sign for the County 

with all the organizational symbols.   

 Discussion – Mr. Kenney expressed his concern in regards to the current political tone of 

the County. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the second round of public comments.   

 Dennis Holder, Kents Store – addressed the Board in regards to what a county needs vs. 

wants. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the second segment of public 

comments. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 5 

 

 

EXTEND MEETING  
MOTION:  

Mr. Chesser moved to extend the Board of Supervisors meeting to 10:00 p.m..  

Mr. Weaver seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0. AYES: Booker, 

Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Weaver and Fairchild. NAYS: None. 

 

RECESS  
The Board recessed at 5:37 p.m. for dinner. 

 

RECONVENE  
The Board reconvened at 6:14 p.m. to begin the retreat. 

 

FIVE-YEAR FORECAST REVIEW 

Mr. Steve Jacobs, Managing Director of the Richmond office and Director of Consulting 

Services for Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates, reviewed with the Board the five-year forecast.  

The Board had an extensive discussion on the future budget and expenses.  A work session will 

be held on August 17
th

, 2011 at 3:00p.m., with Mr. Jacobs, to continue discussion of the 

Financial Forecast.  Staff was directed to present a list of mandated items for the Board to 

review, prior to the work session. 

 

REVIEW OF ESTABLISHED VISION & GOALS 
Mr. Steve Williams, TJPDC Executive Director, discussed with the Board the prior and future 

goals for the County.  The following topics were discussed: 

 Communications, Emergency Services 

 Economic Development  

 Work Force Development 

 Education 

 Keeping Tax Rate Affordable (finance & budgeting) 

 Future Needs 

 Affordable Housing 

 Key Infrastructure 

 Rural Preservation 

 

ADJOURN 

MOTION: 

At 9:05 p.m., Mr. Chesser moved to adjourn the meeting of Wednesday, July 6
th

, 

2011.  Mr. Weaver seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  

Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Booker, Weaver and Fairchild.   NAYS:  None.   

ABSENT: None     

 

 

 

        

John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 6 

 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

County of Fluvanna 

Palmyra, Virginia 

 

 

RESOLUTION  

UPDATING THE FLUVANNA COUNTY PAY AND CLASSIFICATION PLAN 

 

 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held on 

Wednesday, July 6
th

, 2011 in Palmyra, Virginia, the following action was taken: 

 
 

Present Vote 

John Y. Gooch, Chairman Yea 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice-Chairman Yea 

Mozell H. Booker Yea 

Joseph C. Chesser Yea 

Christopher S. Fairchild Yea 

Donald W. Weaver Yea 

 

 

 On a motion by Mrs. Booker seconded by Mr. Fairchild and voted in the affirmative, the 

following resolution was adopted: 

 

 WHEREAS, the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors maintains a pay and 

classification plan for employees of the County Administrator, Constitutional Officers, and 

Registrar; and, 

 

WHEREAS, staff has followed standard procedures for maintenance of the pay and 

classification plan involving annual performance appraisals, periodic public and private wage 

comparisons, and an annual review of the position classifications; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the County Budget has been adopted providing for the FY 2012 pay and 

Classification Plan to be identical to the FY 2009, 2010, & 2011 Pay and Classification Plans 

and with no Merit Increases or Cost of Living Adjustments for FY 2012; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Fluvanna County Board of 

Supervisors hereby adopts the Pay and Classification Plan effective July 1, 2011.  

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

John Y. Gooch, Chairman 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 7 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE BY THE ADDITION 

IN CHAPTER 2 OF AN ARTICLE 8, SECTION 2-8, CONCERNING PAYMENT OF 

COMPENSATION OF COUNTY OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, pursuant to Virginia 

Code Sections 15.2-1500 and -1508, that the County Code be, and it is hereby, amended, in 

Chapter 2, by the addition of an Article 8, Section 2-8, which is hereby enacted as follows:  

 

ARTICLE 8. Compensation of Employees, Officers, Agents 

 

Sec. 2-8. Compensation of county officers, employees and agents.  

 

Except as otherwise provided by law, all officers, employees and agents of the County 

shall receive as compensation for their services such sums as may be appropriated therefore in 

the annual budget as the same may be amended from time to time, in accordance with the terms 

of the pay plan as in effect or with the terms of any contract in the case of persons serving under 

contract with the County. In addition to such compensation, monetary bonuses to county officers 

and employees are authorized and may be paid, from time to time, as authorized by the Board of 

Supervisors. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 8 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE IN 

CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2, SECTIONS 2-2-3, 2-2-4, AND 2-2-6 CONCERNING 

REAPPORTIONMENT OF ELECTION DISTRICTS 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, as follows: 

 

(1)  That the County Code be, and it is hereby, amended and reenacted, in Chapter 2, Article 

2, Sections 2-2-3, 2-2-4, and 2-2-6, as follows: 

 
Article 2.  Election Districts. 

 

Sec.  2-2-1.  Created and established. 
 

Pursuant to authority contained in Title 24.2, Ch. 3, Article 2.1, Sections 24.2-304.1, ff., 

and Title 24.2, Ch. 3, Article 3, Sections 24.2-305, ff., of the Code of Virginia, the election 

districts and their respective polling places for the county are hereby created and established as 

set forth in this article.  (Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; 

Ord. 5-16-01) 

 

Sec.  2-2-2.  Magisterial districts unaffected by article; representation to be by 

   election district. 
 

The magisterial districts of the county, with boundary lines and names thereof 

respectively as constituted and known on the day before the ordinance from which this article 

derives took effect, shall remain the same, but representation on the governing body shall be by -

election districts described in this article.  (Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-

1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 5-16-01) 

  

Sec.  2-2-3.  Districts enumerated; populations and polling places; precincts.
1
 

 

(a) The election districts, with populations and polling places set forth, are as follows: 

 

Name  Population  Polling Place 

 

Palmyra  3467 5355  Palmyra Fire House
2
 

Columbia  3255 5187  Kents Store Agricultural  

                                                                       Recreation Center
3 

Fork Union  3204 4650  Fluvanna County Community Center 

Cunningham  3372 5229  Antioch Baptist Church
4
 

Rivanna  6749 5270  Lake Monticello Fire & Rescue  

                                                 
1 

For state law as to central absentee voter precinct, see Code of Va., § 24.2-712. 
2 

Ch
ange in 

Palmyra polling place was adopted 11-15-06; federal preclearance was obtained 1-29-

07. 
3 

Ch
ange in Columbia

 polling place was adopted 6-15-05; federal preclearance was obtained 9-2-05.
 

4
 Change in Cunningham polling place was adopted 7-18-07; federal preclearance was obtained 

9-5-07. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 9 

 

 

       Building 

       Lake Monticello Clubhouse 

 

(b) Precincts shall be known by their respective polling places and shall be coterminous with 

the respective electoral districts. , except that, for the Rivanna District, there shall be two 

precincts, as follows: 

 

(1) Lake Monticello Fire and Rescue Precinct shall be that portion of the Rivanna District 

southerly from a line running from the intersection of Jefferson Drive and South 

Bearwood Drive; thence along South Bearwood Drive in a northerly direction to the 

intersection of South Bearwood Drive and Kingswood Road; thence along 

Kingswood Road to its terminus and continuing in a direct line easterly to the center 

of Lake Monticello; thence along the center of Lake Monticello in an easterly 

direction to a direct line, the northerly extension of Chatham Lane; thence in a 

southerly direction along Chatham Lane to its intersection with Woodridge Road; 

thence along Woodridge Road in an easterly direction to its intersection with 

Jefferson Drive; thence in a westerly direction along Jefferson Drive to its 

intersection with Slice Road;  thence along Slice Road in an easterly direction to the 

intersection with State Route 600 (South Boston Road); 

 

(2) Lake Monticello Clubhouse Precinct shall be that portion of the Rivanna District 

northerly from the line described in the preceding subsection. 

 

(c) In addition to the foregoing precincts, there is hereby established a central absentee 

voting precinct, which shall be in the Historic Courthouse
5
, Palmyra, Virginia.  The 

central absentee voting precinct shall be used for all elections. 

 

(Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 1-18-95; Ord. 5-

16-01; Ord. 3-20-02; Ord. 11-15-06; Ord. 7-18-07; Ord. 2-18-09) 

 

Sec.  2-2-4.  District boundaries. 
 

The boundaries of the respective election districts are as set forth below: 

 

Palmyra Election District - Number 1. 

 Beginning at the intersection of the Rivanna River and the Albemarle County border and 

following the Rivanna River in a southeasterly direction until its intersection with the northerly 

border of Census Block 2034 to the intersection of Route 600 (South Boston Road), Fluvanna-

Albemarle County line and Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) and following Route 53 

(Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in an easterly direction to its intersection with Route 618 (Lake 

Monticello Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 618 (Lake Monticello Road) 

approximately 2400 feet to its intersection with the eastern property line of 557 Jefferson Drive 

(Tax Map Parcel 18A-5-235), thence in a southeasterly direction with the property line of 557 

Jefferson Drive (Tax Map Parcel 18A-5-235) to the intersection of Jefferson Drive and Lafayette 

                                                 
5 

Change in central absentee voting precinct was adopted 2-18-09; federal preclearance was 

obtained 5-5-09. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 10 

 

 

Drive,
6
 thence in an easterly direction with Jefferson Drive to its intersection with Slice Road, 

thence in an easterly direction with Slice Road to its intersection with Route 600 (South Boston 

Road) and following Route 600 (South Boston Road) in a southerly direction to its intersection 

with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), following Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in 

an easterly direction to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway), following 

Route 15 (James Madison Highway) in a northerly direction to its intersection with the northern 

edge of census block 1067, thence in an easterly direction with the northern edge of census block 

1067 to its intersection with Burke Creek, a tributary of the Rivanna River, and following Burke 

Creek in an easterly direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River, thence in a 

southeasterly direction with the Rivanna River to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison 

Highway) and following Route 15 (James Madison Highway) in a northerly direction to its 

intersection with Route 644 (Salem Church Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 

644 (Salem Church Road) to its intersection with Route 616 (Union Mills Road), thence in an 

easterly direction with Route 616 (Union Mills Road) to its intersection with Route 15 (James 

Madison Highway,
7
 thence in a northerly direction with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) to 

its intersection with Route 631 (Troy Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 631 (Troy 

Road) to its intersection with Wounded Knee Lane, thence in a northerly direction with Wounded 

Knee Lane to its intersection with Ghost Dance Lane and following Ghost Dance Lane in a 

northerly direction to its intersection with Route 631 (Troy Road), thence in a northerly direction 

with Route 631 (Troy Road) to its intersection with Route 250 (Richmond Road), thence in a 

westerly direction with Route 250 (Richmond Road) to its intersection with Prison Lane, thence 

in a southerly direction with Prison Lane to its intersection with census block 2059 and 

following census block 2059 to its intersection with Prison Lane, thence in a northerly direction 

with Prison Lane to its intersection with Route 250 (Richmond Road) and following Route 250 

(Richmond Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with Route 627 (Zion Road), thence 

in a northeasterly direction with Route 627 (Zion Road) to its intersection with Edd Ridge Lane, 

thence in a northerly direction with Edd Ridge Lane to its intersection with Cedar Ridge Road, 

thence in a northerly direction with Cedar Ridge Road to its intersection with the Fluvanna-

Louisa County line, thence in a westerly direction following with the Fluvanna-Louisa County 

line, then in a southerly direction following to its intersection with the Fluvanna-Albemarle 

County line, thence in a southerly direction with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line  to its 

intersection with the Rivanna River, Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), the point of 

beginning. 

 

                                                 
6
 Editor’s Note – the original contained an incorrect statement of the written description of the 

boundaries of the Palmyra Election District regarding a portion of the boundary between the 

Palmyra and Rivanna Election Districts.  The editor has deleted the following to correct this 

clerical error: “thence in a southeasterly direction with Lafayette Drive to its intersection with 

Northwood Road, thence in a southerly direction with Northwood Road to its intersection with 

Jefferson Drive”. 
7
 Editor’s Note – the original omitted a portion of the boundary between the Palmyra and 

Columbia Election Districts from the written description of the boundaries of the Palmyra 

Election District.  The editor has inserted the following to correct this clerical error: “Route 644 

(Salem Church Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 644 (Salem Church Road) to its 

intersection with Route 616 (Union Mills Road), thence in an easterly direction with Route 616 

(Union Mills Road) to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway)”. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 11 

 

 

Columbia Election District - Number 2. 

 Beginning at the intersection of Route 15 (James Madison Highway) and Route 601 

(Courthouse Road) near Palmyra and following Route 15 (James Madison Highway) in a 

northerly direction to its intersection with Route 644 (Salem Church Road), thence in a northerly 

direction with Route 644 (Salem Church Road) to its intersection with Route 616 (Union Mills 

Road), thence in an easterly direction with Route 616 (Union Mills Road) to its intersection with 

Route 15 (James Madison Highway), thence in a northerly direction with Route 15 (James 

Madison Highway) to its intersection with Route 631 (Troy Road), thence in a westerly direction 

with Route 631 (Troy Road) to its intersection with Wounded Knee Lane, thence in a northerly 

direction with Wounded Knee Lane to its intersection with Ghost Dance Lane and following 

Ghost Dance Lane in a northerly direction to its intersection with Route 631 (Troy Road), thence 

in a northerly direction with Route 631 (Troy Road) to its intersection with Route 250 (Richmond 

Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 250 (Richmond Road) to its intersection with 

Prison Lane, thence in a southerly direction with Prison Lane to its intersection with census 

block 2059 and following census block 2059 to its intersection with Prison Lane, thence in a 

northerly direction with Prison Lane to its intersection with Route 250 (Richmond Road), thence 

in a westerly direction with Route 250 (Richmond Road) to its intersection with Route 627 (Zion 

Road), thence in a northeasterly direction with Route 627 (Zion Road) to its intersection with 

Edd Ridge Lane and following Edd Ridge Lane in a northerly direction to its intersection with 

Cedar Ridge Road, thence in a northerly direction with Cedar Ridge Road to its intersection with 

the Fluvanna-Louisa County line ; thence in an and following the Fluvanna-Louisa County line 

in an easterly direction with the Fluvanna-Louisa line to its intersection with the Fluvanna-

Goochland County line, thence in a southerly direction with the Fluvanna-Goochland County 

line to its intersection with the James River, on the east side of the Town of Columbia; and 

following the James River in a westerly direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River, 

thence up the Rivanna River to U. S. Route 15 (James Madison Highway); thence in a northerly 

direction with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) to its intersection with the Fluvanna-Louisa 

County line, thence in a northwesterly direction with the Rivanna River for approximately one 

and one-half miles to a northeasterly bend in the Rivanna River, thence around the bend and 

continuing in a northeasterly direction for approximately 4,200 feet to the intersection with the 

boundary line dividing Tax Map Parcel 54-11-Y and Tax Map Parcel 54-11-X, also known as the 

northern edge of the Columbia growth area as set forth in the Fluvanna County Comprehensive 

Plan Future Land Use Map, thence in a southeasterly direction with the boundary line dividing 

Tax Map Parcel 54-11-Y and Tax Map Parcel 54-11-X to its intersection with the power line 

right-of-way, thence in a northeasterly direction with the power line right-of-way to its 

intersection with Route 659 (Stage Junction Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 

659 (Stage Junction Road) to its intersection with Route 608 (Wilmington Road), thence in a 

westerly direction with Route 608 (Wilmington Road) to its intersection with Route 601 

(Courthouse Road) and following Route 601 (Courthouse Road) in a westerly direction to its 

intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) near Palmyra, the point of beginning. 

 

Fork Union Election District - Number 3. 

Beginning at the common corner of the counties of Fluvanna, Cumberland and 

Goochland east to the Town of Columbia; thence up the James River to its intersection with 

Rockfish Creek; thence up Rockfish Creek to its intersection with the southerly border of Census 

Block 2003; thence along the southerly border of Census Block 2003 in a westerly direction to 

its intersection with State Route 646 (Hardware Road); thence in a northerly direction along 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 12 

 

 

Route 646 (Hardware Road) to its intersection with State Route 6 (West River Road); thence in a 

northeasterly direction along Route 6 (West River Road) to its intersection with the westerly 

boundary of Census Block 2002; thence with the westerly boundary of Census Block 2002 in a 

southerly direction to its intersection with State Route 697 (Cunningham Road); thence along 

Route 697 (Cunningham Road) in an easterly direction to its intersection with State Route 640 

(Cunningham Road); thence along Route 640 (Cunningham Road) in an easterly direction to its 

intersection with State Route 6 (West River Road); thence along Route 6 (West River Road) in 

an easterly direction to its intersection with State Route 640 (Haden Martin Road); thence in a 

northerly direction with State Route 640 (Haden Martin Road) to its intersection with U. S. 

Route 15 (James Madison Highway); Beginning at the intersection of Route 15 (James Madison 

Highway) and the Rivanna River near Palmyra and following the Rivanna River in a 

northwesterly direction to its intersection with Burke Creek near Pleasant Grove, thence in a 

westerly direction with Burke Creek to its intersection with the northern edge of census block 

1067 and following the northern edge of census block 1067 in a westerly direction to its 

intersection with Route 600 (South Boston Road), thence in a southerly direction with Route 600 

(South Boston Road) to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), thence in an 

easterly direction with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) to its intersection with Route 619 

(Ruritan Lake Road) and following Route 619 (Ruritan Lake Road) in a westerly direction to its 

intersection with the Cunningham Creek, thence in a westerly direction with Cunningham Creek 

to its intersection with the power line right-of-way and following the power line right-of-way in a 

southeasterly direction to its intersection with Route 693 (Bell Farms Lane), thence in a 

southwesterly direction with Route 693 (Bells Farm Lane) to its intersection with Route 639 

(Long Acre Road) and following Route 639 (Long Acre Road) in a southeasterly direction to its 

intersection with Haislip Lane, thence in a southwesterly direction with Haislip Lane to its 

intersection with Route 620 (Rolling Road) and following Route 620 (Rolling Road)in a westerly 

direction to its intersection with Route 669 (Kidds Dairy Road), thence in a southerly direction 

with Route 669 (Kidds Dairy Road) to its intersection with Windy Ridge Lane and following 

Windy Ridge Lane in a southerly direction to its intersection with the Hardware River, thence in 

a southerly direction with the Hardware River thence in a northerly direction with U.S. Route 15 

(James Madison Highway) to its intersection with the Rivanna River; thence in an easterly 

direction with the Rivanna River to its intersection with the James River and following the James 

River in an easterly direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River, thence in a northwesterly 

direction with the Rivanna River for approximately one and one-half miles to a northeasterly 

bend in the Rivanna River, thence around the bend and continuing in a northeasterly direction 

for approximately 4,200 feet to the intersection with the boundary line dividing Tax Map Parcel 

54-11-Y and Tax Map Parcel 54-11-X, also known as the northern edge of the Columbia growth 

area as set forth in the Fluvanna County Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, thence in a 

southeasterly direction with the boundary line dividing Tax Map Parcel 54-11-Y and Tax Map 

Parcel 54-11-X to its intersection with the power line right-of-way, thence in a northeasterly 

direction with the power line right-of-way to its intersection with Route 659 (Stage Junction 

Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 659 (Stage Junction Road) to its intersection 

with Route 608 (Wilmington Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 608 (Wilmington 

Road) to its intersection with Route 601 (Courthouse Road), thence in a westerly direction with 

Route 601 (Courthouse Road) to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) and 

following Route 15 (James Madison Highway) in a southerly direction to its intersection with the 

Rivanna River near Palmyra, ; thence down the James River, to the point of beginning. 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 13 

 

 

Cunningham Election District - Number 4. 

Beginning at the intersection of the James River and Rockfish Creek; thence up the James 

River to its intersection with the intersection of the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line at 

Scottsville; thence in a northerly direction with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line to its 

intersection with and Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) and following Route 53 (Thomas 

Jefferson Parkway) in an easterly direction to its intersection with Boston Creek; thence along 

Boston Creek in an easterly direction to its intersection with Jefferson Drive; thence along 

Jefferson Drive in a southerly direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along 

Turkeysag Trail in a southerly direction to its intersection with Windy Way; thence along Windy 

Way in a northerly direction to its intersection with Bridlewood Drive; thence along Bridlewood 

Drive in a southerly direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along Turkeysag 

Trail in a westerly direction to its intersection with Route 53(Thomas Jefferson Parkway); thence 

along Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in an easterly direction to its intersection with U. S. 

Route 15 (James Madison Highway); thence in a southerly direction with Route 15 (James 

Madison Highway) to its intersection with State Route 640 (Haden Martin Road); thence in a 

southerly direction with Route 640 (Haden Martin Road) to its intersection with State Route 6 

(West River Road); thence along Route 6 (West River Road) in a westerly direction to its 

intersection with State Route 640 (Cunningham Road); thence along Route 640 (Cunningham 

Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with State Route 697 (Cunningham Road); thence 

along Route 697(Cunningham Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with the westerly 

boundary of Census Block 2002; thence along the westerly boundary of Census Block 2002 in a 

northerly direction to its intersection with State Route 6 (West River Road); thence along Route 

6 (West River Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with State Route 646 (Hardware 

Road); thence along Route 646 (Hardware Road) in a southerly direction to its intersection with 

Census Block 2003; thence along the southerly boundary of Census Block 2003 in an easterly 

direction to its intersection with Rockfish Creek; thence down Rockfish Creek to its intersection 

with the James River, Route 618 (Lake Monticello Road), thence in a northerly direction with 

Route 618 (Lake Monticello Road) approximately 2,400 feet to its intersection with the eastern 

property line of 557 Jefferson Drive (Tax Map Parcel 18A-5-235), thence in a southeasterly 

direction with the eastern property line of 557 Jefferson Drive (Tax Map Parcel 18A-5-235) to 

the intersection of Jefferson Drive and Lafayette Drive, thence in a southeasterly direction with 

Lafayette Drive to its intersection with Northwood Road, thence in a southerly direction with 

Northwood Road to its intersection with Jefferson Drive, thence in an easterly direction with 

Jefferson Drive to its intersection with Slice Road, thence in an easterly direction with Slice 

Road to its intersection with Route 600 (South Boston Road) and following Route 600 (South 

Boston Road) in a southerly direction its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson 

Parkway), thence in an easterly direction with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) to its 

intersection with Route 619 (Ruritan Lake Road) and following Route 619 (Ruritan Lake Road) 

in a westerly direction to its intersection with Cunningham Creek, thence in a westerly direction 

with Cunningham Creek to its intersection with the power line right-of-way and following the 

power line right-of-way in a southeasterly direction to its intersection with Route 693 (Bell 

Farms Lane), thence in a westerly direction with Route 693 (Bell Farms Lane) to its intersection 

with Route 639 (Long Acre Road) and following Route 639 (Long Acre Road) in a southerly 

direction to its intersection with Haislip Lane, thence in a southwesterly direction with Haislip 

Lane to its intersection with Route 620 (Rolling Road) and following Route 620 (Rolling Road) 

in a westerly direction to its intersection with Route 669 (Kidds Dairy Road), thence in a 

southerly direction along Route 669 (Kidds Dairy Road) to its intersection with Windy Ridge 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 14 

 

 

Lane and following Windy Ridge Lane in a southerly direction to its intersection with the 

Hardware River, thence in a southerly direction with the Hardware River to its intersection with 

the James River, thence in a westerly direction with the James River to its intersection with the 

Fluvanna-Albemarle County line, thence in a northerly direction with the Fluvanna-Albemarle 

County line to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), the point of 

beginning. 

 

Rivanna Election District - Number 5. 

Beginning at the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line at its intersection with State Route 

53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), following the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line in a northerly 

direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River, following the Rivanna River in a 

southeasterly direction until its intersection with the northerly boundary of Census Block 2034 to 

the intersection of Route 600, following Route 600 (South Boston Road) in a southerly direction 

to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway); thence along Route 53 (Thomas 

Jefferson Parkway) in a westerly direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along 

Turkeysag Trail in a northerly direction to its intersection with Bridlewood Drive; thence along 

Bridlewood Drive in a northerly direction to its intersection with Windy Way; thence along 

Windy Way in a northerly direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along 

Turkeysag Trail in a northerly direction to its intersection with Jefferson Drive; thence along 

Jefferson Drive in a northerly direction to its intersection with Boston Creek; thence along 

Boston Creek in a westerly direction to its intersection with State Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson 

Parkway); thence along Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in a westerly direction to its 

intersection with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line, the point of beginning.  Beginning at the 

intersection of Jefferson Drive and Lafayette Drive
8
 and following Jefferson Drive in an easterly 

(clockwise) direction around Lake Monticello to its intersection with Northwood Road, thence in 

a northerly direction with Northwood Road to its intersection with Lafayette Drive, thence in a 

westerly direction with Lafayette Drive to its intersection with Jefferson Drive, the point of 

beginning.   
 

(Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 5-16-01) 

 

Sec.  2-2-5.  Supervisors elected biennially; terms. 
 

The members of the county board of supervisors shall be elected biennially for four-year 

terms. (Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 5-16-01) 

 

Sec.  2-2-6.  One supervisor elected from each district. 
 

One supervisor shall be elected from each election district established by this article., except 

that there shall be two supervisors elected from the Rivanna District, the terms of which 

supervisors shall not be coterminous.  (Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-

1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 5-16-01) 

 

  (2)  The effective date of the new election districts and corresponding precincts, as set forth  

                                                 
8 

Editor’s Note – The original incorrectly stated Lafayette Road, when the proper name is in fact 

Lafayette Drive.  The editor has corrected this clerical error.    



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 15 

 

 

         herein, shall be in accordance with Virginia Code Section 24.2-311.  The following        

         schedule shall control the elections for Board of Supervisors and the School Board: 
 

Board of Supervisors: 

Palmyra District  Term ends 12/31/11  2011 Election 

Columbia District  Term ends 12/31/13  2013 Election 

Fork Union District  Term ends 12/31/11  2011 Election 

Cunningham District  Term ends 12/31/13  2013 Election 

Rivanna District  Term ends 12/31/13  2013 Election (Chesser) 

    Term ends 12/31/11  Seat Eliminated (Fairchild) 

 

School Board: 

Palmyra District  Term ends 12/31/11  2011 Election 

Columbia District  Term ends 12/31/13  2013 Election 

Fork Union District  Term ends 12/31/11  2011 Election 

Cunningham District  Term ends 12/31/13  2013 Election 

Rivanna District  Term ends 12/31/13  2013 Election (Phillips) 

    Term ends 12/31/11  Seat Eliminated (Gibbons) 

 



 

 

MOTION: I move the regular meeting minutes of the Fluvanna County Board of 

Supervisors for Wednesday, July 20
th

, 2011 be adopted. 
 

 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  August 3
rd

, 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Adoption of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors regular meeting 

minutes. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  None 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

Staff:  Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Copy:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

Comments: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 20
th

, 2011 

Page 1 

 

  FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

July 20
th

, 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice-Chairman  

    Joe Chesser 

    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker 

Chris S. Fairchild  

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

    Fred Payne, County Attorney 

John Robins, Public Works Director 

Pat Groot, Grants Administrator 

Dwight Godwin, Parks and Recreation Director 

    Steven Tugwell, Planner 

    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Gooch called the meeting of July 20

th
, 2011, to order at 7:00 p.m., in the Circuit 

Courtroom of the New Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia; and the Pledge of Allegiance was 

recited, after which, Chairman Gooch called for a moment of silence. 

 

REPORTS 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, reported on the following topics: 

 Safer Grants – new grant opportunity, Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency 

Response grant, may be available for Fluvanna County. 

 FSCPA Contract – looking into the renewal of the FSCPA contract. 

 Jurisdiction Signs – most signs have been put up by specific organizations. 

The Board directed staff to look into bringing the soft billing discussion for Fire and Rescue back 

to the Board. 

 TJEDP – Mr. Scudder is serving on the committee to select a candidate for the  

Comprehensive Strategic Economic Development Plan for the region which is being 

conducted July 20-21, 2011. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 

 Bob Leipold, Rivanna District – addressed the Board regarding upcoming elections. 

 Bryan Phillips, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in opposition to the bonus 

ordinance. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the first round of public comments. 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 20
th

, 2011 

Page 2 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items were pulled from the consent agenda:  

 Minutes of July 6
th

, 2011. 

 

Minutes of July 6, 2011 

Mr. Weaver requested the minutes of July 6
th

, 2011, be deferred to the August 3
rd

, 2011 meeting 

to allow time to make corrections. 

 

The following items were approved under the consent agenda:  

 MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to approve the consent agenda with corrections to minutes, 

which consisted of: 

 Region Ten FY12 Performance Contract. 

 Rural Rustic Roads/Routes 675, 636, 709 and 635 [Old Driver Hill Road, 

Garden Lane, Martin Lane and Cannery Lane].   

 Authorization to submit DCJS grant for the Sheriff’s Office. 

 Accept DCJS grant award for Sheriff’s Office. 

Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 

Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  

None. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

ZMP 11:01 – Fluvanna County – I-1 to A-1, and I-1 to I-1[An ordinance to amend the Fluvanna 

County Zoning Map with respect to 10.339 acres of Tax Map 12, Section 18, Parcels 1, 2, and 3 

to rezone the same from I-1, Industrial, Limited to A-1, Agricultural, General; and 52.859 acres 

of Tax Map 12-18-4 and Tax Map 12-17-C, to rezone the same from I-1, Industrial, Limited to I-

1, Industrial, Limited. The affected properties are located off of Route 696 (Deerfield Road), 

south of Route 607 (Bybee Road), approximately 0.70 miles east of Route 613 (Bybees Church 

Road). The properties are located in the Columbia Election District and are within the Zion 

Crossroads Community Planning Area – Mr. Steven Tugwell, Planner, addressed the Board 

regarding this item. 

Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing. 

 Joseph Floyd Crane, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in support of this request. 

 Dick Kerns, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in support of this request. 

 Donneta McElheny, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in support of this request. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 

 

After some discussion the following motion was made: 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved that the Board of Supervisors approve ZMP 11:01, a request 

to amend the Fluvanna County Zoning Map with respect to approximately 63.198 

acres of Tax Map 12, Section 18, Parcels 1, 2, 3, to rezone the same from I-1, 

Industrial, Limited to A-1, Agricultural, General; and Tax Map 12, Section 17, 

Parcel C, and Tax Map 12, Section 18, Parcel 4, to rezone the same 

from I-1, Industrial, Limited to I-1, I-1, Industrial, Limited.   Mr. Chesser 

seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, 

Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 20
th

, 2011 

Page 3 

 

 

 

Alcohol Ordinance – proposed ordinance amendment concerning the sale, distribution, 

consumption and possession of alcoholic beverages on county property, with certain exceptions.   

Dwight Godwin, Parks and Recreation Director, addressed the board on this request. 

Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing. 

 Faye Davis, Cunningham District – addressed the Board with concerns about an alcohol 

ordinance. 

 George Cushnie, Cunningham District – addressed the Board regarding separating the 

Farmers Market from other types of events in this ordinance. 

 Bill Anderson, Rivanna District, President Fluvanna Arts Council – addressed the Board 

regarding excluding the Carysbrook auditorium from the list in this ordinance. 

 Kathy Swenson Miller, Columbia District – addressed the Board in support of this 

ordinance. 

 Annie C. Evans, Columbia District – addressed the Board in opposition to this ordinance. 

 Phyliss Montellese, - Fork Union District - addressed the Board regarding the farmers 

market and the wineries’ responsibility. 

 Dennis Holder, Kents Store – addressed the Board in support of this ordinance. 

 Bill Hughes, Cunningham District – addressed the Board in support of this ordinance. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 

 

After some discussion the following motion was made: 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance entitled 

“AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE BY THE 

ADDITION IN CHAPTER 14 OF A SECTION 14-4, CONCERNING THE SALE, 

DISTRIBUTION, COMSUMPTION AND POSSESSION OF ALCOHOLIC 

BEVERAGES ON COUNTY PROPERTY, WITH CERTAIN EXCEPTION”. 

Furthermore, I move that the Board approve events permitted under this subsection may 

be located at one or more of the following locations and no others, which location shall 

be specified in the Parks and Recreation Facility Rental Agreement: with amendment to 

3B (but not including the auditorium).  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a 

vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  

None.  ABSENT:  None. 

 

PRESENTATIONS: 

Fork Union Sanitary District Future Water Supply Plans  

Mr. Alan Batson, Chairman of the Fork Union Sanitary District Advisory Board, reviewed with 

the Board a short and long term plan to improve the wells in the Fork Union Sanitary District. 

 

ACTION MATTERS 
Radio System Compliance and Upgrade Recommendations – Mr. John Robins, Public Works 

Director, addressed the Board in regards to improving the current E911 radio communications 

system and meeting the Federal Communications Commission mandate by January 1, 2013. 

MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved to direct staff to add a task order, not to exceed $20,000, to 

the existing radio consultants contract to develop a request for bid to narrow-band the 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 20
th

, 2011 

Page 4 

 

existing radio system and advertise it and return it to the Board of Supervisors for 

possible approval.  Additionally, I move to direct staff to advertise a request for proposal 

to hire a radio consultant to plan, design and help the County implement radio 

improvements to create a system with better coverage and interoperability.   Mr. Kenney 

seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Chesser, 

Booker, Fairchild and Kenney.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None.    

 

Budget Supplement for JAUNT  

Ms. Donna Shaunesey, JAUNT Executive Director, addressed the Board in regards to a budget 

supplement for JAUNT, to supplement the rising fuel costs.  No action was taken on this request.   

 

Boards/Commissions Committee – Fluvanna Transportations Safety Commission – Rivanna 

District 

MOTION: 

Mr. Fairchild moved to appoint Mr. Ray Weimer, to the Fluvanna Transportations 

Safety Commission, Rivanna District, with a term to begin immediately, and to terminate 

on June 30
th

, 2014. Mr. Kenney seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0. AYES: 

Gooch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker, Fairchild and Kenney.  NAYS: None. ABSENT: 

None. 

 

Boards/Commissions Committee – Library Board of Trustees – Rivanna District 

MOTION: 

Mr. Fairchild moved to appoint Ms. Angela Bergeron, to the Library Board of 

Trustees, Rivanna District, with a term to begin immediately, and to terminate on June 

30
th

, 2013. Mr. Kenney seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0. AYES: Gooch, 

Weaver, Chesser, Booker, Fairchild and Kenney.  NAYS: None. ABSENT: None. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

VRS – Mr. Weaver would like to see the VRS rules be put on an agenda sometime for discussion. 

Work Session – The work session for August 17, 2011, will be held in the Morris Room. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
VDOT – Mr. Fairchild addressed concerns with the paving job that was done in front of the new 

high school. 

Fluvanna Girls Softball League – The 11-12 year old team went to the state finals and won the 

Sportsmanship Trophy, first time winning a state trophy. 

Board of Supervisors Work Session – Inquired if there will be an agenda for the August 17, 2011, 

work session.   Mr. Scudder will work up an agenda. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the second round of public comments.   

With no one wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the second segment of public comments. 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 20
th

, 2011 

Page 5 

 

ADJOURN 

MOTION: 

At 9:58 p.m., Mr. Chesser moved to adjourn the meeting of Wednesday, July 20
th

, 

2011.  Mr. Kenney seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  

Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Booker, Weaver and Fairchild.   NAYS:  None.   

ABSENT: None     

 

 

 

        

John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 20
th

, 2011 

Page 6 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE BY THE ADDITION 

IN CHAPTER 14 OF A SECTION 14-4, CONCERNING THE SALE, DISTRIBUTION, 

CONSUMPTION AND POSSESSION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES ON COUNTY 

PROPERTY, WITH CERTAIN EXCEPTIONS 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, pursuant to 

Virginia Code Section 15.2-1800, that the County Code be, and it is hereby, amended, in Chapter 

14,  by the addition of a Section 14-4, which is hereby enacted as follows: 

 

14-4.  Sale, distribution, consumption and possession of alcoholic beverages prohibited on 

County property; exceptions. 

 

(a) No person shall sell, give away or otherwise distribute; consume, or possess an open or 

previously opened container containing, any alcoholic beverage; or be under the influence of an 

alcoholic beverage, while on any County property. 

(b) Any person violating the provisions of this section shall, in addition, to any other penalty, 

be deemed to be a trespasser on the property on which such violation shall have taken place. 

(c) Notwithstanding subsection (a), the sale, distribution, possession and consumption of 

alcohol, by persons of legal age, at certain public parks and recreation facilities may be permitted 

under certain conditions as more particularly set forth hereinafter. 

 (1) Beer and/or wine may be sold or otherwise distributed, consumed and possessed 

by persons otherwise permitted by law to possess the same and in accordance with the 

regulations of the Virginia Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (“ABC”) for the following special 

events: 

  (A) Private events where alcohol is provided at no charge to guests, such as 

wedding receptions, retirement parties, etc., (commonly referred to as “banquets”) which are 

hosted by private individuals; 

  (B) Special events hosted by duly organized, nonprofit corporations and 

associations raising money for athletic, charitable, educational, political, or religious purposes; 

  (C) Events (commonly referred to as “tastings”) involving the sale or giving of 

samples for the purpose of educating the consuming public about alcoholic beverages being 

tasted. 

 (2) Each event shall be subject to a Facility Rental Agreement approved by the 

director of Parks and Recreation in a form approved by the county attorney.  Each such 

agreement shall be accompanied by a copy of a current ABC license of a type appropriate to the 

event as well as proof of liability insurance, with the County as additional insured, in a form 

reasonably satisfactory to the county attorney.  In addition to other provisions, each such 

agreement shall require the provision of security controls reasonably satisfactory to the director 

of Parks and Recreation.  Approval of any such agreement shall be conditioned upon the 

payment to the County of a fee reasonably calculated to defray the expense of administration of 

this section not to exceed $1000. 

 (3) Events permitted under this subsection may be located at one or more of the 

following locations and no others, which location shall be specified in the Facility Rental 

Agreement: 

  (A) Pleasant Grove (Manor House, Wedding Grounds, Pole Barn, Heritage 

Trail Shelter, Farmer’s Market Grounds); 

  (B) Carysbrook Performing Arts Center; 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 20
th

, 2011 

Page 7 

 

  (C) Bremo picnic shelter; 

  (D) Fluvanna County Community Center (Fork Union). 

 (4) Permits for events shall be subject to revocation for material violations of this 

section or of the Facility Rental Agreement or any associated ABC license. 

 

 

  









































 

 

MOTION: I move that the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors asks Governor Bob 

McDonnell to submit a budget amendment to the 2012 session of the General Assembly to 

reverse the $60 million-a-year reduction for the current year, FY12, and to eliminate the aid to 

localities reduction in the budget submitted for FY13 and FY14; and further, be it 

 

RESOLVED, that the members of the General Assembly support a budget amendment to the 

2012 session of the General Assembly to reverse the $60 million-a-year reduction for the current 

year, FY12, and to eliminate the aid to localities reduction in the budget submitted for FY13 and 

FY14. 
 

AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  August 3
rd

, 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Resolution in Support of Restoration of State Funding for Aid to 

Localities  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING:  
 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:   

  

  

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  The General Assembly reduced aid to localities.  The 

Virginia Association of Counties and the Virginia Municipal League are legislating to 

restore these funding sources. 

 

 

 

Staff:  Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

Copy:  

 

Enclosure:  Resolution 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

County of Fluvanna 
Palmyra, Virginia 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held on 
Wednesday, August 3rd, 2011, in Palmyra, Virginia, the following action was taken: 

   
  Present     Vote 
  John Y. Gooch, Chairman    

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice Chairman   
  Chris S. Fairchild     
  Joe Chesser     
  Mozell H. Booker      
  Donald W. Weaver     

             
 
 On a motion by _______, seconded by _______, and carried by a vote of ____, the 
following resolution was adopted. 

 
RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF RESTORATION OF STATE FUNDING FOR AID TO 

LOCALITIES 
 
WHEREAS, state financial assistance for mandated and high priority programs, including public 
education, health and human services, public safety and constitutional officers, is $800 million 
less in FY12 than in FY09; and 
 
WHEREAS, cities and counties must balance their budgets during a time in which future state 
assistance is unreliable, federal stimulus dollars are dwindling, and real estate assessments are 
declining; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Appropriation Act contains $60 million in across-the-board cuts to cities and 
counties for both FY11 and FY12, under which localities are required to either elect to take 
reductions in particular state aid programs, or to send the State a check for the amounts 
determined by the Department of Planning and Budget (“Local Aid to the State”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the reductions are applied to essential services, including law enforcement, jail 
administration, foster care and child protection services, election administration and social 
services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Fluvanna does not have the authority to unilaterally decide to 
discontinue providing services such as election administration or to refuse to house and care for 
State prisoners in local and regional jails; and 
 
WHEREAS, the state budget cuts are not accompanied by any reductions in state-imposed 
mandates, standards and service requirements, nor do they provide any administrative flexibility 
for local agencies; and  
 
WHEREAS, the County of Fluvanna remitted $151,223 in FY11 and will be required to remit 
another $154,378 in FY12; and 
 



WHEREAS, cities and counties will have provided the State with $220 million by the close of 
FY12 for this “Local Aid to the State” program; and  
 
WHEREAS, these reductions shift State costs to local taxpayers and artificially increases the 
amount of state surplus revenue; and   
 
WHEREAS, State revenues have begun to recover and the State is expecting to have a 
revenue surplus for the second year in a row; and 
 
WHEREAS, revenue collections for the County of Fluvanna continue to reflect the struggling 
housing market; and  
 
WHEREAS, the State should not shift its share of the costs for mandates and responsibilities to 
local governments; now, therefore, be it 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on this 3rd day of August 2011 that the Fluvanna 
County Board of Supervisors asks Governor Bob McDonnell to submit a budget amendment to 
the 2012 session of the General Assembly to reverse the $60 million-a-year reduction for the 
current year, FY12, and to eliminate the aid to localities reduction in the budget submitted for 
FY13 and FY14; and further, be it 
 
RESOLVED, that the members of the General Assembly support a budget amendment to the 
2012 session of the General Assembly to reverse the $60 million-a-year reduction for the 
current year, FY12, and to eliminate the aid to localities reduction in the budget submitted for 
FY13 and FY14. 
 
Adopted this 3rd day of August 2011 
by the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



MOTION: I move the Board of Supervisors approve a budget transfer of $19,536.20 
from the County Administration salary line to the County Attorney professional services 
line to cover additional fees for various legal matters. 
 
AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  August 3, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: FY11 Budget Transfer to County Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: I recommend approval of the transfer as stated above. 
 
TIMING: Routine 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: This action will not impact the bottom line FY11 Budget. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: none 
 
DISCUSSION: To date the county has exceeded the initial budget for legal 
services with the County Attorney by $ 57,265.59 for a total of $155,265.59 for the FY11 
fiscal year (including the annual contract amount of $60,000).  
 
Staff: Jay Scudder, County Administrator 
 
Copy: Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 
 
Attachments:       
 
 
For County Administrator’s Use Only: 
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
County Administrator’s Signature 

































Provision of 

Pound Services 

for the County of Fluvanna 

by the Fluvanna SPCA 
 

8/3/2011 

1 



F
lu

v
a

n
n

a
 S

P
C

A
 

Mission Statement 

Founded in 1987 and incorporated in 1989, the 

Fluvanna SPCA’s mission is to rescue homeless 

pets from neglect, abuse, and abandonment and to 

place them in good, loving homes. 

2 Provision of Pound Services - 8/3/2011 



F
lu

v
a

n
n

a
 S

P
C

A
 

Pound Services1 

• Shelter stray animals for a holding period of 5-10 days 

(pounds typically hold animals for 6-11 days since it is 

not practical to track exact hour of admission for each 

animal) 

• Provide adequate food and water; adequate space 

based on species, sex, age, and size; and adequate 

exercise 

• Provide shelter that is adequately sanitized and 

maintained according to State Vet regulations 

• Provide proper care, transportation, and medical 

treatment to prevent suffering and disease transmission 

1 §3.2-6546 of the Code of Virginia 

3 Provision of Pound Services - 8/3/2011 



F
lu

v
a

n
n

a
 S

P
C

A
 

Pound Services - continued 

• Shelter animals on court-ordered hold, for periods 

sometimes exceeding 30 days; participate in assessing 

the condition of abused or neglected animals and in 

providing evidence and testimony in court cases 

• Make reasonable efforts to identify stray animals and to 

locate their owners 

• Provide reasonable hours open to the public during 

weekdays and weekends 

• Maintain written records on animals received and cared 

for at the FSPCA shelter 

• Adopt to new owners any unclaimed animals, as 

appropriate 

4 Provision of Pound Services - 8/3/2011 



F
lu

v
a

n
n

a
 S

P
C

A
 

Estimated Costs to Provide Pound Services 

According to the International City/County Management 

Association (ICMA) in 2001: 

 

“The average cost of a local government providing 

animal care and control services [10 years ago was] 

approximately 

$4 to $7 per capita 

with the costs of sheltering services estimated to be 

around two-thirds2 of the total cost.” 

2 Two-thirds of $4 to $7 = $2.68 to $4.69 per capita 

5 Provision of Pound Services - 8/3/2011 



F
lu

v
a

n
n

a
 S

P
C

A
 

FSPCA Compensation History 

Calendar 

Year 

Total 

Animal 

Intakes 

$ from 

County 

Euthanasia 

Rate 

$ per 

Animal 

$ per 

Capita 

2010 807 $77,934 8.5% $96.57 $3.03 

2009 852 $73,800 19.2% $86.62 $2.87 

2008 1,066 $60,000 22.7% $56.29 $2.35 

2007 1,031 $48,000 14.5% $46.56 $1.90 

2006 970 $48,000 18.4% $49.48 $1.94 

2005 779 $36,000 7.6% $46.21 $1.47 

2004 851 $24,000 4.9% $28.20 $1.02 

Only in the past 2 years has the FSPCA’s compensation for pound services 

from the County reached the lower level of the cost range as estimated by the 

ICMA.3  Previous pound contracts have been based on inaccurate estimates of 

future costs and have required the FSPCA to use non-profit monies to subsidize 

actual pound costs. 

Note that euthanasia rate does not correlate with funding. 

3 The Fluvanna SPCA has been providing pound services to the County since at least 1999. 

6 Provision of Pound Services - 8/3/2011 



F
lu

v
a

n
n

a
 S

P
C

A
 

Shelter Compensation Comparison  -  2010 

Locality 

Total 

Animal 

Intakes 

$$ from 

Locality 

% of Budget 

From 

Locality 

Euthanasia 

Rate 

$ per 

Animal 

$ per 

Capita 

Madison 628 4$146,687 100% 44% $233.58 $11.02 

Orange 1,803 $310,612 79% 19% $172.28 $9.28 

Culpeper 51,433 4$334,596 100% 14% $233.49 $7.17 

Louisa 1,804 $237,564 100% 50% $131.69 $7.17 

Cville/Alb ------ ------ ------ 8.3% ------ 5$5.00 

Buckingham 754 4$72,891 100% 92% $96.67 $4.25 

Fluvanna 807 $77,934 38% 8.5% $96.57 $3.03 

4 $82,230.50 subtracted from Madison budget, $221,530 subtracted from Culpeper budget, and $35,187 

subtracted from Buckingham budget to account for enforcement costs since ACO and pound services are 

combined 

5 Culpeper animal counts from 2009; Cville/Alb per capita rate from 2011 

The FSPCA receives less funding for pound services per capita than 

several other nearby localities. 

Note that euthanasia rate does not correlate with funding. 

7 Provision of Pound Services - 8/3/2011 



F
lu

v
a

n
n

a
 S

P
C

A
 

Proposed Compensation  –  2011-2012 

2011-2012 

Compensation Calculation 

Approx. 

Monthly 

Amount 

Approx. 

Annual 

Amount 

Monthly fee at the current amount of $6,600 

• plus court-ordered hold boarding 

• plus capital compensation ($25,000) 

$6,600.00 

+board/capital 

$104,200 

+board 

Many years of underfunded pound services and increasingly stringent State Vet regulations 

have left the FSPCA in a position where there are several facility deficiencies that have been 

repeatedly cited by the State Vet.  Our request for $25,000 in capital compensation during the 

2011-2012 year would cover the immediate repairs needed to avoid $1,000 per day in fines 

from the State Vet.  The State Vet’s office has informed us that it intends to impose fines if 

these deficiencies are not remediated. 

The FSPCA has not requested an increase to the monthly fee of $6,600 during the 2011-2012 

year. 

Contract 

Year 

Annual 

Animal 

Intakes 

(5-yr-avg) 

$ from 

County 

$ per 

Animal 

$ per 

Capita 

2011-2012 945 $104,200 $110.26 $4.06 

8 Provision of Pound Services - 8/3/2011 



F
lu

v
a

n
n

a
 S

P
C

A
 

Proposed Compensation  –  2012-2013 

2012-2013 

Compensation Calculation 

Approx. 

Monthly 

Amount 

Approx. 

Annual 

Amount 

Monthly fee of $8,563.67 

• plus capital compensation ($15,000) 

$8,563.67 

+capital 
$117,764 

The FSPCA has requested that the monthly fee be increased to 

$8,563.67 during the second contract year and the capital 

compensation amount reduced to $15,000. The monthly fee will now 

include compensation for court-ordered hold boarding expenses. 

Contract 

Year 

Annual 

Animal 

Intakes 

(5-yr-avg) 

$ from 

County 

$ per 

Animal 

$ per 

Capita 

2012-2013 945 $117,764 $124.62 $4.58 

9 Provision of Pound Services - 8/3/2011 



F
lu

v
a

n
n

a
 S

P
C

A
 

Proposed Compensation  –  2013-2014 

2013-2014 

Compensation Calculation 

Approx. 

Monthly 

Amount 

Approx. 

Annual 

Amount 

Monthly fee of $10,704.58 $10,704.58 $128,455 

The FSPCA has requested that the monthly fee be increased to 

$10,704.58 during the third contract year.  The monthly fee will now 

include compensation for court-ordered hold boarding and capital 

expenses to meet State Vet regulations.   

Contract 

Year 

Annual 

Animal 

Intakes 

(5-yr-avg) 

$ from 

County 

$ per 

Animal 

$ per 

Capita 

2013-2014 945 $128,455 $135.93 $5.00 

10 Provision of Pound Services - 8/3/2011 



F
lu

v
a

n
n

a
 S

P
C

A
 

Closing 

• The FSPCA is not asking for the County to fund a no-kill 

mission. 

• The FSPCA is not asking for a 44% “raise” but rather an 

adjustment that aligns our compensation at a level 

closer to actual costs for providing pound services—a 

level still well below many other Virginia localities. 

• The FSPCA wishes to provide Fluvanna with affordable, 

quality pound services to meet the County’s legal 

obligations and the public’s expectation for a humane 

animal shelter. 

11 Provision of Pound Services - 8/3/2011 



 1 

MOTION: Mr. Chairman, I move that the County become part of the Fluvanna County School’s contract with 
Gateway Health Alliance to provide services for a self insured Health Insurance Plan effective October 1, 2011 
through September 30, 2012.  I further move the authorization of a Health Insurance Fund which will be used to 
hold contributions until needed to pay claims.  I further move to transfer the $75,000 budgeted in Non-
Departmental for FY 2012 Health Insurance rate increase to the Health Insurance Fund. 
 
 
AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS                         AUGUST 3, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:     Health Insurance  
 
RECOMMENDATION:     Staff recommends approval.    
 
ISSUE:     Health Insurance for County and Department of Social Services employees. 
 
TIMING:     Routine 
 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:     The County’s health insurance costs have been rising steadily: 10/1/2006 2% 
rate increase, 10/1/2007 4.5% rate increase, 10/1/2008 5.2% rate decrease, 10/1/2009 9.2% rate increase, 
10/12011 9.05% rate increase, 10/1/2011 proposed 19% rate increase.     
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:     $75,000 was budgeted in FY 2012 for an expected health insurance premium 
increase.  The proposed group health program premium increase is projected to be approximately 1% higher 
than the current rates depending on program enrollment.    
 
DISCUSSION:     Fluvanna County and Social Services employees are part of the Fluvanna County Schools 
Health Insurance plan.  Southern Health has been the plan’s insurance carrier for the past ten years.   Southern 
Health asked for a 19% rate increase to renew insurance coverage for the October 1, 2011 contract year.  The 
rate increase is being attributed to utilization.   The Health Insurance plan was put out to bid for the second year 
in a row.  This year the RFP asked for quotes to provide a self-insured plan in lieu of an insured plan, 
anticipating that the option would allow better management of the County’s health care costs.  As a result 
fourteen quotes were received from nine companies.  On July 13, 2011 the Fluvanna County School Board 
voted to contract with Gateway Health Alliance to provide a self-insured Health Insurance Plan.  Under this 
arrangement there will be no plan design changes (benefits will remain the same) with no increase in employee 
premiums. 
 
Staff:     Barbara M. Wall-Magee, Human Resources Manager 
 
Copy:     Constitutional Officers 
 
Attachment:     Information on Self-Insurance 
     
 
For County Administrator’s Use Only: 
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
County Administrator’s Signature 
 



 2 

Self Insurance 
 
One of the largest expenses for local government and school divisions is health care.  Nationwide, as well as in 
Virginia, there is a trend toward self-insurance which is an option that can provide the opportunity to gain 
control on how insurance premiums are spent while maintaining the company health plan reserves for 
investment. 
 
Self insured (aka self funded) health care is an arrangement whereby an employer provides health benefits to 
employees with its own funds.  This is different from fully insured plans where the employer contracts with an 
insurance company to cover the employees and dependents.  In a self insured health care plan, the employer 
assumes the direct risk

 

 for payment of the claims for benefits.  The terms of eligibility and coverage are set 
forth in a plan document which includes provisions similar to those found in a typical group health insurance 
policy.  Under a traditional insurance model, at the end of the year the insurance company retains excess 
reserves and capital in the form of profits.  In a self insured model the employer retains the excess reserves.  
This is where the savings come in. 

In self funded plans, the employer takes on the financial risk

 

 of funding their health plan from its assets 
and becomes responsible for managing and administering the benefit plan. 

Typically a self insured employer will set up a special fund

 

 to earmark money (organization and 
employee contributions) to pay incurred claims. 

Most employers seek to mitigate the financial risk of self funding claims by purchasing stop loss insurance 
from an insurance carrier.  These policies provide for risk limitations both on a specific claim and aggregate 
claims basis.  
 
While some large employers self-administer their self insured group health plan, most find it necessary to 
contract with a third party for assistance with processes such as claims adjudication and payment.  Gateway 
Health Alliance has been retained by Fluvanna County Schools as its third party administrator.  Fluvanna 
County will pay Gateway Health Alliance to perform the functions currently performed by Southern Health 
under our fully insured arrangement such as:  

• Administer the health plan; 
• Adjudicate claims; 
• Build and maintain a network of doctors, hospitals and other health care providers; 
• Provide accounting statements and usage reports each month; 
• Manage pre authorizations; 
• Perform case management; 
• Provide a prescription benefit manager; 
• Provide a discount vision plan; and 
• Provide a wellness program with the goal of preventing high dollar claims by identifying health risk 

conditions early. 
 
The main difference is that with Gateway we will have more significant control over the plan’s administration 
and funding levels (cash flow) with the ability to retain excess reserves to build a fund for high claim years. 
 



MOTION:      I move that the Fluvanna Board of Supervisors approve the proposed contractual  

agreement with the Fluvanna SPCA with an amendment that provides for the 

current level of funding. 
 

 

AGENDA                    BOARD OF SUPERVISORS               DATE:  3
rd

 August, 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT:     Fluvanna County SPCA agreement for providing pound and animal care services. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   Approval at current funding level            

 

 

TIMING:  Contract is up for renewal this August 2011 

 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  Monthly service cost of $6,600 and additional $6 per day cost for  

court order holds per animal. Annual estimated cost $85,000  

 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

 

 

DISCUSSION:  See attached Memo 

 

 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

 

Staff:  Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

Enclosures:   SPCA Contract Memo, Proposed Contract, Current Contract,  

Vendor History Report 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder 
 

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17

















MOTION:    I move  to accept  the  federal Community Development Block Grant  (CDBG) 
Planning  Grant  administered  by  the  Department  of  Housing  and  Community 
Development for up to $25,000 with the understanding that the Columbia Town Council 
will  continue  to  remain  an  active  partner  in  the  funded  project.  Further,  I move  to 
authorize  the  County  Administrator  to  execute  contracts  associated  with  the  grant 
subject as to form by the County Attorney; and authorize a budget change consisting of 
a  supplemental appropriation of $25,000  in Fund 202 grant  funds and $3,000  in  local 
funds to revenue and expenditure lines as assigned by the Finance Department.  
 
 
AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  August 3, 2011 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Accept DHCD grant award  
 
TIMING:  Routine. 
 
POLICY  IMPLICATIONS:  The  County  has  been  invited  to  administer  the  DHCD  grants 
awarded  to  the  Town  of  Columbia.  The  County  will  serve  as  fiscal  agent,  assume 
responsibility  for  the  CDBG  Planning  Grant,  and  contract with  the  Thomas  Jefferson 
Planning District Commission  (TJPDC)  to provide Program Management. The Columbia 
Town Council will continue to actively participate in the Planning Grant activities. Under 
this arrangement, the County will serve as fiscal agent, providing the Town Council with 
the  expertise  in  fiscal  management  required  of  federal  grants,  a  task  typically  not 
handled  by  elected  officials.  By  accepting  the  invitation,  the  County  will  further 
demonstrate  a  commitment  to  assisting  the  Town  of  Columbia  in  their  revitalization 
efforts, a commitment key to existing and future grant funding for Columbia. The TJPDC 
will  continue  as  Program Manager,  conducting  the  program  related work  associated 
with  the  grant.  The  Town  Council  members,  other  Columbia  citizens  and  local 
government  department  and  agency  representatives  will  continue  to  serve  on  the 
Management Team  convened  for  the purpose of guiding  the direction of  the project. 
The  Planning Grant  is  expected  to  result  in  a  larger Community  Improvement Grant, 
implementing the plan to benefit residents of Low to Moderate Income (LMI). 
 
Agreeing to administer the CDBG Planning Grant will assist the Town in establishing and 
implementing necessary agreements, policies, partnerships, and projects to achieve  its 
identified goals. The Town Council is in support of this arrangement. As an elected body 
with no grant administration staff, they welcome the assistance. 
 
FISCAL  IMPLICATIONS:  The  Town  of  Columbia  will  provide  the  $3,000  required  for 
construction  application  expenses.  There  is  no  other  cost  to  the  County  other  than 
minimal time spent by the County Grants Administrator for fiscal oversight and ensuring 
program compliance. The work of  the grant will be completed by contractual services 
provided by the Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission. 

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 1



 
DISCUSSION:    For  optimal  success  to  be  achieved  in  the  revitalization  effort  for 
Columbia, federal grants of one or more million dollars will be required. Demonstrating 
to  grantors  that  the  County  and  TJPDC  have  joined  with  the  Town  of  Columbia  as 
partners to actively seek changes in the community will increase the likelihood of future 
grant funding success. 
 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:   
 
04/10/2010  Planning  Grant  Preliminary  Award  –  notice  to  proceed  issued  by  DHCD 

following submission of application completed by the TJPDC. 
07/01/2010 Worked needed  in order  to demonstrate eligibility  for  full Planning Grant 

award  completed.  A  public meeting,  two Management  Team meetings, 
preliminary  housing  assessment,  preliminary  infrastructure  assessment, 
and neighborhood surveys were facilitated/completed by the TJPDC. 

05/2011  Federal authorization received by DHCD to engage contracts. 
 
Staff:    Pat Groot, Grants Administrator 
 
Attachments:   Sample grant award contract 
 

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 2



 
 1 03-06/REV03-09 

CONTRACT #: 11-PG-12 
GRANTEE:  County of Fluvanna 
 
 
 
 PLANNING GRANT AGREEMENT 
 
This AGREEMENT, entered into as of this 4th day of August, 2011, by and between the 
Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development hereinafter referred to as 
"DHCD" and the County of Fluvanna, Virginia hereinafter referred to as "GRANTEE." 
 
 WITNESSETH 
 
WHEREAS, the Commonwealth of Virginia has been authorized to distribute and administer 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds pursuant to the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, and 
 
WHEREAS, DHCD has been authorized by the Governor of Virginia to distribute and 
administer CDBG funds in the form of Planning Grants according to the CDBG Program 
Design, and 
 
WHEREAS, the PROJECT as described in the Planning Grant Proposal as submitted by the 
GRANTEE has achieved a sufficiently high ranking through a competitive proposal selection 
system to qualify for Planning Grant funding on the basis of the CDBG Program Design, 
 
Now THEREFORE, the above-mentioned parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 
 
1. DHCD agrees to award the GRANTEE a Planning Grant in an amount of the total 

allowable eligible costs in carrying out the activities included in the scope of work herein 
described.  The initial award is up to $3,000; additional funding up to a combined 
maximum total of $25,000 is available on a performance basis (see SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS).  

 
2. DHCD agrees to provide the GRANTEE with technical assistance in setting up and 

carrying out the administration of its Planning Grant.  
 
3. The GRANTEE will commence, carry out and complete the following scope of work 

(more thoroughly described in the GRANTEE'S Proposal).  
 

PROJECT TITLE:  St. James Street Revitalization Project 

OUTCOME: Improving the living conditions of eight (8) households, all of 
which are LMI, in the Town of Columbia’s St. James Street 
Revitalization project area by planning for the provision of 
acquisition, demolition and permanent relocation assistance. 

 
 

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 3



 
 2 03-06/REV03-09 

 
PRODUCTS:       

 

 
DESCRIPTION 

TOTAL 
BUDGET 

CDBG 
BUDGET 

NON-
CDBG 

BUDGET 
Execution of PG Contract $3,000 $3,000  

Procurement of Consultants   $1,000  

Execution of contracts with grant administrator 
and appraiser @ $500 per 

   

Finish Assessments and Surveys: $2,500 $2,500  

The GRANTEE will finish the assessments and 
surveys of the project area:  Identifying owner-
occupied versus investor owner;  renter versus 
Section 8 tenant;  amount of rent; identifying 
non-LMI v LMI household; low LMI v 
Moderate LMI household; identifying ethnicity; 
female-headed, elderly and/or disabled 
households, etc. 

   

Property Acquisition Plan: $5,500 $5,500  

The plan will take into account both URA and 
DHCD requirements.  CDBG funds may not be 
used for acquisition so the plan must identify 
alternative funding sources.  It must outline the 
proposed review appraisal process.  It will 
provide a spreadsheet, which identifies all 
properties to be acquired, including the name of 
each property owner, property address, and 
legal address, on a form to be provided by 
DHCD. 

   

          Draft @ $2,000    

          Final @ $4 3,500    

Relocation Plan: $5,500 $5,500  

The plan will take into account both URA and 
DHCD requirements.  It must provide a plan for 
“one for one” replacement of affordable housing 
and housing opportunities must be provided 
within the Town’s boundaries.  It must outline 
how the GRANTEE will oversee the relocation 
of any Section 8 tenants.  It will also provide a 
spreadsheet, which identifies all households and 
businesses to be relocated on a form to be 
provided by DHCD. 

   

          Draft @ $2,000    

          Final @ $ 3,500    

Property Disposition Plan:    $4,500 $4,500  

The plan will take into account both URA and    

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 4



 
 3 03-06/REV03-09 

DHCD requirements.  All housing units 
purchase in this project must be completely 
demolished. Demolition participation 
agreements must be obtained from all 
households and as many property owners of 
vacant structures as possible. It will provide a 
spreadsheet, which identifies all properties to be 
demolished, including name of each property 
owner, property address, and legal address, on a 
form to be provided by DHCD. It will also 
address potential new uses for the acquired land. 

          Draft @ $1,500    

          Final @ $3,000    

Monthly Progress Reports   $500 $500  

The GRANTEE will submit 22 reports @ 
$22.72 per from September 2011 to June 2013 
on a form to be provided by DHCD. 

   

Community Improvement Grant Application  $3,000  $3,000 

If the GRANTEE decides that submitting a 
Comprehensive Improvement Grant is in the 
Town’s best interest, it will do so by the 
deadline established in the 2013 Program 
Design. 

   

Completion of all Pre-Contract Activities  $2,500 $2,500  

Pre-contract activities includes all requested 
research, documentation, and notification to 
satisfy the Environmental Review Record and 

Section 106 requirements associated with the 
potential or perceived outcomes of investments 
in the project area will be completed.  These 
activities are to be completed no later than June 
30, 2013. 

   

TOTAL $28,000 $25,000 $3,000 
 

All thresholds are considered sequential and progression from one to the next depends 
upon the satisfactory results of each respective threshold.  Satisfactory completion of 
each threshold is contingent upon DHCD concurrence. 

 
4. The aforementioned PROJECT shall be carried out, and grant payments made in strict 

conformance with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  
 
5. The GRANTEE will initiate work on the PRODUCT(S) required by the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS beginning August 4, 2011 unless grant special condition(s) require 
additional action on specified PRODUCT(S) before proceeding with that activity(s).  In 
such instances the GRANTEE will initiate action to remove the special condition(s) 
beginning with the execution of this agreement.  

 

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 5



 
 4 03-06/REV03-09 

6. The GRANTEE shall complete the work as described in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
by the dates identified in the SPECIAL CONDITIONS.  If PRODUCTS are not 
completed by that date, all Planning Grant funding and this Agreement may be terminated 
and the GRANTEE shall return all unexpended funds, unless an amendment to the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENT provides otherwise.  

 
7. The term CONTRACT DOCUMENTS means the following documents which are part of 

this Agreement, and are incorporated by reference herein as if set out in full: 
 
 A. GRANTEE'S PLANNING GRANT PROPOSAL (including revisions); 
 B. AGREEMENT; 
 C. PLANNING GRANT MANAGEMENT MANUAL; 
 D. GENERAL CONDITIONS; 
 E. SPECIAL CONDITIONS;  
 F. AMENDMENTS; 
 G. ASSURANCES; 
 H. FACILITATED PLANNING STRATEGY; and 
 I. PROGRAM DESIGN, PROPERTY ACQUISITION PLAN, RELOCATION PLAN, 

AND PROPERTY DISPOSITION PLAN. 

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 6



 
 5 03-06/REV03-09 

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed or caused to be executed by their duly 
authorized official this Agreement in duplicate, each copy of which will be deemed an 
original.  
 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
 

BY: ____________________________________ DATE:     
 Lisa. A. Atkinson, Deputy Director  
 
 City of Richmond,  

Commonwealth of Virginia 
 
I do certify that Lisa A. Atkinson personally appeared before me and made oath that she is 
Deputy Director of the Department of Housing and Community Development and that she is 
duly authorized to execute the foregoing document.  
 
My commission expires:  ________________________. 
 
Given under my hand this ______day of ____________, 2011. 
 
________________________________     
Notary Public Registration Number 
 
 
COUNTY OF FLUVANNA 
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
 
 
BY: ____________________________________ DATE:     
 Jay Scudder, County Administrator 
 
 City/County/Town of ______________________________, 
 Commonwealth of Virginia 
 
I do certify that Jay Scudder personally appeared before me and made oath that he is County 
Administrator of the County of Fluvanna and that he is duly authorized to execute the 
foregoing document. 
 
My commission expires:  ________________________. 
 
Given under my hand this ______day of ____________, 2011. 
 
________________________________     
Notary Public Registration Number 

  

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 7



 
 6 03-06/REV03-09 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 
 
1. Upon completion of the Facilitated Planning Strategy Session within 60 days of the date 

of this contract, and upon completion, submission and acceptance of a written Planning 
Strategy, DHCD will release up to $3,000 (based on a negotiated performance budget) to 
the GRANTEE.  Subsequent payments will be released based solely on completion and 
delivery of agreed-upon products.  Note that Planning Grant funds may NOT be used to 
fund the development of construction grant applications. 

 
2. A 2013 Community Improvement Grant (CIG) application shall be prepared and 

submitted by the deadline published in the 2013 Program Design. 
 
3. The following Precontract requirements necessary for a Community Improvement Grant 

shall be completed by June 30, 2013:  1) Environmental Review and Request for Release 
of Funds, including all applicable publications; 2) adoption of a local business and 
employment plan; 3) adoption of a local nondiscrimination policy;  4) publication of an 
advertisement soliciting the participation of local businesses and employees and 
publication of an advertisement soliciting the participation of minority- and female-owned 
businesses;  5) completion of a handicapped accessibility assessment, and adoption of a 
“504 Self Assessment and Policy Plan;  6) adoption of a local anti-displacement plan; 7) 
certification of intent to take a yearly action to affirmatively further fair housing;  8) 
completion of at least two public hearings;  9) initiation of procurement of an engineer, 
rehab specialist, or grant administrator, as applicable;  10) completion of a draft program 
design, as applicable; and  11) completion of utility user agreements, as applicable.   Your 
Community Representative must be consulted as you move forward with completion of 
these items. 

 
4. Ten percent (10%) of the total grant shall not be reimbursed unless and until all activities, 

including the CIG application submission and the completion of the CIG precontract 
requirements, have been completed and satisfactorily reviewed by the deadlines outlined 
above, regardless of whether the CIG application is funded.  Please note that this 10% is 
NOT meant to pay for these activities.  Rather, it is contract retainage.  Neither Planning 
Grant nor Construction Grant funds pay for development and submission of a CIG 
application.  Reasonable expenses involved in the completion of precontract requirements 
may be reimbursed out of a CIG (if the applicant is successful), and with a formally 
executed approval of those prior-authorized expenses 

 
5. A minimum of $3,000.00 in leverage funds is committed to this project by the 

GRANTEE.  Sources of these funds are as follows: 
 

Town of Columbia  $3,000.00 
 

 

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 8



 
 7 03-06/REV03-09 

 These funds shall be expended prior to or in proportion to DHCD’s Planning Grant funds 
within the budget, per activity.  If additional leverage funds are committed to the project 
beyond those outlined above, the required leverage will remain at the originally approved 
amount.  Documentation of the expenditure of these funds shall be maintained by the 
Grantee and reported to DHCD at the time of request for final payment. 

 
6. It must be documented that project area stakeholders are involved in all planning activities 

and phases of project development.  
 

7. All grant-related work shall occur using a management team concept and representing all 
stakeholders, including but not limited to neighborhood residents (sparkplugs), the 
engineer and/or architect, the rehab specialist, the housing program administrator, the 
grant administrator, the appraiser, the Chief Executive, the Director of Public Works, and 
the local Planner, as appropriate. 

 
8. No Planning Grant funds shall be obligated until a revised budget is received and 

approved if applicable. 
 

9. Drawdowns against this contract will be accepted and processed only on a pay-for-
performance basis.  The benchmarks to be used in determining eligibility for payment will 
be negotiated between the locality and the Community Representative.  The benchmarks, 
compensation, and their schedule shall be considered as an ATTACHMENT to this 
CONTRACT.  The GRANTEE must include a comparable compensation process for 
making payments to contractual service providers, and that process with benchmarks and 
a compensation schedule must be included in contracts with service providers. 

 
10. DHCD reserves the right to end funding at any point beyond the initial investment 

outlined in number 1 above.  DHCD may exercise this right at any time beyond the initial 
investment should the project prove not to be viable and to be a poor investment of CDBG 
resources. 

 
11. As part of the planning process, the GRANTEE must consider the demolition of all vacant 

structures and the relocation of all businesses with the final boundaries of the project area 
as part of any 2013 CIG application. 

 
12. As part of the planning process, the GRANTEE must re-visit the boundaries of the project 

area in conjunction with the development of the Property Acquisition, Relocation and 
Property Disposition Plans and adjust them as necessary in consultation with DHCD. 

 
13. The GRANTEE must set-up a CDBG Special Revenue account to be used solely for the 

planning grant.   
 

14. The GRANTEE must update the Project Management Plan, including its timeline.  The 
revised document must be resubmitted within thirty (30) days of the contract’s execution 
for DHCD’s review and concurrence. 

 
 

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 9



 
 8 03-06/REV03-09 

 GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
1. DEFINITIONS - Whenever used in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS the following 

terms when written in all capital letters shall have the meanings indicated and shall be 
applicable to both the singular and plural thereof: 

 
A. PRODUCT - A Project product constitutes a specific portion of the project, and as 

such is covered by its own budget account.  
 
B. AMENDMENT - A formal addition or modification to the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS which has been approved by both parties, and which affects the scope, 
objectives or completion date of the PROJECT, or which affects the manner in which 
the PROJECT is to be carried out.  

 
C. APPLICANT - The entity which made the proposal for Planning Grant funding and 

accepted responsibility for assuring compliance and performance of all conditions.  
 
D. ASSURANCES - The Assurances which are attached to this document.  
 
E. PLANNING GRANT - The funds, the project and activities to be funded, and all 

conditions, laws and regulations affecting administration of funds currently in effect or 
as subsequently amended, and provided by DHCD to GRANTEES from Community 
Development Block Grant funds allocated by the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development.   

 
F CONTRACT DOCUMENTS - The legal agreement between DHCD and the 

GRANTEE including the Agreement, and all documents referenced in paragraph 7 
thereof.  

 
G. GRANTEE - The entity which is the recipient of Planning Grant funds and as such 

must comply with CONTRACT Documents. 
 
H. PROJECT - The physical activities undertaken to meet the overall stated outcome for 

which Planning Grant funding is utilized.  
 
I. WRITTEN NOTICE - Any notice from one party to the AGREEMENT to the other 

signed by an authorized official which transmits binding statements of fact or 
condition and is delivered to the appropriate authorized official either in person or 
through the United States mail.  

 
J. MANUAL - The Planning Grant Management Manual, which contains required 

procedures for the management of a CDBG Planning Grant project.  
 

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 10



 
 9 03-06/REV03-09 

2. ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES - The GRANTEE shall deliver all contracted 
PRODUCTS and administer all grant funds and activities in conformance with the general 
terms and special conditions set forth where required in DHCD's MANUAL and any 
WRITTEN NOTICES from DHCD.  

 
3. ACCOUNTING RECORDS - The GRANTEE shall establish and maintain separate 

accounts within its existing accounting system or set up accounts independently which are 
in conformity with the requirements of 24 CFR Part 85, the DHCD MANUAL 
requirements, and any written instructions from DHCD.  The GRANTEE shall record in 
its accounting system all Grant payments received by it pursuant to this Grant and all 
other funds provided for, accruing to, or otherwise received on account of the Grant.  

 
 All costs, including paid services contributed by the GRANTEE or others, charged to the 

Grant shall be supported by properly executed payrolls, time records, invoices, contracts, 
or vouchers evidencing in proper detail the nature and propriety of the charges.  All 
checks, payrolls, invoices, contracts, vouchers, orders, or other accounting documents 
pertaining in whole or in part to the Grant shall be clearly identified, readily accessible, 
and separate and distinct from all other such documents.  Such documents shall reside at 
the offices of the GRANTEE.  

 
4. COSTS INCURRED PRIOR TO GRANT AGREEMENT EXECUTION - No costs 

incurred prior to the execution of the AGREEMENT shall be eligible for reimbursement 
with Grant funds, unless such incurred costs are authorized in writing by DHCD.  

 
5. GRANT BUDGET - The GRANTEE shall carry out activities and incur costs only in 

conformance with the latest approved budget for the Grant and subject to the provisions of 
these CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  The budget may be revised through Administrative 
Procedures detailed in the MANUAL, but not such budget or revision shall be effective 
unless and until the Department shall have approved the same in writing or as indicated in 
item 12 of these General Conditions.  

 
6. RECORDS - The GRANTEE agrees to maintain such complete and accurate books and 

records pertaining to GRANTEE costs and expenditures associated with undertaking their 
Contract.  Records shall be readily accessible to DHCD, appropriate state and federal 
agencies and the general public during the course of the project and shall remain intact 
and accessible for three years thereafter.  Except if any litigation, claim, or audit is started 
before the expiration of the three year period the records shall be retained until such action 
is resolved.  

 
7. REPORTS - The GRANTEE shall furnish, regularly and in such form as DHCD may 

require, reports concerning the status of project activities and grant funds.   
 
 All reports shall be completed in full and submitted at the time prescribed by DHCD. 

Reports shall contain accurate information and shall detail any problems, delays or 
adverse conditions experienced.  
  

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 11



 
 10 03-06/REV03-09 

8. QUALITY CONTROL - The GRANTEE accepts the responsibility to assure that all 
grant funded activities shall be implemented with the highest possible degree of 
competence, workmanship, quality and cost effectiveness. To this end the GRANTEE 
shall provide a system of quality control to include all aspects of grant administration and 
project implementation.  

 
9. COMMUNICATIONS - WRITTEN NOTICES shall constitute the only means of 

binding statements of fact or condition between the parties of this agreement.  All required 
reports and requests to be issued by the GRANTEE must be made by way of a WRITTEN 
NOTICE unless other means are specified in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  Please 
note that project-specific technical assistance provided via email does NOT have the 
weight of official WRITTEN NOTICE.  Rather, it is comparable to oral technical 
assistance discussions. All directives, findings and other formal issuance by DHCD must 
be transmitted through a WRITTEN NOTICE unless otherwise specified in the 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
 WRITTEN NOTICES shall be signed by and addressed to the appropriate authorized 

official and shall be considered transmitted when delivered in person or through the 
United States mail. 

 
 The GRANTEE shall act upon and respond to WRITTEN NOTICES promptly as 

directed. 
 
10. EXCESS GRANTS FUNDS - At the completion of all Grant activities DHCD shall have 

the right to recapture any excess grant funds, provided that the GRANTEE has not had 
DHCD approval on any amendments or reprogramming of the funds.  

 
11. METHOD OF PAYMENT - DHCD agrees to pay to the Grantee the amounts specified 

in number 1 of the Agreement, which shall constitute full and complete funding for the 
Grantee's work and activities set forth in the proposal.  Such sums will be paid on a 
reimbursement basis for actual costs incurred by the Grantee in accordance with the 
Project budget and the Special Conditions.  Requisitions made to DHCD by the Grantee 
shall specify that work has been performed in conformance with the activities listed in the 
Proposal, and the requirements, terms and conditions of this Agreement and that the 
Grantee is entitled to receive the amount requisitioned under the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement.  

 
12. BUDGET REVISIONS/AMENDMENTS - The GRANTEE shall not obligate, 

encumber, spend or otherwise utilize Planning Grant funds for any activity or purpose not 
included or not in conformance with the budget as apportioned and as submitted to DHCD 
unless: 

 
A. The GRANTEE has received explicit approval by WRITTEN NOTICE from DHCD 

to undertake such actions; or 
 
B. The activity or purpose is consistent with the objectives and scope of the approved 

PROJECT and does not entail a budget change between PRODUCTS or between line 

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 12



 
 11 03-06/REV03-09 

items within PRODUCTS exceeding 5% of the total Grant amount cumulatively, 
including all previous budget changes.  

 
13. CHANGE ORDERS – DHCD must approve all change orders on contracts.  Any change 

order, regardless of cost, which results in a change of project scope will be a disallowed 
cost. 
 

14. TERMINATION, SUSPENSION, CONDITIONS - 
 

A. For cause - If through any cause, the GRANTEE or DHCD fails to comply with the 
terms, conditions or requirements of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS the other party 
may terminate or suspend this AGREEMENT by giving WRITTEN NOTICE of the 
same and specifying the effective date of termination or suspension at least five (5) 
days prior to such action.  

 
 If, after the effective date of any suspension of this AGREEMENT, it is mutually 

agreeable to DHCD and the GRANTEE upon remedy of any contract violation by the 
GRANTEE or DHCD, the suspension may be lifted and the agreement shall be in full 
force and effect at a specified date after the parties have exchanged WRITTEN 
NOTICES stating a mutual understanding that the cause for suspension has been 
identified, agreed to and remedied.  

 
 In the case of contract violations by the GRANTEE, DHCD may impose conditions 

other than termination or suspension which are appropriate to ensure proper grant and 
project administration and adherence to the terms of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
Such conditions must be imposed through WRITTEN NOTICE.  

 
B. For convenience - DHCD may terminate this AGREEMENT for convenience in the 

event that DHCD is no longer authorized as an agency to administer the CDBG 
program or if the federal funds allocated are no longer available.  
 
The GRANTEE may terminate this AGREEMENT for convenience at any time 
provided that all of the following conditions are met: 
 
(1) The GRANTEE gives DHCD ten (10) days WRITTEN NOTICE; and 
 
(2) The activities which have been initiated either have been completed and may be 

utilized in their stage of completion in a manner consistent with the objectives in 
the GRANTEE'S Planning Grant Proposal, or will be completed by the 
GRANTEE through its own or other resources; and 

 
(3) The GRANTEE had honored or will honor all contractual obligations to third 

parties affected by the PROJECT; and 
 
(4) DHCD agrees to the termination.  
 
 

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 13



 
 12 03-06/REV03-09 

 A GRANTEE'S valid termination for convenience in accordance with these CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS shall not affect nor prejudice the GRANTEE'S future relationship with 
DHCD nor its future consideration as a CDBG recipient.  

 
15. SUBSEQUENT CONTRACTS - The GRANTEE shall remain fully obligated under the 

provisions of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS notwithstanding its designation of any 
subsequent or third parties for the undertaking of all or part of the activities for which the 
grant assistance is being provided to the GRANTEE.  

 
 Any GRANTEE or CONTRACTOR or SUBCONTRACTOR which is not the 

APPLICANT shall comply with all the lawful requirements of the APPLICANT 
necessary to insure that the PROJECT for which this assistance is being provided under 
this AGREEMENT is carried out in accordance with the APPLICANT's Assurances and 
Certifications.  

 
16. POLITICAL ACTIVITY PROHIBITED 
 

None of the funds, materials, property or services contributed by the DHCD or the 
GRANTEE, under this AGREEMENT, shall be used in the performance of this 
AGREEMENT for any partisan political activity, or to further the election or defeat of any 
candidate for public office.  

 
17. INTEREST OF MEMBER OF AGENCY AND OTHERS 
 

No officer, member, or employee of the GRANTEE and no member of its governing 
body, and no other public official of the governing body of the locality or localities in 
which the project is situated or being carried out, who exercises any functions or 
responsibilities in the review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of this project, 
shall participate in any decision relating to this AGREEMENT which affects his personal 
interest or have any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this 
AGREEMENT or the proceeds thereof. 

 
18. OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT 
 

No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States of America and no 
Resident Commissioner shall be admitted to any share or part hereof or to any benefit to 
arise herefrom.  

 
19. CERTIFICATIONS 
 

The GRANTEE certifies that it will comply with the following: a) Freedom of 
Information Act; b) Virginia Conflict of Interest Act; c) Virginia Fair Employment 
Contracting Act; d) Virginia Public Procurement Act.  

 

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 14



 
 13 03-06/REV03-09 

20. BENEFICIARIES 
 

There are no third party beneficiaries of this contract.  The provisions contained in these 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS represent the entire agreement between DHCD and the 
GRANTEE.  The provisions are designed to assist in meeting the community needs of the 
GRANTEE identified in the GRANTEE'S Planning Grant Proposal, but are not designed 
to accrue to the specific benefit of any individual person or entity residing or located in 
the GRANTEE'S community or elsewhere.  Consequently, the terms of these 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS may be enforced by DHCD or the GRANTEE exclusively 
and not by any individual person or entity residing or located in the GRANTEE'S 
community or elsewhere as a third-party beneficiary of this contract.  
 

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 15



 
 14 03-06/REV03-09 

ASSURANCES 
 
The Grantee hereby assures and certifies that: 
 

A. It possesses legal authority to execute the project.  
 

B. Its governing body has duly adopted or passed as an official act a resolution, motion, 
or similar action authorizing the filing of the project proposal including all 
understandings and assurances contained therein, and directing and authorizing the 
person identified as the official representative of the grantee to act in connection with 
the project proposal and to provide such additional information as may be required.  

 
C. Its chief executive officer or other officer of grantee approved by the Virginia 

Department of Housing and Community Development: 
 

(1) Consents to assume the status of a responsible Federal official under the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA) and other provisions of Federal law, as 
specified at 24 CFR 58.5(a) through (h) which further the purposes of NEPA 
insofar as the provisions of such Federal law apply to this Grant; 

 
(2) Is authorized and consents on behalf of the grantee and himself to accept the 

jurisdiction of the Federal and Commonwealth of Virginia courts for the purpose 
of enforcement of his responsibilities as such an official.  

 
 

D. It will comply with the regulations, policies, guidelines and requirements of the Code 
of Federal Regulations (24 CFR Part 85), OMB Circular A-133, and OMB Circular 
A-87,  as amended or replaced from time to time, as they relate to the PROJECT, 
acceptance, and use of Federal funds under this Grant; and, as applicable, all State 
laws and administrative requirements which may supersede them (by virtue of being 
more stringent). 

 
E. It will comply with: 

 
(1) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub.  L 88-352), and the regulations 

issued pursuant thereto (24 CFR Part 1), which provides that no person in the 
United States shall on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded 
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity for which the grantee receives 
Federal financial assistance and will immediately take any measures necessary to 
effectuate this assurance.  If any real property or structure thereon is provided or 
improved with the aid of Federal financial assistance extended to the grantee, 
this assurance shall obligate the grantee, or in the case of any transfer of such 
property, any transferee, for the period during which the real property or 
structure is used for a purpose for which the Federal financial assistance is 
extended, or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or 
benefits.  

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 16



 
 15 03-06/REV03-09 

 
(2) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub.  L.  90-284), as amended, which 

provides that no person because of race, color, religion, sex,  national origin, age, 
handicap, or familial status shall be discriminated against in the sale or rental of 
housing, in the financing of housing or in the provision of brokerage services.  

 
(3) Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, and the 

regulations issued pursuant thereto (24 CFR Part 570.602), which provides that 
no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, national 
origin, or sex, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 
subjected to discrimination under, any program or activity funded in whole or 
part with funds provided under this Grant.  Any prohibition against 
discrimination on the basis of age under the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 or 
with respect to an otherwise qualified handicapped individual as provided in 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 shall also apply to this Grant.  

 
(4) Executive Order 11063 on equal opportunity in housing and nondiscrimination 

in the sale or rental of housing built with Federal assistance. 
 
(5) Section 906 of Public Law 100-625 (Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable 

Housing Act) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of religion or religious 
affiliation.  No person shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefit 
of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity funded in 
whole or in part with CDBG funds on the basis of his or her religion or religious 
affiliation. 

 
F. It will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using positions for a purpose 

that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private gain for 
themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have family, business, or 
other ties.  

 
G. It will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act which limits the political activity 

of employees.  
 
H. It will require buildings or facilities designed with funds provided under this Grant to 

comply with the "American Standard Specifications for Making Buildings and 
Facilities Accessible to, and Usable by, the Physically Handicapped," Number 
A-117.1-R 1980, in accordance with the Virginia Uniform Statewide Building Code.  
The Grantee will be responsible for conducting inspections to insure compliance with 
these specifications by the contractor.  

 

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 17



 
 16 03-06/REV03-09 

I. It will comply with Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Orders 11247 
and 11375, and the regulations issued pursuant thereto (41 CFR Chapter 60), which 
provides that no persons shall be discriminated against on the basis of race, color, 
religion, sex or national origin in all phases of employment during the performance of 
Federal or federally assisted contracts over $10,000.  Contractors and subcontractors 
of Federal and federally assisted contracts shall take affirmative action to insure fair 
treatment in employment, upgrading, demotion, layoff or termination, rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation and selection for training and apprenticeship.  

 
J. It will comply with Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as 

amended, requiring that to the greatest extent feasible opportunities for training and 
employment be given to lower-income residents of the project area and contracts for 
work in connection with the project be awarded to eligible business concerns which 
are located in, or owned in substantial part by, persons residing in the area of the 
project. 

 
K. It will comply with the provisions of Executive Order 11988, relating to evaluation of 

flood hazards and Executive Order 12088 relating to the prevention, control, and 
abatement of water pollution. 

 
L. It will comply with Section 104 (l) of the Housing and Community Development Act 

of 1974, as amended, in that: it has adopted and is enforcing a policy prohibiting the 
use of excessive force by law enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction against any 
individuals engaged in nonviolent civil rights demonstrations and a policy of enforcing 
applicable State and local laws against physically barring entrance to or exit from a 
facility or location which is subject of such nonviolent civil rights demonstration 
within its jurisdiction. 

 
M. It will implement all required actions to ensure compliance with 24 CFR 8, 

Nondiscrimination Based on Handicap in Federally Assisted Programs and Activities. 
 
 
 
 

 ______________________________________   Date:____________ 
 Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

8/3/2011 BOS Packet - Page 18















 

 

MOTION: I move to appoint/reappoint _____________________ and 

______________________ to the Economic Development Authority (EDA), with terms 

to begin September 1, 2011, and to terminate on August 31, 2015. 
 

 

AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  August 3, 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Appointment to Economic Development Authority (EDA).  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Normal 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  There are two term expiring on August 31, 2011, that of Richard Van 

Nierop and Stephen Scott, who both wish to be reappointed. 

 

Applicants who have shown an interest in this appointment are:   

Richard Van Nierop, current EDA 

Steven Scott, current EDA 

Tom Barnes, currently on the Agricultural/Forestal Advisory Committee 

Tammy Grigg, currently on the EDC 

William Grigg 

Shelley Murphy, currently serving on the EDC 

Catherine Palmer, currently on the EDC and JAUNT Board 

Curtis Putnam 

Harvey Sorum 

Robert Trumbull 

Michael Williams 

  

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

Staff:    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Copy:  Scott Marshall, Chairman, Economic Development Authority  

 

Enclosure:   Boards and Commissions Applications 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



Interest in Economic Development Authority (formerly ID Rivanna 

Last Name Barnes First Name Tom

Mailing Address 8 Colonial Road City Palmyra State VA Postal Code 22963-    

Home Phone (434) 589-8473 Work Phone 4348725066 Cell Phone/Other (434) 509-5441

Fax Email Address tombarnes813@comcast.net

DateRecieved 10/1/2008

Education and Experience:

BS Biology, Glenville State College, Assoc. Forest Technology, 23yrs in insurance industry

Physical Address Same City State Postal Code

Comments:

Civic Activities  and Committee Memberships:

Supervisor Committee of State Farm Federal Credit Union, United Way Campaign Chair; Member of Central VA Chapter of CPCU, 
Society of SCLA, Lake Christian Church

Interest in Committee:

I have always been involved in the communities where I have lived.  This will also allow me to increase my knowledge along 
w/volunteering.

Thursday, July 28, 2011 Page 1 of 10



Interest in Economic Development Authority (formerly ID Fork Union 

Last Name Grigg First Name Tammy

Mailing Address 1837 Central Plain Road City Palmyra State VA Postal Code 22963-    

Home Phone (434) 589-5558 Work Phone 4345893262 Cell Phone/Other

Fax Email Address grigg9111@earthlink.net

DateRecieved 4/24/2009

Education and Experience:

B.S. Old Dominion University; Admin. Asst. Fluvanna Chamber

Physical Address City State Postal Code

Comments:

Civic Activities  and Committee Memberships:

1st Women President Fluvanna Ruritan Club Foundation for Education, Leadership Program; Ruritan Club, CERT

Interest in Committee:

To bring my experience from the Chamber to help move the county forward

Thursday, July 28, 2011 Page 2 of 10



Interest in Economic Development Authority (formerly ID Fork Union 

Last Name Grigg First Name William

Mailing Address 1837 Central Plains Road City Palmyra State VA Postal Code 22963-    

Home Phone (434) 589-5558 Work Phone Cell Phone/Other

Fax Email Address grigg9111@earthlink.net

DateRecieved 4/24/2009

Education and Experience:

President of ECIS, ACI, ASCE, VRMCA

Physical Address City State Postal Code

Comments:

Civic Activities  and Committee Memberships:

Ruritan Club, Board at Holiday Lake, Emery & Henry College; Fork Union Baptist Church, Fluvanna Ruritan Club

Interest in Committee:

To bring knowledge about business to help the county succeed.  To give insight from my experience

Thursday, July 28, 2011 Page 3 of 10



Interest in Economic Development Authority (formerly ID Rivanna 

Last Name Murphy First Name Shelley

Mailing Address 36 Colonial Road City Palmyra State VA Postal Code 22963-    

Home Phone (434) 806-7433 Work Phone Cell Phone/Other

Fax Email Address keli1@aol.com

DateRecieved 5/25/2011

Education and Experience:

Master's; Organizational Mangement, Unviersity of Phoenix; Affordable Housing, Real Estate, Econ Development, Aging/Seniors, 
Nonprofit Community based org's Social Services & Planning, Education Youth

Physical Address City State Postal Code

Comments:

Civic Activities  and Committee Memberships:

Albemarle Co. School Board/Charter School

Interest in Committee:

To become involved in my community

Thursday, July 28, 2011 Page 4 of 10



Interest in Economic Development Authority (formerly ID Palmyra 

Last Name Palmer First Name Catherine

Mailing Address 1997 Troy Road City Troy State VA Postal Code 22974-    

Home Phone (434) 589-8596 Work Phone Cell Phone/Other

Fax Email Address herbcat12@embarqmail.com

DateRecieved 7/12/2010

Education and Experience:

High School; 28 years in business office for telephone company

Physical Address City State Postal Code

Comments:

Civic Activities  and Committee Memberships:

Leadership Development Class and committee and Ruritans; Three Chopt Community Center Association

Interest in Committee:

I am now retired and have time to devote to doing whatever I can to make Fluvanna a better and more prosperous county.  I enjoy 
working with others and meeting new people.

Thursday, July 28, 2011 Page 5 of 10



Interest in Economic Development Authority (formerly ID Columbia 

Last Name Putnam First Name Curtis

Mailing Address 16408 James Madison Hwy. City Palmyra State VA Postal Code 22963-    

Home Phone (434) 589-2136 Work Phone 4345911925 Cell Phone/Other

Fax Email Address curtislputnam@hotmail.com

DateRecieved 6/1/2007

Education and Experience:

BS in Sociology - Minor in Chemistry, Teaching from Western Michigan University, 1974.  Experience & professional expertise in retail 
sales and marketing, teaching and small business owner (ceramics)

Physical Address 15408 James Madison Hwy. City Palmyra State VA Postal Code 22963

Comments: County Employee

Civic Activities  and Committee Memberships:

Board member - Missouri Mental Health Consumer Network.  Past membership in Kiwanis.  I attend Seays Chapel and am a graduate of 
Fluvanna Leadership Development Program of 2007.

Interest in Committee:

I wish to serve the County which has nurtured me, and contribute my voice to the future of Fluvanna.

Thursday, July 28, 2011 Page 6 of 10



Interest in Economic Development Authority (formerly ID Fork Union 

Last Name Sorum First Name Harvey J.

Mailing Address 1341 Spring Road City Bremo Bluff State VA Postal Code 23022-    

Home Phone (434) 842-3001 Work Phone Cell Phone/Other

Fax Email Address sorumh@nexet.net

DateRecieved 8/20/2010

Education and Experience:

B.S. University of Wisconsin; Chairman of President Regan's first global technology transfer with Soviet Union. Consultative Council, 
National Institute of Building Sciences, NIBS; Forum Chairman, NIBS, Metric Symposium

Physical Address City State Postal Code

Comments:

Civic Activities  and Committee Memberships:

Scottsville United Methodist - Lay Preacher

Interest in Committee:

Take Part in growth of Fluvanna County

Thursday, July 28, 2011 Page 7 of 10



Interest in Economic Development Authority (formerly ID Fork Union 

Last Name Trumbull First Name Robert

Mailing Address 428 Rivanna Woods Drive City Fork Union State VA Postal Code 23055-    

Home Phone (434) 842-1234 Work Phone Cell Phone/Other

Fax Email Address rtrumbul@moonstar.com

DateRecieved 7/14/2010

Education and Experience:

B.S. & MS degrees; Virginia Commonwealth University; plus additional coursework @ Longwood and UVA; Organizational and financial 
background based on experience as a teacher, school principal, and school system Finance Director

Physical Address City State Postal Code

Comments: No committees interested in listed

Civic Activities  and Committee Memberships:

Board member and past president Farmville area Habitat for Humanity; Board member Southside Family YMCA; Member and past 
president of the Virginia Piedmont Chapter of PDK, Farmville Jayees, Virginia Assoc. of School Business Officials and currently a 
member of the Fluvanna Ruritan Club

Interest in Committee:

While a fairly new resident of Fluvanna County, my ties here go back over 40 yrs.  I would consider it an honor to be of sevice to my new 
home and my wife's home for the past 4 generations.

Thursday, July 28, 2011 Page 8 of 10



Interest in Economic Development Authority (formerly ID Rivanna 

Last Name Van Nierop First Name Richard

Mailing Address 22 Sand Trap Terrace City Palmyra State VA Postal Code 22963-    

Home Phone (434) 589-2220 Work Phone Cell Phone/Other

Fax Email Address vannierop@urgrad.rochester.edu

DateRecieved 9/19/2007

Education and Experience:

BS, Business Management- University of Rochester; Charter graduate:  Fluvanna Leadership Development Program; Design, 
implementation & management of information systems; business process management; customer support; budget development/mgmt.

Physical Address City State Postal Code

Comments:

Civic Activities  and Committee Memberships:

Lake Monticello Owners' Assn:  Director (3 yrs), Treasurer (2 yrs), Secretary, Chair of Finance, Contracts, Elections committees; Asst. 
Secretary for Policy Review (3 yrs); Chair-Rivanna Community Planning Committee.  President/Director:  Williamson (NY) Flying Club; 
Asst. Chair-Sts Peter & Paul Church Finance Committee

Interest in Committee:

Desire to help make Fluvanna County a better place to live & work

Thursday, July 28, 2011 Page 9 of 10



Interest in Economic Development Authority (formerly ID Fork Union 

Last Name Williams First Name Michael

Mailing Address P.O. Box 421 City Fork Union State VA Postal Code 23055-    

Home Phone (434) 842-9151 Work Phone Cell Phone/Other

Fax Email Address williamm@fuma.org

DateRecieved 4/12/2009

Education and Experience:

M.S.; VCU; FUMA - 8 yrs; Univ. of Richmond - 2 yrs.

Physical Address City State Postal Code

Comments:

Civic Activities  and Committee Memberships:

Bethel Baptist Church

Interest in Committee:

Children soon to enter Parks & Rec.  I see a need here.

Thursday, July 28, 2011 Page 10 of 10



 
 
MOTION: I move to reappoint _____________________ to the Youth Advisory 
Council, Board of Supervisors Representative, with a term to begin immediately, and to 
terminate on July 31, 2013. 
 
 
AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  August 3, 2011 
 
 
SUBJECT: Appointment to Youth Advisory Council, Board of Supervisors 
representative. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approval 
 
TIMING: Normal 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 
 
DISCUSSION:  Ms Booker’s term expires on July, 31st, 2011 and she would like to be 
reappointed. 
 
Applicants who have shown an interest in this appointment are:   

Mozell Booker, current representative 
 
 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 
Staff: Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Copy:  Dr. Jacqueline Meyers, CSA Director  
 
 
************************************** 
County Administrator’s Use Only 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



MOTION:  I move that the Board of Supervisors authorize the County Administrator to execute the lease and 
Memorandum of Lease Agreement (MOL) on behalf of the County, pending approval as to form by the County 
Attorney’s office.   
 
AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS August 3, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  Weber City Water Tank Lease and MOL with USCOC of Virginia RSA #3, Inc. (U.S. Cellular) 
 
TIMING:  This process follows the legal requirements for leases of real property in the Commonwealth. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  This action implements the type of lease agreement envisioned in the County’s contract 
with CityScape Consultants, in part, regarding the management of leases for telecommunication facilities on 
County-owned properties.  Further, this action is consistent with the intent of the Telecommunications Master Plan 
which the Board will formally consider in the near future, along with public comments received during the 
development of the master plan regarding the desirability of the County using its property for such facilities.   
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  The revenue generated by this agreement will be dedicated to the Fork Union Sanitary 
District (FUSD) and will result in a net payment of $16,200 annually for the first year of the lease term, with an 
annual rent increase of 3% per year for the remainder of the five year initial term and the automatic extensions of 
four additional five year terms.  After the five year initial term, per CityScapes’ contract, the cost for lease 
management services will decrease five percent, thus resulting in an increase in annual revenues.   
 
DISCUSSION:  The leasing of County properties for telecommunication facilities, including the Weber City and 
Omohundro Water tanks, is envisioned in the Telecommunications Master Plan that the Board will consider in 
September, along with the County’s contract with CityScape Consultants to manage such lease agreements on 
behalf of the County.  The leasing of water towers, in particular, is of benefit to the Fork Union Sanitary District 
(FUSD) better enabling them to pay  back existing debt to the County or pay for more capital improvements as 
necessary and prudent.   
 
This lease agreement presented to the Board of Supervisors has undergone months of rigorous negotiating with the 
Lessee as to form and content by Staff, the County Attorney’s Office, and CityScape consultants.  It provides for a 
competitive monthly revenue stream along with the construction of a platform that will allow another 
telecommunications facility to be leased on the Weber City Water Tower.   
 
Please contact staff if there are any questions or concerns regarding this proposed action. 
 
 
Staff: Darren Coffey, Planning Director 
 John Robins, Public Works Director 
 
Attachments:   A) Memorandum of Lease Agreement (MOL) 
  B) Water Tower Lease Agreement 
  C) Site Plan Sketch 
  D) Survey of Leased Premises (not a boundary survey) 
 
************************************** 
County Administrator’s Use Only 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

1



Weber City Water Tank 
MOL USCOC 7-19-11 

 

 1

Tax Map:  51-A-78 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by and 
Upon Recording, Return to: 
 
Payne & Hodous, LLP 
414 East Jefferson Street 
Charlottesville, VA 22902 
 
 
      
 

MEMORANDUM OF WATER TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
     This Memorandum of WATER TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT is made this 
_____ day of _____________, 201__, between the BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia, with a mailing address of 132 Main Street, Palmyra, Virginia 22963, hereinafter 
collectively referred to as “LESSOR”, and  USCOC OF VIRGINIA RSA #3, INC., a 
Virginia corporation with its principal offices at  8410 West Bryn Mawr Avenue, Suite 700, 
Chicago, Illinois 60631, hereinafter referred to as “LESSEE”. LESSOR and LESSEE are 
at times collectively referred to hereinafter as the “Parties” or individually as the “Party”. 
 
1.  LESSOR and LESSEE entered into a Water Tower Lease Agreement (the 

“Agreement”) for an initial term of five (5) years, commencing on the 
Commencement Date. The Agreement shall automatically be extended for four 
(4) additional five (5) year terms unless the LESSEE terminates it at the end of 
the then current term by giving the LESSOR written notice of the intent to 
terminate at least six (6) months prior to the end of the then current term.   

 
2. PREMISES. LESSOR hereby leases to the LESSEE a portion of that certain 

space, consisting of twelve (12) antenna mount locations (“the Tower Space”), on 
the LESSOR's water tower, hereinafter referred to as the “Tower”, located at 2984 
James Madison Highway, Bremo Bluff, Virginia 23022, as shown on the Tax Map 
of the County of Fluvanna as Tax Map Number 51-A-78, and being further 
described in Deed Book 74, Page 129, as recorded in the Clerk’s Office of the 
Circuit Court of Fluvanna County, Virginia (the entirety of LESSOR’s property on 
which the Tower is located is referred to hereinafter as the “Property”), together 
with a 42’ x 30’ area of land within the Property (the “Land Space”) for the 

2

ATTACHMENT A



Weber City Water Tank 
MOL USCOC 7-19-11 

 

 2

installation of LESSEE's equipment building and generator; together with the 
non-exclusive right (“the Right of Way”) for ingress and egress, seven (7) days a 
week, twenty-four (24) hours a day (subject to Paragraph 39 of the Agreement), on 
foot or motor vehicle, including trucks,  along a twenty foot (20’) wide right-of-way 
extending from the nearest public right-of-way, James Madison Highway, to the 
Land Space; and together with the non-exclusive use of any further rights of way 
(the “Further Rights of Way”) over and through the Property between the Land 
Space and the Tower Space for the installation and maintenance of utility wires, 
poles, cables, conduits, and pipes.   The Tower Space, Land Space, Right of Way 
and Further Rights of Way, if any, are substantially described in Exhibit "A", 
attached hereto and made a part hereof and are collectively referred to hereinafter 
as the "Premises". The Premises are further depicted on the survey attached 
hereto as Exhibit “B”. In the event any public utility is unable to use the Further 
Rights of Way, the LESSOR may, in its sole discretion, agree to grant an additional 
right-of-way(s) either to the LESSEE or to the public utility.  LESSOR and LESSEE 
acknowledge and agree that neither Exhibit “A” nor Exhibit “B” is a boundary 
survey of the Property and that Exhibits “A” and “B” are intended solely as exhibits 
for purposes of describing the LESSEE’s Premises. 

 
Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement, this Memorandum, or any 
Exhibit attached thereto, LESSOR and LESSEE acknowledge that existing 
structures on the Property may encroach on the Right of Way and that the Right 
of Way shall be less than 20’ in width as necessary to accommodate such 
existing structures.  LESSOR and LESSEE additionally agree that LESSOR may 
relocate the Right of Way at any time, at LESSOR’s expense.  

  
3. The Commencement Date of the Agreement, of which this is a Memorandum, 

shall be on the first day of the next calendar month after the date LESSEE 
commences construction, but in no event later than September 1, 2011 (such 
date being the “Commencement Date”). .   

  
4. The terms, covenants and provisions of the Agreement are hereby confirmed and 

shall extend to and be binding upon the respective heirs, successors, personal 
representatives and assigns of LESSOR and LESSEE. 

 
5. This Memorandum is not a complete summary of the Agreement.  Provisions in 

this Memorandum shall not be used in interpreting the Agreement.  In the event 
of a conflict between this Memorandum and the Agreement, the Agreement shall 
control. 

 
 [SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGES] 

3



Weber City Water Tank 
MOL USCOC 7-19-11 

 

 3

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, hereunto and to a duplicate hereof, LESSOR and 
LESSEE have caused this Memorandum to be duly executed. 
       
      LESSOR: 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA 
COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Print Name: _________________ 
 
Title: ________________________ 
 
Date: ________________________  

 
 
 
STATE OF VIRGINIA  )  
     ) ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  
COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  ) 
 
 I, ___________________, a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby 
certify that ______________________ personally came before me this day and 
acknowledged that s/he is the ______________________ of the BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA, a political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia, and s/he, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing 
MEMORANDUM OF WATER TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT as his/her own act and 
deed on behalf of the BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA COUNTY, 
VIRGINIA.  
 
 WITNESS my hand and official Notarial Seal, this        day of                    , 201__. 
     ____________________________________                                    
       Notary Public 
My commission expires: 
Notary registration number:         SEAL 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Fluvanna County Attorney 
 

4



Weber City Water Tank 
MOL USCOC 7-19-11 

 

 4

      LESSEE: 
 
      USCOC of Virginia RSA #3, Inc.,  
 
      BY: _________________________ 
       Name:   
       Title:  
         
      DATE:  ________________________ 
 
 
 
STATE OF _______________  ) 
      )  ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
CITY/COUNTY OF _________________  ) 
 

I, ___________________, a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby 
certify that ________________ personally came before me this day and acknowledged 
that he is the ______________________ of USCOC of Virginia RSA #3, Inc., and that 
he, as ___________________, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing 
MEMORANDUM OF WATER TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT on behalf of USCOC of 
Virginia RSA #3, Inc.. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and official Notarial Seal, this        day of                    , 201__. 
 
      ___________________________________                            
       Notary Public 
 
My commission expires: 
Notary registration number:         SEAL 

 
 
 
 
R:\VIRGINIA\COLOS AND LAND LEASES\Bremo Bluff\MOL.Bremo Bluff.doc 
 
 
 
 
 

5



Weber City Water Tank 
MOL USCOC 7-19-11 

 

 5

EXHIBIT A 
 

DESCRIPTION OF “PREMISES” 
SITE DRAWINGS – SHEETS C-3, C-3A, C-4 

 

6



Weber City Water Tank 
MOL USCOC 7-19-11 

 

 6

EXHIBIT B 
 

SURVEY OF THE PREMISES 
 

7



Weber City Water Tank 
Lease USCOC 7-19-11 

 
 WATER TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement, made this _____ day of __________________, 201__, between                 
the BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA, a political 
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, with its principal offices at 132 Main Street, 
Palmyra, Virginia 22963, hereinafter designated LESSOR and USCOC of Virginia RSA #3, Inc., 
a Virginia corporation with its principal offices at  8410 West Bryn Mawr Avenue, Suite 700, 
Chicago, Illinois 60631 hereinafter designated LESSEE.    The LESSOR and LESSEE are at times 
collectively referred to hereinafter as the “Parties” or individually as the “Party”. 
 

WITNESSETH 
 In consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and intending to be legally bound 
hereby, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

1.  PREMISES. LESSOR hereby leases to the LESSEE a portion of that certain 
space, consisting of twelve (12) antenna mount locations (“the Tower Space”), on the LESSOR's 
water tower, hereinafter referred to as the “Tower”, located at 2984 James Madison Highway, 
Bremo Bluff, Virginia 23022, as shown on the Tax Map of the County of Fluvanna as Tax Map 
Number 51-A-78, and being further described in Deed Book 74, Page 129, as recorded in the 
Clerk’s Office of the Circuit Court of Fluvanna County, Virginia (the entirety of LESSOR’s 
property on which the Tower is located is referred to hereinafter as the “Property”), together with 
a 42’ x 30’ area of land within the Property (the “Land Space”) for the installation of LESSEE's 
equipment building and generator; together with the non-exclusive right (“the Right of Way”) for 
ingress and egress, seven (7) days a week, twenty-four (24) hours a day (subject to Paragraph 39), 
on foot or motor vehicle, including trucks,  along a twenty foot (20’) wide right-of-way extending 
from the nearest public right-of-way, James Madison Highway, to the Land Space; and together 
with the non-exclusive use of any further rights of way (the “Further Rights of Way”) over and 
through the Property between the Land Space and the Tower Space for the installation and 
maintenance of utility wires, poles, cables, conduits, and pipes.   The Tower Space, Land Space, 
Right of Way and Further Rights of Way, if any, are substantially described in Exhibit "A", 
attached hereto and made a part hereof and are collectively referred to hereinafter as the 
"Premises". The Premises are further described on the survey attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 

 
 In the event any public utility is unable to use the Further Rights of Way, the LESSOR 
may, in its sole discretion, agree to grant an additional right-of-way(s) either to the LESSEE or to 
the public utility. 
 
 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease or any Exhibit attached hereto, LESSOR 
and LESSEE acknowledge that existing structures on the Property may encroach on the Right of 
Way and that the Right of Way shall be less than 20’ in width as necessary to accommodate such 
existing structures.  LESSOR and LESSEE additionally agree that LESSOR may relocate the Right 
of Way at any time, at LESSOR’s expense.  
 

8

ATTACHMENT B



 LESSOR hereby grants permission to LESSEE to install, maintain and operate the radio 
communications equipment, antennas and appurtenances described in Exhibit "C" attached hereto, 
which shall be maintained by LESSEE at all times in good, safe, and sightly condition;. 
 
 LESSEE reserves the right to replace the aforementioned equipment with similar and 
comparable equipment provided said replacement does not increase the number of frequencies 
utilized or the structural loading of said Tower. Additionally, if any such replacement changes the 
frequencies used by LESSEE, LESSEE agrees to provide written notice to LESSOR of such 
frequency changes. 
 

2. SURVEY.  LESSOR also hereby grants to LESSEE the right to prepare an “as-built” 
survey of the Property and Premises following installation of LESSEE’s equipment, antennas and 
appurtenances.  Upon approval by LESSOR said survey shall then become Exhibit "B" which 
shall be attached hereto and made a part hereof, and shall control in the event of boundary and 
access discrepancies between it and Exhibit "A".  Cost for such work shall be borne by the 
LESSEE. 

 
 

3. TERM; RENTAL; ELECTRICAL.   
 

a.  This Agreement shall be effective as of the date of execution by both 
Parties, provided, however, the initial term shall be for five (5) years and shall commence on the 
Commencement Date (as hereinafter defined) at which time rental payments shall commence and 
be due at a total initial annual rental of Twenty-One Thousand and Six-Hundred and NO/100 
($21,600.00) dollars to be paid in equal monthly installments of Eighteen Hundred and NO/100 
($1800.00) dollars on the first day of the month, in advance, to LESSOR, or to such other 
person, firm or place as LESSOR may, from time to time, designate in writing at least thirty (30) 
days in advance of any rental payment date by notice given in accordance with Paragraph 25 
below.  The Agreement shall commence on the first day of the next calendar month after the date 
LESSEE commences construction, but in no event later than September 1, 2011, (the 
“Commencement Date”). LESSOR and LESSEE agree that they shall acknowledge in writing 
the Commencement Date.   

Rent shall be payable to LESSOR’s designated Site Manager, CityScape Consultants, 
Inc., at 7050 W Palmetto Park Rd #15-652, Boca Raton, FL 334333.  Upon agreement of the 
Parties, LESSEE may pay rent by electronic funds transfer and in such event, LESSOR agrees to 
provide to LESSEE bank routing information for such purpose upon request of LESSEE.   

b. LESSOR hereby agrees to provide to LESSEE the following  
documentation (the “Rental Documentation”): (i) a complete and fully executed Internal 
Revenue Service Form W-9, or equivalent, in a form acceptable to LESSEE, for any party to 
whom rental payments are to be made pursuant to this Agreement; and (ii) other similar 
documentation requested by LESSEE in LESSEE’s reasonable discretion.  From time to time 
during the Term of this Agreement and within thirty (30) days of a written request from 
LESSEE, LESSOR agrees to provide updated Rental Documentation in a form reasonably 
acceptable to LESSEE.  The Rental Documentation shall be provided to LESSEE in accordance 

 
 
 29



with the provisions of and at the address given in Paragraph 25.  Delivery of Rental 
Documentation to LESSEE shall be a prerequisite for the payment of any rent by LESSEE and 
notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, LESSEE shall have no obligation to deliver any 
rental payments until Rental Documentation has been supplied to LESSEE as provided herein. 

Within fifteen (15) days of obtaining an interest in the Property or this Agreement, any 
assignee(s), transferee(s) or other successor(s) in interest of LESSOR shall provide to LESSEE 
Rental Documentation in the manner set forth in the preceding paragraph.  From time to time 
during the Term of this Agreement and within thirty (30) days of a written request from 
LESSEE, any assignee(s) or transferee(s) of LESSOR agrees to provide updated Rental 
Documentation in a form reasonably acceptable to LESSEE.  Delivery of Rental Documentation 
to LESSEE by any assignee(s), transferee(s) or other successor(s) in interest of LESSOR shall be 
a prerequisite for the delivery of any rent by LESSEE to such party and notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary herein, LESSEE shall have no obligation to deliver any rental payments 
to any assignee(s), transferee(s) or other successor(s) in interest of LESSOR until Rental 
Documentation has been supplied to LESSEE as provided herein. 

c.   LESSEE shall be solely responsible for obtaining any electrical service to the Premises 
required by LESSEE.  If permitted by the local utility company servicing the Premises, LESSEE 
shall furnish and install an electrical meter at the Premises for the measurement of electrical 
power used by LESSEE's installation.  In the alternative, if required by the local utility company 
servicing the Premises, LESSEE’S electrical service may be provided through LESSOR’S 
electrical meter, in which event LESSEE shall furnish and install an electrical sub-meter at the 
Premises for the measurement of electrical power used by LESSEE's installation.  In the event 
such sub-meter is installed, the LESSEE shall pay the utility directly for its power consumption, 
if billed by the utility, and if not billed by the utility, then the LESSEE shall reimburse the 
LESSOR thirty (30) days after receipt of an invoice from LESSOR indicating the usage amount 
based upon LESSOR’s reading of the sub-meter. All invoices for power consumption shall be 
sent by LESSOR to LESSEE at U.S. Cellular, P.O. Box 31339, Chicago, Illinois 60631-0339. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall LESSOR have any 
liability or obligation to LESSEE, or be deemed to be in default under this Agreement, as a result 
of any loss or interruption of electrical service.  LESSEE shall be permitted at any time during 
the Term, to install, maintain and/or provide access to and use of, as necessary (during any 
power interruption at the Premises), a temporary power source, and all related equipment and 
appurtenances within the Premises, or elsewhere on the Property as shown on Exhibits “A” and 
“B”.  LESSEE shall have the right to install conduits connecting the temporary power source and 
related appurtenances to the Premises as shown on Exhibits “A” and “B”.    
 

4. EXTENSIONS.  This Agreement shall automatically be extended for four (4) 
additional five (5) year terms unless LESSEE terminates it at the end of the then current term by 
giving LESSOR written notice of the intent to terminate at least six (6) months prior to the end of 
the then current term.  The initial term and all extensions shall be collectively referred to herein as 
the “Term”.   
 

 
 
 310



5. RENT INCREASE, EXTENSION RENTALS.  The annual rent for each year of 
each term shall increase three (3%) percent over the annual rent due for the immediately 
preceding  year. 
 

6. TERMINATION.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, 
provided LESSEE is not in default hereunder beyond applicable notice and cure periods, 
LESSEE shall have the right to terminate this Agreement after the first five year initial term 
upon the annual anniversary of the Commencement Date provided that (6) months prior notice 
is given to LESSOR. 

7.   TAXES.    LESSEE shall have the responsibility to pay any personal property, 
real estate taxes, assessments, or charges owed on the Property which LESSOR demonstrates is 
the result of LESSEE’s use of the Premises and/or the installation, maintenance, and operation 
of the LESSEE’s improvements, and any sales tax imposed on the rent (except to the extent that 
LESSEE  is or may become exempt from the payment of sales tax in the jurisdiction in which 
the Property is located), including any increase in real estate taxes at the Property which 
LESSOR demonstrates arises from the LESSEE’s improvements and/or LESSEE’s use of the 
Premises.  LESSOR and LESSEE shall each be responsible for the payment of any taxes, levies, 
assessments and other charges imposed including franchise and similar taxes imposed upon the 
activities or business conducted by LESSOR or LESSEE, respectively, at the Property.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, LESSEE shall not have the obligation to pay any tax, 
assessment, or charge that LESSEE is disputing in good faith in appropriate proceedings prior 
to a final determination that such tax is properly assessed provided that no lien attaches to the 
Property. Nothing in this Paragraph shall be construed as making LESSEE liable for any portion 
of any income taxes applicable to LESSOR in connection with any Property or otherwise. 
Except as set forth in this Paragraph, LESSOR shall have the responsibility to pay any personal 
property, real estate taxes, assessments, or charges applicable to LESSOR owed on the Property 
and shall do so prior to the imposition of any lien on the Property.  Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this paragraph, LESSEE acknowledges that LESSOR is a tax-exempt public entity 
and that the Property and any personal property of LESSOR is tax-exempt in the hands of 
LESSOR.  LESSEE shall have the responsibility to pay any taxes owed by LESSEE as a result 
of this Agreement, including but not limited to real estate taxes.  LESSEE shall pay any 
personal property taxes levied against LESSEE's equipment building, base station equipment, 
and any other personal property of LESSEE. 

 
 LESSEE shall have the right, at its sole option and at its sole cost and expense, to appeal, 
challenge or seek modification of any tax assessment or billing for which LESSEE is wholly or 
partly responsible for payment.  LESSOR shall reasonably cooperate with LESSEE at LESSEE’s 
expense, to the extent that such cooperation is required as the owner of the Property, in filing, 
prosecuting and perfecting any appeal or challenge to taxes as set forth in the preceding 
sentence, including but not limited to, executing any consent, appeal or other similar document.  
In the event that as a result of any appeal or challenge by LESSEE, there is a reduction, credit or 
repayment received by the LESSOR for any taxes previously paid by LESSEE, LESSOR agrees 
to promptly reimburse to LESSEE the amount of said reduction, credit or repayment.  In the 
event that LESSEE does not have the standing rights to pursue a good faith and reasonable 

 
 
 411



dispute of any taxes under this paragraph, LESSOR will pursue such dispute at LESSEE’s sole 
cost and expense upon written request of LESSEE. 
 

8. USE; GOVERNMENTAL APPROVALS.  LESSEE shall use the Premises for the 
purpose of constructing, maintaining, repairing and operating a radio communications facility 
and uses incidental thereto. All improvements, equipment, antennas and conduits shall be at 
LESSEE's expense and their installation shall be at the discretion and option of LESSEE.  
LESSEE shall have the right to replace, repair, add or otherwise modify its utilities, equipment, 
antennas and/or conduits or any portion thereof and the frequencies over which the equipment 
operates, whether the equipment, antennas, conduits or frequencies are specified or not on any 
exhibit attached hereto, during the Term, provided such does not increase the number of 
frequencies used or the tower loading of said Tower, and provided that LESSEE notifies LESSOR 
of such changes prior to making same. It is understood and agreed that LESSEE intends to obtain 
after the execution date of this Agreement all of the certificates, permits and other approvals 
(collectively the "Governmental Approvals") that may be required by any Federal, State or Local 
authorities as well as satisfactory soil boring tests, structural analysis, and title examination which 
will permit LESSEE use of the Premises as set forth above.  LESSEE shall promptly apply for 
and shall diligently pursue the Governmental Approvals, tests, analysis, and examination 
following execution of this Agreement.  LESSOR shall cooperate with LESSEE at LESSEE’s 
expense, to the extent that such cooperation is required as the owner of the Property, in its effort 
to obtain such approvals and shall take no action inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement 
which would adversely affect the status of the Property with respect to the proposed use thereof 
by LESSEE.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to require LESSOR to issue 
any Governmental Approval.  In the event that (i) any of such applications for such 
Governmental Approvals should be finally rejected; (ii) any Governmental Approval issued to 
LESSEE is canceled, expires, lapses, or is otherwise withdrawn or terminated by governmental 
authority; (iii) LESSEE determines that such Governmental Approvals may not be obtained in a 
timely manner; (iv) LESSEE determines that any soil boring tests, structural analysis, or title 
examination is unsatisfactory; (v) LESSEE determines that the Premises is no longer technically 
or structurally compatible for its use, or (vi) LESSEE, in its sole discretion, determines that the 
use the Premises is obsolete or unnecessary, LESSEE shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement prior to commencing installation of its equipment or any other work on the Premises 
or August 5, 2011, whichever is earlier.    Notice of LESSEE's exercise of its right to terminate 
shall be given to LESSOR prior to such time in writing by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, and shall be effective upon the mailing of such notice by LESSEE.  All rentals paid to 
said termination date, if applicable, shall be retained by LESSOR.  Upon such termination, this 
Agreement shall be of no further force or effect except to the extent of the representations, 
warranties and indemnities made by each Party to the other hereunder.  Otherwise, the LESSEE 
shall have no further obligations for the payment of rent to LESSOR.   

 
 
 512



9. INDEMNIFICATION.  LESSEE shall indemnify and hold harmless LESSOR 
against any claim of liability or loss from personal injury or property damage resulting from or 
arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of LESSEE, its employees, contractors or 
agents, except to the extent such claims or damages may be due to or caused by the negligence or 
willful misconduct of LESSOR, or its employees, contractors or agents. 

10.   INSURANCE.  LESSEE agrees that at its own cost and expense, it will 
continuously maintain commercial general liability insurance covering LESSEE’s work and 
operations upon the Property with limits not less than $1,000,000 for injury to or death of one or 
more persons in any one occurrence and $1,000,000 for damage or destruction to property in any 
one occurrence. LESSEE will include LESSOR as an additional insured.    

LESSOR shall maintain general liability insurance insuring against liability for bodily injury, 
death or damage to personal property with combined single limits of One Million and No/100 
Dollars ($1,000,000) as well as all risk property insurance covering all LESSOR fixtures, 
improvements, and personal property at full replacement value with commercially reasonable 
deductibles.     

 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to be a waiver of sovereign 
immunity by LESSOR. 

11. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  Except for indemnification pursuant to 
paragraphs 9 and 31, neither Party shall be liable to the other, or any of their respective agents, 
representatives, employees for any lost revenue, lost profits, loss of technology, rights or 
services, incidental, punitive, indirect, special or consequential damages, loss of data, or 
interruption or loss of use of service, even if advised of the possibility of such damages, 
whether under theory of contract, tort (including negligence), strict liability or otherwise. 

12. INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.   

13. ACCESS TO TOWER.  Subject to the provisions of paragraph 39, LESSOR 
agrees the LESSEE shall have free access to the Premises at all times for the purpose of 
installing and maintaining the said equipment.  LESSOR shall furnish LESSEE with necessary 
means of access for the purpose of ingress and egress to the Premises.  It is agreed, however, 
that only authorized engineers, employees or properly authorized contractors of LESSEE or 
persons under their direct supervision will be permitted to enter said premises. Upon request 
by LESSOR, LESSEE shall provide LESSOR with a list of the names and contact information 
of all such persons authorized to enter the Premises, and shall update such list as changes 
occur. 

14.  TOWER COMPLIANCE.  LESSOR covenants that it will keep the Tower in 
good repair as required by all Laws (as defined in Paragraph 35 below). The LESSOR shall 
also comply with all rules and regulations enforced by the Federal Communications 
Commission (FCC) with regard to the lighting, marking and painting of towers.    

 No materials may be used in the installation of the antennas, transmission lines or 
platform/corral that will cause corrosion or rust or deterioration of the Tower structure or its 

 
 
 613



appurtenances.  LESSEE agrees that it shall not perform any welding on any portion of the Tower, 
nor allow any penetration of any part of the Tower, except pursuant to plans and specifications, 
approved by the LESSOR and prepared by a qualified third party consultant approved by the 
LESSOR and LESSEE. LESSEE shall be responsible for any costs associated with obtaining such 
plans and specifications.  LESSEE shall not place or store any equipment or materials on the 
Tower, in the equipment compound or the Property that are not actively in use exclusively for radio 
communications services as contemplated at this site by this Lease.  LESSEE shall place around 
the perimeter of the ground space portion of the Premises a security fence and landscaping which 
meets LESSOR’s approval. 
 
 All antenna(s) on the Tower must be identified by a marking fastened securely to its bracket 
on the Tower and all transmission lines are to be tagged at the conduit opening where such lines 
enter any user's equipment space. 
 
 LESSOR hereby agrees that, if because of LESSEE’s operations on the Premises, any 
laws or regulations of the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”), FCC or any other relevant 
governmental agency or body require or recommend that LESSEE’s antennas be lit and/or 
marked, LESSEE shall install and maintain any required lighting and markings.  LESSOR will 
permit LESSEE access to all portions of the Premises that LESSEE may need in order to check 
and replace such required or recommended lighting or markings. 
 
 Not later than fifteen (15) days following the execution of this Agreement, LESSOR shall 
supply to LESSEE copies of any received structural analysis reports with respect to the Tower and 
throughout the Term, LESSOR shall supply to LESSEE copies of any future structural analysis 
reports received with respect to the Tower promptly after the receipt of the same. 
 
 LESSOR and LESSEE agree that LESSOR may lease space on the Tower to third parties, 
and that such collocation by third parties may necessitate replacement, expansion or 
improvements to the platform and corral on the Tower on which LESSEE's equipment will be 
located. LESSOR and LESSEE agree that any Temporary Relocation necessitated by collocation 
on the Tower by third parties shall be subject to all of the terms and requirements of this 
Section Fourteen (14). 
 
 
            Upon request of the LESSOR, LESSEE agrees to relocate its equipment on a temporary basis 
to another location on the Property, hereinafter referred to as the “Temporary Relocation,” for the 
purpose of LESSOR performing maintenance, repair or similar work at the Property or on the Tower 
provided:  
 

a. The Temporary Relocation is similar to LESSEE’s existing location in size and is 
fully compatible for LESSEE’s use, in LESSEE’s reasonable determination; 

 
b. LESSOR credits against LESSEE’s rent obligation ½ of  the costs incurred by 

LESSEE for relocating LESSEE’s equipment to the Temporary Relocation and 
improving the Temporary Relocation so that it is fully compatible for the LESSEE’s 
use, in LESSEE’s reasonable determination;  

 
 
 714



 
c.  LESSOR gives LESSEE at least one hundred fifty (150) days written notice prior to 

requiring LESSEE to relocate, except in exigent circumstances where public health 
or safety requires Temporary Relocation on shorter notice, in which case LESSOR 
shall provide notice to LESSEE as soon as it can be determined that Temporary 
Relocation will be necessary; 

 
d. LESSEE’s use at the Premises is not unreasonably interrupted or diminished during 

the relocation and LESSEE is allowed, if necessary, in LESSEE’s reasonable 
determination, to place a temporary installation on the Property during any such 
relocation; and 

 
e. Upon the completion of any maintenance, repair or similar work by LESSOR, 

LESSEE is permitted to return to its original location from the temporary location.  
 

15. INTERFERENCE.  LESSEE agrees to install equipment of the type and 
frequency which will not cause harmful interference which is measurable in accordance with 
then existing industry standards to any equipment of LESSOR or other lessees of the Property 
which existed on the Property prior to the date this Agreement is executed by the Parties and 
lessees which are co-locating on the Tower simultaneous with LESSEE.  LESSEE 
acknowledges that Verizon Wireless is co-locating on the Tower simultaneous with LESSEE.  
In the event any after-installed LESSEE's equipment causes such interference, and after 
LESSOR has notified LESSEE in writing of such interference, LESSEE will take all 
commercially reasonable steps necessary to correct and eliminate the interference, including 
but not limited to, at LESSEE’s option, powering down such equipment and later powering up 
such equipment for intermittent testing.  In no event will LESSOR be entitled to terminate this 
Agreement or relocate the equipment as long as LESSEE is making a good faith effort to 
remedy the interference issue.  LESSOR agrees that LESSOR (except for any public safety 
equipment of LESSOR) and/or any other tenants of the Property who currently have or in the 
future take possession of the Property will be permitted to install only such after-installed 
equipment that is of the type and frequency which will not cause harmful interference which is 
measurable in accordance with then existing industry standards to the then existing equipment 
of LESSEE.  The Parties acknowledge that there will not be an adequate remedy at law for 
noncompliance with the provisions of this Paragraph and therefore, either Party shall have the 
right to equitable remedies, such as, without limitation, injunctive relief and specific 
performance. LESSEE further agrees to install FCC type accepted or approved equipment of 
the type and frequency which will not cause harmful interference which is measurable in 
accordance with then existing industry standards to any public safety equipment of LESSOR, 
either existing or later installed on or adjacent to the Property.  In the event of such 
interference to such public safety equipment, LESSEE shall immediately remedy such 
interference upon notice from LESSOR utilizing the FCC’s “Best Practices Guide”. 

16. REMOVAL AT END OF TERM.  LESSEE shall, upon expiration of the Term, or 
within ninety (90) days after any earlier termination of the Agreement, remove its building(s), 
antenna(s), equipment, conduits, fixtures and all personal property and restore the Premises to 

 
 
 815



its original condition, reasonable wear and tear and casualty damage not caused by LESSEE’S 
activities excepted.  LESSOR agrees and acknowledges that all of the equipment, conduits, 
fixtures and personal property of LESSEE shall remain the personal property of LESSEE and 
LESSEE shall have the right to remove the same at any time during the Term, whether or not 
said items are considered fixtures and attachments to real property under applicable Laws.  If 
such time for removal causes LESSEE to remain on the Premises after termination of this 
Agreement, LESSEE shall pay rent at the then existing monthly rate or on the then existing 
monthly pro-rata basis if based upon a longer payment term, until such time as the removal of 
the building, antenna structure, fixtures and all personal property are completed. 

17. HOLDOVER.  LESSEE has no right to retain possession of the Premises or any 
part thereof beyond the expiration of that removal period set forth in Paragraph 16 herein, 
unless the Parties are negotiating a new lease or lease extension in good faith.  In the event that 
the Parties are not in the process of negotiating a new lease or lease extension in good faith, 
and LESSEE holds over in violation of Paragraph 16 and this Paragraph 17, then LESSEE 
shall be liable to LESSOR for rent at the rate of one hundred-fifty percent (150%) of the rent 
applicable during the month immediately preceding such expiration or earlier termination or 
the actual damages suffered by LESSOR as a result of such holdover, whichever is greater. 

18. INTENTIONALLY OMITTED. 

19. INTENTIONALLY OMITTED. 

20. QUIET ENJOYMENT.  LESSOR covenants that LESSEE, on paying the rent and 
performing the covenants herein, shall peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy the 
Premises, subject to the terms of this Agreement. 

21. TITLE.  LESSOR represents and warrants to LESSEE as of the execution date of 
this Agreement, and covenants during the Term that LESSOR is seized of good and sufficient 
title and interest to the Property and has full authority to enter into and execute this Agreement 
and that here are no liens or judgments affecting LESSOR's title to the same.   

22. INTEGRATION.  It is agreed and understood that this Agreement contains all 
agreements, promises and understandings between LESSOR and LESSEE and that no verbal 
or oral agreements, promises or understandings shall be binding upon either LESSOR or 
LESSEE in any dispute, controversy or proceeding at law, and any addition, variation or 
modification to this Agreement shall be void and ineffective unless made in writing signed by 
the Parties or in a written acknowledgment in the case provided in Paragraph 3.  In the event 
any provision of the Agreement is found to be invalid or unenforceable, such finding shall not 
affect the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement.  The 
failure of either Party to insist upon strict performance of any of the terms or conditions of this 
Agreement or to exercise any of its rights under the Agreement shall not waive such rights and 
such Party shall have the right to enforce such rights at any time and take such action as may 
be lawful and authorized under this Agreement, in law or in equity. 

23. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement and the performance thereof shall be 
governed, interpreted, construed and regulated by the Laws of the State in which the Property 

 
 
 916



is located.  Exclusive jurisdiction and venue of any dispute or matters involving litigation 
between the Parties shall be in the courts of Fluvanna County, Virginia. 

24. ASSIGNMENT.  This Agreement may be sold, assigned or transferred by the 
LESSEE without any approval or consent of the LESSOR to the LESSEE's principal, affiliates, 
subsidiaries of its principal or to any entity which acquires all or substantially all of LESSEE's 
assets in the market defined by the Federal Communications Commission in which the 
Property is located by reason of a merger, acquisition or other business reorganization.  As to 
other parties, this Agreement may not be sold, assigned or transferred without the written consent 
of the LESSOR, which such consent will not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned.  
No change of stock ownership, partnership interest or control of LESSEE or transfer upon 
partnership or corporate dissolution of LESSEE shall constitute an assignment hereunder.  No 
such sale, assignment or transfer of this Agreement shall release the selling, assigning or 
transferring LESSEE from the obligations of this Agreement.   LESSEE shall not sublet or 
otherwise allow any third party to occupy any of the Premises without the express written 
consent of LESSOR, at its sole discretion. 

25. NOTICES.  All notices hereunder must be in writing and shall be deemed validly 
given if sent by certified mail, return receipt requested or by commercial courier, provided the 
courier's regular business is delivery service and provided further that it guarantees delivery to 
the addressee by the end of the next business day following the courier's receipt from the 
sender, addressed as follows (or any other address that the Party to be notified may have 
designated to the sender by like notice): 

LESSOR: Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County, Virginia 
  ATTENTION:  County Administrator 
  P.O. Box 540 

132 Main Street 
  Palmyra, Virginia 22963 
 
LESSEE:  USCOC of Virginia RSA #3, Inc. 
  Attention: Real Estate 
  8410 West Bryn Mawr, Ave, Suite 700 
  Chicago, IL 60631 
  RE: 765338 Fork Union 

 

Notice shall be effective three (3) days following deposit postage prepaid in the U.S. 
Mail, if sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, or upon actual receipt or refusal as shown 
on the courier’s receipt obtained pursuant to the foregoing. 

26. SUCCESSORS.  This Agreement shall extend to and bind the heirs, personal 
representatives, successors and assigns of the Parties hereto. 

27.  PLATFORM CONSTRUCTION.  LESSOR and LESSEE agree and acknowledge 
that LESSEE shall construct on the Tower a new platform and corral (the “New Platform”) 
capable of accommodating LESSEE’s equipment as well as at least one (1) other set of 

 
 
 1017



comparable communications equipment that utilizes the same amount of area as LESSEE’s 
equipment (to include, without limitation, the communications equipment proposed to be 
installed pursuant to a lease being negotiated between LESSOR and Verizon Wireless for co-
location on the Tower (the “Verizon Wireless Lease”).  The New Platform will be in addition to 
the existing platform and corral on the Tower.   

 The work shall be performed by LESSEE pursuant to plans and specifications 
(specifying matters including but not limited to materials, cost & budget, methodology, 
insurance, bonding and timeline) approved by LESSOR.  All work performed by LESSEE shall 
be approved by LESSOR and completed in a good and workmanlike manner, and in accordance 
with the approved plans and specifications,  the provisions of Paragraph 14 of this Lease, and the 
provisions of Exhibit “D” attached hereto and made a part hereof.  The plans and specifications 
shall be prepared and all materials, insurance, bonding and work provided and performed at  
LESSEE's  cost and expense.    LESSEE shall achieve substantial completion of the New 
Platform by Septmeber 1, 2011, time being of the essence, to permit full installation and 
operation of LESSEE’s equipment together with all equipment to be installed pursuant to the 
Verizon Wireless Lease on the New Platform on or before October 1st , 2011.  

  

28.  RECORDING.  LESSOR agrees to execute a Memorandum of this Agreement acceptable in 
form to LESSOR, which LESSEE shall record with the appropriate recording officer. In the 
event the Memorandum of this Agreement is executed prior to the Commencement Date, the 
date set forth in the Memorandum of Lease shall be for recording purposes only and bears no 
reference to commencement of either the Term or rent payments. In such event, LESSEE and 
LESSOR shall execute and LESSEE shall thereafter record an amendment to the Memorandum 
reflecting the Commencement Date and the date on which the initial term expires. 

29. DEFAULT.   

a. In the event there is a breach by LESSEE with respect to any of the 
provisions of this Agreement or its obligations under it, including the payment of rent, LESSOR 
shall give LESSEE written notice of such breach.  After receipt of such written notice, LESSEE 
shall have fifteen (15) days in which to cure any monetary breach and thirty (30) days in which 
to cure any non-monetary breach, provided LESSEE shall have such extended period as may be 
required beyond the thirty (30) days if the nature of the cure is such that it reasonably requires 
more than thirty (30) days and LESSEE commences the cure within the thirty (30) day period 
and thereafter continuously and diligently pursues the cure to completion.  LESSOR may not 
maintain any action or effect any remedies for default against LESSEE unless and until LESSEE 
has failed to cure the breach within the time periods provided in this Paragraph. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing to the contrary, it shall be a default under this Agreement if LESSEE fails, within 
five (5) days after receipt of written notice of such breach, to perform an obligation required to 
be performed by LESSEE if the failure to perform such an obligation interferes with the ability 
of LESSOR or any other tenant of the Property to conduct its business on the Property, violates 
any applicable environmental law, or would increase the cost any fire and extended coverage 
insurance of Lessor; provided, however, that if the nature of LESSEE’s obligation is such that 
more than five (5) days after such notice is reasonably required for its performance, then it shall 

 
 
 1118



not be a default under this Agreement if performance is commenced within such five (5) day 
period and thereafter diligently pursued to completion. 

b. In the event there is a breach by LESSOR with respect to any of the 
provisions of this Agreement or its obligations under it, LESSEE shall give LESSOR written 
notice of such breach.  After receipt of such written notice, LESSOR shall have thirty (30) days 
in which to cure any such breach, provided LESSOR shall have such extended period as may be 
required beyond the thirty (30) days if the nature of the cure is such that it reasonably requires 
more than thirty (30) days and LESSOR commences the cure within the thirty (30) day period 
and thereafter continuously and diligently pursues the cure to completion. LESSEE may not 
maintain any action or effect any remedies for default against LESSOR unless and until 
LESSOR has failed to cure the breach within the time periods provided in this Paragraph.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing to the contrary, it shall be a default under this Agreement if 
LESSOR fails, within five (5) days after receipt of written notice of such breach, to perform an 
obligation required to be performed by LESSOR if the failure to perform such an obligation 
interferes with LESSEE’s ability to conduct its business on the Property; provided, however, that 
if the nature of LESSOR’s obligation is such that more than five (5) days after such notice is 
reasonably required for its performance, then it shall not be a default under this Agreement if 
performance is commenced within such five (5) day period and thereafter diligently pursued to 
completion. 

30.  REMEDIES.  Upon a default, the non-defaulting Party may at its option (but without 
obligation to do so), perform the defaulting Party’s duty or obligation on the defaulting Party’s 
behalf, including but not limited to the obtaining of reasonably required insurance policies.  The 
costs and expenses of any such performance by the non-defaulting Party shall be due and payable 
by the defaulting Party upon invoice therefor.  In the event of a default by either Party with 
respect to a material provision of this Agreement, without limiting the non-defaulting Party in the 
exercise of any right or remedy which the non-defaulting Party may have by reason of such 
default, the non-defaulting Party may terminate the Agreement and/or pursue any remedy now or 
hereafter available to the non-defaulting Party under the Laws or judicial decisions of the state in 
which the Premises are located; provided, however, each Party shall use reasonable efforts to 
mitigate its damages in connection with a default by the other Party.   

31.  ENVIRONMENTAL. 

a.  LESSOR will be responsible for all obligations of compliance with any and all 
environmental and industrial hygiene laws, including any regulations, guidelines, standards, or 
policies of any governmental authorities regulating or imposing standards of liability or 
standards of conduct with regard to any environmental or industrial hygiene conditions or 
concerns as may now or at any time hereafter be in effect, that are or were in any way related to 
activity now conducted in, on, or in any way related to the Tower or Property, unless such 
conditions or concerns are caused in whole or in part by the activities of LESSEE at the 
Premises. 

b.  Both LESSOR and  LESSEE shall hold the other harmless and indemnify the other 
from and assume all duties, responsibility and liability, at each party’s sole cost and expense, for 
all duties, responsibilities, and liability (for payment of penalties, sanctions, forfeitures, losses, 

 
 
 1219



costs, or damages) and for responding to any action, notice, claim, order, summons, citation, 
directive, litigation, investigation or proceeding which is in any way related to: a) failure to 
comply with any environmental or industrial hygiene law relating to the Tower or Property, 
including without limitation any regulations, guidelines, standards, or policies of any 
governmental authorities regulating or imposing standards of liability or standards of conduct 
with regard to any environmental or industrial hygiene concerns or conditions as may now or at 
any time hereafter be in effect, except to the extent that such non-compliance results from 
concerns or conditions caused in whole or in part by the other party; and (b) any environmental 
or industrial hygiene conditions arising out of or in any way related to the condition of the Tower 
or Property or activities conducted thereon by each respective party, except to the extent that 
such conditions are caused in whole or in part by the other party’s activities at Tower or 
Property. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section, LESSEE shall have 
no responsibility, duty or obligation hereunder with respect to or by reason of any environmental 
or industrial hygiene conditions present or located at or on or upon or the Tower or Property (or 
any part thereof) as of the date of this Lease 

32.  CASUALTY.  In the event of damage by fire or other casualty to the Tower or 
Premises not the fault of LESSEE that cannot reasonably be expected to be repaired within forty-
five (45) days following same or, if the Property is damaged by fire or other casualty so that such 
damage may reasonably be expected to disrupt LESSEE's operations at the Premises for more 
than forty-five (45) days, then LESSEE may, at any time following such fire or other casualty, 
provided LESSOR has not completed the restoration required to permit LESSEE to resume its 
operation at the Premises, terminate this Agreement upon fifteen (15) days prior written notice to 
LESSOR.  Any such notice of termination shall cause this Agreement to expire with the same 
force and effect as though the date set forth in such notice were the date originally set as the 
expiration date of this Agreement and the Parties shall make an appropriate adjustment, as of 
such termination date, with respect to payments due to the other under this Agreement.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the rent shall abate during the period of repair following such 
fire or other casualty in proportion to the degree to which LESSEE’s use of the Premises is 
impaired.  In addition, in the event of damage to the Tower or Property by fire or other casualty, 
if LESSOR determines that the Tower is no longer needed as a water supply facility or that 
repair or restoration of the Tower or Property is impracticable, LESSOR may, at any time 
following such fire or other casualty, terminate this Agreement upon fifteen (15) days prior 
written notice to LESSEE.  Any such notice of termination shall cause this Agreement to expire 
with the same force and effect as though the date set forth in such notice were the date originally 
set as the expiration date of this Agreement and the Parties shall make an appropriate adjustment, 
as of such termination date, with respect to payments due to the other under this Agreement.   

33.  CONDEMNATION.  In the event of any condemnation of all or any portion of the 
Premises, this Agreement shall terminate as to the part so taken as of the date the condemning 
authority takes title or possession, whichever occurs first.  If as a result of a partial condemnation 
of the Premises or Tower, LESSEE, in LESSEE’s sole discretion, is unable to use the Premises 
for the purposes intended hereunder, or if such condemnation may reasonably be expected to 
disrupt LESSEE's operations at the Premises for more than forty-five (45) days, LESSEE may, at 
LESSEE’s option, to be exercised in writing within fifteen (15) days after LESSOR shall have 
given LESSEE written notice of such taking (or in the absence of such notice, within fifteen (15) 

 
 
 1320



days after the condemning authority shall have taken possession) terminate this Agreement as of 
the date the condemning authority takes such possession.  LESSEE may on its own behalf make 
a claim in any condemnation proceeding involving the Premises for losses related to the 
equipment, conduits, fixtures, its relocation costs and its damages and losses (but not for the loss 
of its leasehold interest).  Any such notice of termination shall cause this Agreement to expire 
with the same force and effect as though the date set forth in such notice were the date originally 
set as the expiration date of this Agreement and the Parties shall make an appropriate adjustment 
as of such termination date with respect to payments due to the other under this Agreement.  If 
LESSEE does not terminate this Agreement in accordance with the foregoing, this Agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect as to the portion of the Premises remaining, except that the 
rent shall be reduced in the same proportion as the rentable area of the Premises taken bears to 
the total rentable area of the Premises.   

34.  SUBMISSION OF AGREEMENT/PARTIAL INVALIDITY/AUTHORITY.  The 
submission of this Agreement for examination does not constitute an offer to lease the Premises 
and this Agreement becomes effective only upon the full execution of this Agreement by the 
Parties. If any provision herein is invalid or unenforceable, it shall be considered deleted from 
this Agreement and shall not invalidate the remaining provisions of this Agreement. Each of the 
Parties hereto warrants to the other that the person or persons executing this Agreement on 
behalf of such Party has the full right, power and authority to enter into and execute this 
Agreement on such Party's behalf and that no consent from any other person or entity is 
necessary as a condition precedent to the legal effect of this Agreement. 

35.  APPLICABLE LAWS.  During the Term, LESSOR shall maintain the Property and 
all structural elements of the Tower in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
ordinances, directives, covenants, easements, zoning and land use regulations, and restrictions of 
record, permits, building codes, and the requirements of any applicable fire insurance 
underwriter or rating bureau, now in effect or which may hereafter come into effect (including, 
without limitation, the Americans with Disabilities Act and laws regulating hazardous 
substances) (collectively “Laws”).  Provided, however, that LESSEE shall at all times, at 
LESSEE’s sole cost and expense, comply with (a) all Laws applicable to LESSEE’s use of the 
Premises; and (b) all building codes requiring modifications to the Tower or Premises due to the 
improvements being made by LESSEE in the Premises. 

36.  SURVIVAL.  The provisions of the Agreement relating to indemnification from one 
Party to the other Party shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
Additionally, any provisions of this Agreement which require performance subsequent to the 
termination or expiration of this Agreement shall also survive such termination or expiration. 

37.  CAPTIONS.  The captions contained in this Agreement are inserted for convenience 
only and are not intended to be part of the Agreement. They shall not affect or be utilized in the 
construction or interpretation of the Agreement. 

38.  COMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES OF LESSOR AND OTHER TENANTS.  
Lessor may from time to time operate governmental communications facilities, including but not 
limited to public safety equipment, on the Tower.  In addition, Lessor may permit operations on 
the Tower from time to time by one or more other tenants.  Lessee's use of the Tower (including 

 
 
 1421



the platform/corral, if applicable, and the New Platform) and the Land Space shall be non-
exclusive of the use of the Tower and the Property by Lessor and/or other tenants, whether 
commercial or non-commercial, whose use may include but shall not be limited to, attachment of 
antennas to the Tower at any unoccupied attachment locations not inconsistent with the 
specifications set forth in Exhibits “A” and “B” hereto, installation of any and all lines, anchors, 
connections, devices, equipment and line bridge facilities for operation of the antennas and 
connection to ground equipment, and construction of one or more equipment shelters for use in 
connection with such antennas and equipment.   Lessee's lines, conduits, connections, devices, 
and equipment between the Tower Space and the Land Space shall be located so as to 
accommodate the possibility of such operations by the Lessor and one or more other tenants, 
(including Verizon Wireless) and so as not to unreasonably disturb or prevent such operations.  
Lessee agrees to cooperate with Lessor in connection with the addition or installation of 
equipment for other communications facilities on the Tower, including possible temporary 
relocation or interruption of Lessee’s facilities in order to construct a larger platform.   

39.  WATER SUPPLY FACILITY; PROTECTION OF PUBLIC.  LESSEE 
acknowledges that LESSOR is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia and that 
the Property and Tower are first and foremost a water supply facility serving citizens within the 
County of Fluvanna and the Fork Union Sanitary District, as such district may exist from time to 
time.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, at no time shall LESSEE’s 
activities at the Premises interfere with such operation of the Property and Tower or violate any 
Laws relating to such operation.  LESSOR reserves the right to construct, repair, maintain, 
modify, improve, replace and operate the water supply facility as LESSOR sees fit, in 
LESSOR’s sole discretion, provided however, that LESSOR will endeavor to minimize the 
impact, interference or interruption to LESSEE of any such activity.  LESSEE specifically 
acknowledges that the Property and Tower may be included in LESSOR’s public safety program 
and that LESSOR may be required by Laws or may determine in its sole discretion that it is 
necessary for LESSOR to institute increased security measures for the Property and/or Tower at 
a later time and from time and time in order to protect against actual or potential threats. Such 
measures may include but shall not be limited to requiring that the Property, the Tower and any 
easements be secured in a manner permitting the access to be opened only by LESSOR’s 
designee and/or requiring that any person accessing the Premises by or on behalf of LESSEE be 
accompanied by LESSOR’s designee.  LESSOR shall promptly notify LESSEE of any change in 
security measures that would affect LESSEE’s free access to the Premises, shall provide 
LESSEE with instructions as to how access to the Premises shall be provided to LESSEE, and 
shall to the extent reasonably possible and upon reasonable notice, provide LESSEE with access 
to the Premises seven (7) days a week, twenty-four (24) hours a day in the event of emergency 
and during normal business hours for routine operations. 

40.  ATTORNEY’S FEES.  In the event of any litigation arising under this Agreement, 
the substantially-prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs and expenses, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred from time to time and at all levels of proceedings, including 
but not limited to appeals, collections and bankruptcy. 

41.   DUPLICATE ORIGINALS.  This Agreement is executed in duplicate originals, 
either of which shall be equally authentic.   

 
 
 1522



 

SIGNATURE PAGE IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING 

 
 
 1623



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have set their hands and affixed their 
respective seals the day and year first above written. 

     LESSOR: 
     BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA 
     COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 
     By: ___________________________ 
 
     Print Name: _____________________ 
 
     Title: ___________________________ 
 
     Date: ___________________________ 

 
 
      LESSEE: USCOC of Virginia RSA #3, Inc. 
 
 

By: ____________________________ 
  
 
Date: ____________________________ 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
FLUVANNA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
 

 
 
 1724



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Description of  “Premises” 
 

 
 
 1825



EXHIBIT “B” 
Survey 

 

 
 
 1926



 
EXHIBIT “C” 

 
Equipment List to be installed by LESSEE 

within LESSEE Premises 
 

(1) 12’ x 20’Equipment Shelter  
(1) Emergency Propane Generator 
(1) Propane Storage Tank 
(12) panel type antennas 
Sector 1 (alpha) – 4 antennas 
Antel WPA 80063 (3) – 94.7”x11.8”x3.9” – 19lbs 
Powerwave P65-17-XL-R (1) – 96”x12”x6” – 59lbs 
Sector 2 (beta) – 4 antennas 
Antel WPA 80063 (3) – 94.7”x11.8”x3.9” – 19lbs 
Powerwave P65-17-XL-R (1) – 96”x12”x6” – 59lbs 
Sector 3 (gamma) – 4 antennas 
Antel WPA 80063 (3) – 94.7”x11.8”x3.9” – 19lbs 
Powerwave P65-17-XL-R (1) – 96”x12”x6” – 59lbs 
(18) coax lines – 1 5/8” diameter 
TX –  869.04 – 879.99 MHz 

890.01 - 891.48 MHz 
704MHz – 710MHz 
 

RX –  824.04 – 834.99MHz 
845.01 – 846.48 MHz 
734MHz – 740MHz 

 
Along with all other ancillary and required equipment, Rights-of-Way and 
Easements as shown in the construction drawings dated 7/6/11 drawn by BTM 
Engineering and attached hereto as a visual description of Exhibit “C”.  This 
equipment shall be operated and maintained during the life of this Agreement 
and considered a material part of the LESSEE’S Premises.  Subject to the 
Provisions of this Lease, LESSEE may make like-for-like changes to this 
equipment list at anytime, without LESSOR’S consent for any reasonable 
maintenance concern that would hinder LESSEE’S coverage capabilities at 
this site. 

 
 
 2027



 
 
 21

  
 

EXHIBIT “D” 

NEW PLATFORM CONSTRUCTION  

1. LESSEE shall cause all materials to be provided and work to be performed at LESSEE’s 
sole cost and expense, and (i) in accordance with the Lease, this Exhibit “D”, and the plans and 
specifications therefor approved by LESSOR within 5 business days of submittal, (ii) free of 
liens; (iii) in a good and workmanlike manner, (iv) in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, 
ordinances and regulations; and (v) with diligence.   

2. Without limitation, LESSEE shall (i) cause all welds to be inspected by a third party firm 
designated by LESSOR; (ii) repair all interior and exterior paint damaged in the course of the 
work in accordance with paint specifications to be provided by LESSOR; (iii) cause all paint 
repairs to be inspected by a third party firm designated by LESSOR; and (iv) notify LESSOR 
prior to commencing work on the Property, coordinate the work schedule with LESSOR, and 
conduct all work in a manner which does not interfere with the operation of the Property and 
Tower for water supply purposes or with access by water utility staff.   

3. LESSEE will commence construction promptly upon LESSOR’s approval of the plans 
and specifications provided by LESSEE and LESSEE’s receipt of all Government Approvals 
necessary for the construction of the New Platform.  LESSEE shall achieve substantial 
completion of construction by Septmeber 1, 2011, time being of the essence, to permit full 
installation and operation of LESSEE’S equipment together with all equipment to be installed 
pursuant to the Verizon Wireless Lease on the New Platform on or before October 1, 2011.    

4. Upon installation on the Tower, the New Platform, together with all appurtenances to the 
structure, shall automatically become the property of LESSOR, free and clear of any and all liens 
and encumbrances, without the necessity for any separately documented bill of sale.   

5. In addition to the insurance required by the Lease, until the construction of the New 
Platform, including but not limited to all inspections and the repair of all interior and exterior 
paint damage, has been completed and accepted by LESSOR, LESSEE will carry, at its own cost 
and expense, the following insurance in connection with LESSEE’s work and operations upon 
the Property: (i) Workers’ Compensation Insurance in the amounts required by Virginia law; and 
(ii) “builder’s risk” property insurance in the amount of at least $500,000.00 providing coverage 
against loss or damage to any improvements on the Property, by fire or other casualty and theft, 
naming LESSOR as an additional insured.  LESSEE shall provide insurance by a company 
licensed to do business in Virginia.  LESSEE shall provide LESSOR with certificates evidencing 
such insurance prior to commencing work on the Property.  Nothing contained in this Exhibit 
“D” shall be deemed a waiver of LESSOR’S sovereign immunity.  Acceptance of any work by 
LESSOR shall not be deemed a waiver or release of claims arising from (i) any failure of 
LESSEE or the work to comply with the terms of the Lease, this Exhibit “D”, or the approved 
plans and specifications; or (ii) faulty or defective work.   

6. Capitalized terms not defined in this Exhibit “D” shall have the meanings set forth in the 
Lease. 

 

28



29

ATTACHMENT C



30



31



3
2

A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 D



MOTION:  I move that the Board of Supervisors authorize the County Administrator to execute the lease and 
Memorandum of Lease Agreement (MOL) on behalf of the County, pending approval as to form by the County 
Attorney’s office.   
 
AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS August 3, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  Weber City Water Tank Lease and MOL with CELLCO Partnership (Verizon Wireless)  
 
TIMING:  This process follows the legal requirements for leases of real property in the Commonwealth. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  This action implements the type of lease agreement envisioned in the County’s contract 
with CityScape Consultants, in part, regarding the management of leases for telecommunication facilities on 
County-owned properties.  Further, this action is consistent with the intent of the Telecommunications Master Plan 
which the Board will formally consider in the near future, along with public comments received during the 
development of the master plan regarding the desirability of the County using its property for such facilities.   
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  The revenue generated by this agreement will be dedicated to the Fork Union Sanitary 
District (FUSD) and will result in a net payment of $21,600 annually for the first year of the lease term, with an 
annual rent increase of 3% per year for the remainder of the five year initial term and the automatic extensions of 
four additional five year terms.  Since negotiations for this lease precede the County’s contract with CityScape 
Consultants, they have agreed to manage the agreement at no cost thus resulting in 25% more revenue for the 
County than with the lease agreement with U.S. Cellular. 
 
DISCUSSION:  The leasing of County properties for telecommunication facilities, including the Weber City and 
Omohundro Water tanks, is envisioned in the Telecommunications Master Plan that the Board will consider in 
September, along with the County’s contract with CityScape Consultants to manage such lease agreements on 
behalf of the County.  The leasing of water towers, in particular, is of benefit to the Fork Union Sanitary District 
(FUSD) better enabling them to pay  back existing debt to the County or pay for more capital improvements as 
necessary and prudent.   
 
This lease agreement presented to the Board of Supervisors has undergone months of rigorous negotiating with the 
Lessee as to form and content by Staff, the County Attorney’s Office, and CityScape consultants.  It provides for a 
competitive monthly revenue stream and comprises the second leased tenant on the Weber City Water Tower.   
 
Please contact staff if there are any questions or concerns regarding this proposed action. 
 
 
Staff: Darren Coffey, Planning Director 
 John Robins, Public Works Director 
 
Attachments:   A) Memorandum of Lease Agreement (MOL) 
  B) Water Tower Lease Agreement 
  C) Site Plan Sketch 
  D) Survey of Leased Premises (not a boundary survey) 
 
************************************** 
County Administrator’s Use Only 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

1



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 1

Tax Map:  51-A-78 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Upon Recording, Return to: 
 
Pennington Law Firm, L.L.C. 
Post Office Box 2844 
Columbia, South Carolina 29202 
 
STATE OF VIRGINIA  ) 
     )      
COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  )       
 

MEMORANDUM OF WATER TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
     This Memorandum of WATER TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT is made this _____ day 
of _____________, 201__, between the BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA 
COUNTY, VIRGINIA, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, with a 
mailing address of 132 Main Street, Palmyra, Virginia 22963, hereinafter collectively referred to as 
“LESSOR”, and CELLCO PARTNERSHIP d/b/a Verizon Wireless, with its principal office 
located at One Verizon Way, Mail Stop 4AW100, Basking Ridge, New Jersey 07920, hereinafter 
referred to as “LESSEE”. LESSOR and LESSEE are at times collectively referred to hereinafter as 
the “Parties” or individually as the “Party”. 
 
1.  LESSOR and LESSEE entered into a Water Tower Lease Agreement (the “Agreement”) 

for an initial term of five (5) years, commencing on the Commencement Date. The 
Agreement shall automatically be extended for four (4) additional five (5) year terms 
unless the LESSEE terminates it at the end of the then current term by giving the 
LESSOR written notice of the intent to terminate at least six (6) months prior to the end 
of the then current term.   

 
2. PREMISES. LESSOR hereby leases to the LESSEE a portion of that certain space, 

consisting of twelve (12) antenna mount locations (“the Tower Space”) on the LESSOR's 
water tower, hereinafter referred to as the “Tower”, located at 2984 James Madison 
Highway, Bremo Bluff, Virginia 23022, as shown on the Tax Map of the County of 
Fluvanna as Tax Map Number 51-A-78, and being further described in Deed Book 74, 
Page 129, as recorded in the Clerk’s Office of the Circuit Court of Fluvanna County, 
Virginia (the entirety of LESSOR’s property on which the Tower is located is referred to 

2

ATTACHMENT A



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 2

hereinafter as the “Property”), together with a 25’ x 48’ area of land within the Property 
(the “Land Space”) for the installation of LESSEE's equipment building and generator; 
together with the non-exclusive right (“the Right of Way”) for ingress and egress, seven (7) 
days a week, twenty-four (24) hours a day (subject to Paragraph 37 of the Agreement), on 
foot or motor vehicle, including trucks, and for the installation and maintenance of utility 
wires, poles, cables, conduits, and pipes over, under, or along a twenty foot (20’) wide 
right-of-way extending from the nearest public right-of-way, James Madison Highway, to 
the Land Space; and together with the non-exclusive use of any further rights of way (the 
“Further Rights of Way”) over and through the Property between the Land Space and the 
Tower Space for the installation and maintenance of utility wires, poles, cables, conduits, 
and pipes.   The Tower Space, Land Space, Right of Way and Further Rights of Way, if 
any, are substantially described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a part hereof and 
are collectively referred to hereinafter as the "Premises". The Premises are further depicted 
on the survey attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. In the event any public utility is unable to use 
the Right of Way or Further Rights of Way, the LESSOR may, in its sole discretion, agree 
to grant an additional right-of-way(s) either to the LESSEE or to the public utility. 
LESSOR and LESSEE acknowledge and agree that neither Exhibit “A” nor Exhibit “B” 
is a boundary survey of the Property and that Exhibits “A” and “B” are intended solely as 
exhibits for purposes of describing the LESSEE’s Premises. 

  
3. The Commencement Date of the Agreement, of which this is a Memorandum, shall be on 

the first day of the month LESSEE commences installation of the equipment on the 
Premises, but in no event later than March 1, 2012.  In the event the date LESSEE 
commences installation of the equipment on the Premises is prior to March 1, 2012 and 
such date falls between the 1st and 15th of the month, the Agreement shall commence on 
the 1st of that month and if the installation commences prior to March 1, 2012 and such 
date falls between the 16th and 31st of the month, then the Agreement shall commence on 
the 1st day of the following month (either of such dates or March 1, 2012 being the 
“Commencement Date”).   

  
4. The terms, covenants and provisions of the Agreement are hereby confirmed and shall 

extend to and be binding upon the respective heirs, successors, personal representatives 
and assigns of LESSOR and LESSEE. 

 
5. This Memorandum is not a complete summary of the Agreement.  Provisions in this 

Memorandum shall not be used in interpreting the Agreement.  In the event of a conflict 
between this Memorandum and the Agreement, the Agreement shall control. 

 
 [SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 

3



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 3

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, hereunto and to a duplicate hereof, LESSOR and LESSEE 
have caused this Memorandum to be duly executed. 
       
      LESSOR: 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA 
COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Print Name: _________________ 
 
Title: ________________________ 
 
Date: ________________________  

 
 
STATE OF VIRGINIA  )  
     ) ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  
COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  ) 
 
 I, ___________________, a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby certify 
that ______________________ personally came before me this day and acknowledged that s/he 
is the ______________________ of the BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA 
COUNTY, VIRGINIA, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and s/he, 
being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing MEMORANDUM OF WATER TOWER 
LEASE AGREEMENT as his/her own act and deed on behalf of the BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA.  
 
 WITNESS my hand and official Notarial Seal, this        day of                    , 201__. 
 
     ____________________________________                                             
       Notary Public 
My Commission Expires on the ____ day of ________, 2___. 
Registration number:   
 
SEAL: 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
Fluvanna County Attorney 
 

4



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 4

      LESSEE: 
 
      CELLCO PARTNERSHIP 
      D/B/A VERIZON WIRELESS  
 
      BY: _________________________ 
       David R. Heverling 
       Area Vice President Network  
         
      DATE:  ________________________ 
 
 
 
STATE OF MASSACHUSETTS  ) 
      )  ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
COUNTY OF WORCESTER  ) 
 

I, ___________________, a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby certify 
that David R. Heverling personally came before me this day and acknowledged that he is the 
Area Vice President Network of CELLCO PARTNERSHIP d/b/a Verizon Wireless, and that 
he, as Area Vice President Network, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing 
MEMORANDUM OF WATER TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT on behalf of CELLCO 
PARTNERSHIP d/b/a Verizon Wireless. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and official Notarial Seal, this        day of                    , 201__. 
 
      ___________________________________                                       
       Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
______________________ 

 
 
 
 
R:\VIRGINIA\COLOS AND LAND LEASES\Bremo Bluff\MOL.Bremo Bluff.doc 
 
 
 
 
 

5



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 5

EXHIBIT A 
 

WRITTEN METES AND BOUNDS OF THE PREMISES 
AND INGRESS/EGRESS AND UTILITIES RIGHT OF WAY 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
Lessee 20’ Access/Utility Right of Way (Described By Centerline) 
Bremo Bluff 
Bremo Bluff, Virginia 
 
Beginning at a iron rod found in the eastern right of way of James Madison Highway (U.S. 
Highway 15); said rod being a corner to Tax Map 59(A)138; thence N10°50'50"E, 539.95’ feet to 
the TRUE Point Of Beginning of a 20’ Access/Utility Easement; thence N88°13'47"E, 59.28 feet 
to a point passing a 10’ Utility Easement at 9.99’; thence S76°05'08"E, 35.96 feet to a point on 
the line of a 25’ x 48’ Lease Parcel as shown on a survey dated 19 July 2011 prepared by 
Thompson & Litton, Inc., Document No.  
11033-11, Sheet Number Z-1. 
 
Lessee 10’ Utility Easement (Described By Centerline) 
Bremo Bluff 
Bremo Bluff, Virginia 
 
Beginning at a combination power and telephone pole number B320F6; thence S10°51'19"W, 
54.78’ feet to a point in the northern edge of a Proposed Lessee 20’ Access/Utility Easement as 
shown on a survey dated 19 July 2011 prepared by Thompson & Litton, Inc., Document No. 
11033-11, Sheet Number Z-1. 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
New 25’ x 48’ Land Space  
Bremo Bluff 
Bremo Bluff, Virginia 
 
Beginning at the end of the proposed 20’ Access/Utility Easement; thence N11°58'22"E, 11.90 
feet to an iron rod set at the TRUE Point Of Beginning of the 25’ x 48’ Lease Parcel; thence 
S78°01'38"E, 48.00 feet to an iron rod set; thence S11°58'22"W, 25.00 feet to an iron rod set; 
thence N78°01'38"W, 48.00 feet to an iron rod set; thence N11°58'22"E, 25.00 feet to the TRUE 
Point Of Beginning and containing 0.028 Acres (1,200 Square Feet) as shown on a survey 
dated 19 July 2011 prepared by Thompson & Litton, Inc., Document No. 11033-11, Sheet 
Number Z-1. 

6



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 6

EXHIBIT B 
 

BOUNDARY SURVEY OF THE PREMISES 
AND INGRESS/EGRESS AND UTILITIES RIGHT OF WAY 

 

7



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 1

 
 WATER TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement, made this _____ day of __________________, 201__, between                 
the BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA, a political 
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, with its principal offices at 132 Main Street, 
Palmyra, Virginia 22963, hereinafter designated LESSOR and CELLCO PARTNERSHIP, a 
Delaware general partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless, with its principal offices at  One 
Verizon Way, Mail Stop 4AW100, Basking Ridge, New Jersey 07920 (telephone number 866-
862-4404),  hereinafter designated LESSEE.    The LESSOR and LESSEE are at times collectively 
referred to hereinafter as the “Parties” or individually as the “Party”. 
 

WITNESSETH 
 In consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and intending to be legally bound 
hereby, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

1.  PREMISES.  
 
 a. LESSOR hereby leases to the LESSEE a portion of that certain space, consisting of 
twelve (12) antenna mount locations (the “Tower Space”) on the LESSOR's water tower, 
hereinafter referred to as the “Tower”, located at 2984 James Madison Highway, Bremo Bluff, 
Virginia 23022, as shown on the Tax Map of the County of Fluvanna as Tax Map Number 51-A-
78, and being further described in Deed Book 74, Page 129, as recorded in the Clerk’s Office of 
the Circuit Court of Fluvanna County, Virginia (the entirety of LESSOR’s property on which the 
Tower is located is referred to hereinafter as the “Property”), together with a 25’ x 48’ area of land 
within the Property (the “Land Space”) for the installation of LESSEE's equipment building and 
generator; together with the non-exclusive right (“the Right of Way”) for ingress and egress, seven 
(7) days a week, twenty-four (24) hours a day (subject to Paragraph 37), on foot or motor vehicle, 
including trucks, and for the installation and maintenance of utility wires, poles, cables, conduits, 
and pipes over, under, or along a twenty foot (20’) wide right-of-way extending from the nearest 
public right-of-way, James Madison Highway, to the Land Space; and together with the non-
exclusive use of any further rights of way (the “Further Rights of Way”) over and through the 
Property between the Land Space and the Tower Space for the installation and maintenance of 
utility wires, poles, cables, conduits, and pipes.   The Tower Space, Land Space, Right of Way and 
Further Rights of Way, if any, are substantially described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and 
made a part hereof and are collectively referred to hereinafter as the "Premises". The Premises are 
further described on the survey attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 

 
 In the event any public utility is unable to use the Right of Way or Further Rights of Way, 
the LESSOR may, in its sole discretion, agree to grant an additional right-of-way(s) either to the 
LESSEE or to the public utility. 
 

8

ATTACHMENT B



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 2

 LESSOR hereby grants permission to LESSEE to install, maintain and operate the radio 
communications equipment, antennas and appurtenances described in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit "C" 
attached hereto, which shall be maintained by LESSEE at all times in good, safe, and sightly 
condition. 
 
 LESSEE reserves the right to replace the aforementioned equipment with similar and 
comparable equipment with notice to LESSOR, provided said replacement does not change the 
tower loading of said Tower. Any replacement or addition of equipment by LESSEE which 
changes the tower loading on the Tower will require the prior approval of LESSOR, such approval 
not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. LESSEE shall not be required to obtain 
the prior consent of LESSOR in order to modify or add to the frequencies it utilizes at the Premises. 
However, LESSEE agrees to provide at least two weeks prior written notice, by certified mail, to 
LESSOR of such frequency alteration or addition.  
 
 b. LESSOR and LESSEE agree and acknowledge that LESSOR is currently in lease 
negotiations with U.S. Cellular or a related entity (“U.S. Cellular”) to enable U.S. Cellular to install 
and maintain equipment on the Tower, and that U.S. Cellular will, as part of its collocation on the 
Tower, construct a new platform and corral on the Tower in order to accommodate the equipment 
to be installed by U.S. Cellular, as well as the equipment of LESSEE (as set forth on Exhibit “C” 
attached hereto) (the new platform and corral is hereinafter referred to as the “New Platform”). It is 
the intent of LESSOR that the New Platform will be constructed on the Tower in addition to the 
existing platform and corral.  In the event that U.S. Cellular does not construct the New Platform 
for any reason, LESSEE shall be entitled to either: a) install and operate its equipment on the 
platform currently existing on the Tower as of the date of this Agreement, or b) construct a new 
platform (subject to the terms set forth in Paragraph 1, Subparagraph (c) below, but with no rent 
abatement unless such platform is sized sufficient to accommodate LESSEE’s equipment and at 
least two (2) other sets of comparable communications equipment that each utilize the same 
amount of area as LESSEE’s equipment), the plans and specifications of which to be agreed upon 
by LESSOR and LESSEE.  In the event of either (a) or (b), Exhibit A to this Agreement shall be 
updated to depict any resulting change in the Tower Space and the Further Rights of Way.  If the 
New Platform is not substantially completed, such that the New Platform is able to accommodate 
the full installation and operation of LESSEE’s equipment by November 1, 2011, LESSEE shall be 
entitled, in its sole discretion, to terminate this Agreement. 
 
 c. LESSOR and LESSEE agree that LESSOR may, subject to Paragraphs Fifteen (15) and 
Thirty-Six (36) of this Agreement, lease space on the Tower to third parties, and that such 
collocation by third parties may necessitate replacement, expansion or improvements (together 
referred to hereinafter as “improvements”) to the existing platform and corral on the Tower or 
the New Platform, as applicable, on which LESSEE’s equipment will be located. In the event a 
potential collocation by a third party necessitates improvements to the Tower platform or corral 
on which LESSEE’s equipment is located (other than the construction of the New Platform as 
provided in Paragraph 1, Subparagraph (b) above), LESSOR shall notify LESSEE of the need 

9



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 3

for such improvements, and LESSEE shall have the option, but not the obligation, to perform 
such needed improvements to the Tower and receive rent abatement for the cost of such 
improvements. If LESSEE opts to make such Tower improvements in accordance with 
LESSOR’s specifications regarding the work, including but not limited to materials, cost & 
budget, methodology, insurance, bonding and timeline, and pursuant to approvals provided by 
LESSOR, the improvements and rent abatement shall be set forth in an amendment to this 
Agreement, executed by both LESSOR and LESSEE.  All work performed by LESSEE shall be 
approved by LESSOR and completed in a good and workmanlike manner, and in accordance 
with the approved plans and specifications and the provisions of Paragraph 14 of this Lease.  The 
plans and specifications shall be prepared and all materials, insurance, bonding and work 
provided and performed at LESSEE's sole cost and expense, with LESSOR's sole obligation 
being the rent abatement to be set forth in said amendment. If LESSEE opts not to perform such 
improvements, however, and LESSOR or a third party performs such improvements to the 
Tower necessitating a Temporary Relocation (as defined in Paragraph Fourteen (14) of this 
Agreement) of LESSEE’s equipment, LESSOR and LESSEE agree that any Temporary 
Relocation necessitated by collocation on the Tower by third parties shall be subject to all of the 
terms and requirements of Paragraph Fourteen (14) herein. LESSOR and LESSEE further agree 
that in this event LESSEE shall not be responsible for any capital contribution or other costs 
associated with such improvements to the Tower, including the platform and/or corral installed 
thereon, necessitated by or arising out of the collocation on the Tower by any third party. 
 
 

2. SURVEY.  LESSOR also hereby grants to LESSEE the right to survey the Property 
and Premises, and said survey shall then become Exhibit "B" which shall be attached hereto and 
made a part hereof, and shall control in the event of boundary and access discrepancies between it 
and Exhibit "A".  Cost for such work shall be borne by the LESSEE. 

 
 

3. TERM; RENTAL; ELECTRICAL.   
 

a.  This Agreement shall be effective as of the date of execution by both 
Parties, provided, however, the initial term shall be for five (5) years and shall commence on the 
Commencement Date (as hereinafter defined) at which time rental payments shall commence and 
be due at a total initial annual rental of Twenty-One Thousand Six Hundred and No/100ths 
Dollars ($21,600.00), to be paid in equal monthly installments of One Thousand Eight Hundred 
and No/100ths Dollars ($1,800.00) on the first day of the month, in advance, to LESSOR, or to 
such other person, firm or place as LESSOR may, from time to time, designate in writing at least 
thirty (30) days in advance of any rental payment date by notice given in accordance with 
Paragraph 23 below. The Agreement shall commence on the first day of the month LESSEE 
commences installation of the equipment on the Premises, but in no event later than March 1, 
2012.  In the event the date LESSEE commences installation of the equipment on the Premises is 
prior to March 1, 2012 and such date falls between the 1st and 15th of the month, the Agreement 

10



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 4

shall commence on the 1st of that month and if the date installation commences is prior to March 
1, 2012 and such date falls between the 16th and 31st of the month, then the Agreement shall 
commence on the 1st day of the following month (either of such dates or March 1, 2012 being the 
“Commencement Date”). LESSOR and LESSEE agree that they shall acknowledge in writing 
the Commencement Date. LESSOR and LESSEE acknowledge and agree that initial rental 
payment(s) shall not actually be sent by LESSEE until thirty (30) days after a written 
acknowledgement confirming the Commencement Date.  By way of illustration of the preceding 
sentence, if the Commencement Date is January 1 and the written acknowledgement confirming 
the Commencement Date is dated January 14, LESSEE shall send to the LESSOR the rental 
payments for January 1 and February 1 by February 13. 

Rent shall be payable to LESSOR’s designated Site Manager, CityScape Consultants, 
Inc., at 7050 W Palmetto Park Rd #15-652, Boca Raton, FL 334333.  Upon agreement of the 
Parties, LESSEE may pay rent by electronic funds transfer and in such event, LESSOR agrees to 
provide to LESSEE bank routing information for such purpose upon request of LESSEE.   

b. LESSOR hereby agrees to provide to LESSEE the following  
documentation (the “Rental Documentation”): (i) a complete and fully executed Internal 
Revenue Service Form W-9, or equivalent, in a form acceptable to LESSEE, for any party to 
whom rental payments are to be made pursuant to this Agreement; and (ii) other similar 
documentation requested by LESSEE in LESSEE’s reasonable discretion.  From time to time 
during the Term of this Agreement and within thirty (30) days of a written request from 
LESSEE, LESSOR agrees to provide updated Rental Documentation in a form reasonably 
acceptable to LESSEE.  The Rental Documentation shall be provided to LESSEE in accordance 
with the provisions of and at the address given in Paragraph 23.  Delivery of Rental 
Documentation to LESSEE shall be a prerequisite for the payment of any rent by LESSEE and 
notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, LESSEE shall have no obligation to deliver any 
rental payments until Rental Documentation has been supplied to LESSEE as provided herein. 

Within fifteen (15) days of obtaining an interest in the Property or this Agreement, any 
assignee(s), transferee(s) or other successor(s) in interest of LESSOR shall provide to LESSEE 
Rental Documentation in the manner set forth in the preceding paragraph.  From time to time 
during the Term of this Agreement and within thirty (30) days of a written request from 
LESSEE, any assignee(s) or transferee(s) of LESSOR agrees to provide updated Rental 
Documentation in a form reasonably acceptable to LESSEE.  Delivery of Rental Documentation 
to LESSEE by any assignee(s), transferee(s) or other successor(s) in interest of LESSOR shall be 
a prerequisite for the delivery of any rent by LESSEE to such party and notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary herein, LESSEE shall have no obligation to deliver any rental payments 
to any assignee(s), transferee(s) or other successor(s) in interest of LESSOR until Rental 
Documentation has been supplied to LESSEE as provided herein. 

c.   LESSEE shall be solely responsible for obtaining any electrical service to the Premises 
required by LESSEE.  If permitted by the local utility company servicing the Premises, LESSEE 

11



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 5

shall furnish and install an electrical meter at the Premises for the measurement of electrical 
power used by LESSEE's installation.  In the alternative, if required by the local utility company 
servicing the Premises, LESSEE’S electrical service may be provided through LESSOR’S 
electrical meter, in which event LESSEE shall furnish and install an electrical sub-meter at the 
Premises for the measurement of electrical power used by LESSEE's installation.  In the event 
such sub-meter is installed, the LESSEE shall pay the utility directly for its power consumption, 
if billed by the utility, and if not billed by the utility, then the LESSEE shall reimburse the 
LESSOR thirty (30) days after receipt of an invoice from LESSOR indicating the usage amount 
based upon LESSOR’s reading of the sub-meter. All invoices for power consumption shall be 
sent by LESSOR to LESSEE at Verizon Wireless, P.O. Box 182727, Columbus, Ohio 43218. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall LESSOR have any 
liability or obligation to LESSEE, or be deemed to be in default under this Agreement, as a result 
of any loss or interruption of electrical service.  LESSEE shall be permitted at any time during 
the Term, to install, maintain and/or provide access to and use of, as necessary (during any 
power interruption at the Premises), a propane generator and fuel tank (the “Temporary Power 
Source”) and all related equipment and appurtenances within the Premises, or elsewhere on the 
Property as shown on Exhibits “A” and “B”.  LESSEE shall have the right to install conduits 
connecting the temporary power source and related appurtenances to the Premises as shown on 
Exhibits “A” and “B”. If such a Temporary Power Source is installed on the Premises by 
LESSEE, in the event LESSOR installs public safety communications equipment on the 
Premises and in the event of an emergency which causes a power interruption at the Premises, 
LESSOR shall be entitled, at LESSEE’s sole discretion, to connect to and use LESSEE’s 
Temporary Power Source and related equipment and appurtenances. In no event shall LESSOR 
be entitled to connect to and use LESSEE’s Temporary Power Source without first obtaining the 
consent of LESSEE, and in no event shall LESSOR’s use of the such Temporary Power Source 
impede or impair LESSEE’s ability to use such Temporary Power Source for the operation of 
LESSEE’s equipment at the Premises. 
 

4. EXTENSIONS.  This Agreement shall automatically be extended for four (4) 
additional five (5) year terms unless LESSEE terminates it at the end of the then current term by 
giving LESSOR written notice of the intent to terminate at least six (6) months prior to the end of 
the then current term.  The initial term and all extensions shall be collectively referred to herein as 
the “Term”.   
 

5. RENT INCREASE, EXTENSION RENTALS.  The annual rent for each year of 
each term shall increase three (3%) percent over the annual rent due for the immediately 
preceding year. 
 

6. ADDITIONAL EXTENSIONS.  Following the Initial Term and all renewal terms 
as set forth in Paragraph Four (4) of this Agreement, the term of this Agreement may be 
extended upon renegotiation of the terms hereof by LESSEE and LESSOR prior to the 
expiration of the Term and in accordance with applicable law.  The foregoing shall not be 

12



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 6

construed in any way to require either the LESSOR or the LESSEE to enter into such an 
extension.   

7.   TAXES.    LESSEE shall have the responsibility to pay any personal property, 
real estate taxes, assessments, or charges owed on the Property which LESSOR demonstrates is 
the result of LESSEE’s use of the Premises and/or the installation, maintenance, and operation 
of the LESSEE’s improvements, and any sales tax imposed on the rent (except to the extent that 
LESSEE  is or may become exempt from the payment of sales tax in the jurisdiction in which 
the Property is located), including any increase in real estate taxes at the Property which 
LESSOR demonstrates arises from the LESSEE’s improvements and/or LESSEE’s use of the 
Premises.  LESSOR and LESSEE shall each be responsible for the payment of any taxes, levies, 
assessments and other charges imposed including franchise and similar taxes imposed upon the 
activities or business conducted by LESSOR or LESSEE, respectively, at the Property.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, LESSEE shall not have the obligation to pay any tax, 
assessment, or charge that LESSEE is disputing in good faith in appropriate proceedings prior 
to a final determination that such tax is properly assessed provided that no lien attaches to the 
Property. Nothing in this Paragraph shall be construed as making LESSEE liable for any portion 
of any income taxes applicable to LESSOR in connection with any Property or otherwise. 
Except as set forth in this Paragraph, LESSOR shall have the responsibility to pay any personal 
property, real estate taxes, assessments, or charges applicable to LESSOR owed on the Property 
and shall do so prior to the imposition of any lien on the Property.  Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this paragraph, LESSEE acknowledges that LESSOR is a tax-exempt public entity 
and that the Property and any personal property of LESSOR is tax-exempt in the hands of 
LESSOR.   

 
 LESSEE shall have the right, at its sole option and at its sole cost and expense, to appeal, 
challenge or seek modification of any tax assessment or billing for which LESSEE is wholly or 
partly responsible for payment.  LESSOR shall reasonably cooperate with LESSEE at LESSEE’s 
expense, to the extent that such cooperation is required as the owner of the Property, in filing, 
prosecuting and perfecting any appeal or challenge to taxes as set forth in the preceding 
sentence, including but not limited to, executing any consent, appeal or other similar document.  
In the event that as a result of any appeal or challenge by LESSEE, there is a reduction, credit or 
repayment received by the LESSOR for any taxes previously paid by LESSEE, LESSOR agrees 
to promptly reimburse to LESSEE the amount of said reduction, credit or repayment.  In the 
event that LESSEE does not have the standing rights to pursue a good faith and reasonable 
dispute of any taxes under this paragraph, LESSOR will pursue such dispute at LESSEE’s sole 
cost and expense upon written request of LESSEE. 
 

8. USE; GOVERNMENTAL APPROVALS.  LESSEE shall use the Premises for the 
purpose of constructing, maintaining, repairing and operating a radio communications facility 

13



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 7

and uses incidental thereto. All improvements, equipment, antennas and conduits shall be at 
LESSEE's expense and their installation shall be at the discretion and option of LESSEE.  
LESSEE shall have the right to replace, repair, add or otherwise modify its utilities, equipment, 
antennas and/or conduits or any portion thereof and the frequencies over which the equipment 
operates (subject to the notice requirement in Paragraph 1 for frequency changes), whether the 
equipment, antennas, conduits or frequencies are specified or not on any exhibit attached hereto, 
during the Term, provided such does not change the tower loading of said Tower (in which case 
the LESSOR’s consent will be required, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned 
or delayed), and provided that LESSEE notifies LESSOR of such changes prior to making same. It 
is understood and agreed that LESSEE’s ability to use the Premises is contingent upon its 
obtaining after the execution date of this Agreement all of the certificates, permits and other 
approvals (collectively the "Governmental Approvals") that may be required by any Federal, 
State or Local authorities as well as satisfactory soil boring tests, structural analysis, and title 
examination which will permit LESSEE use of the Premises as set forth above.  LESSOR shall 
cooperate with LESSEE at LESSEE’s expense, to the extent that such cooperation is required as 
the owner of the Property, in its effort to obtain such approvals and shall take no action 
inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement which would adversely affect the status of the 
Property with respect to the proposed use thereof by LESSEE.  Nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall be deemed to require LESSOR to issue any Governmental Approval.  In the 
event that (i) any of such applications for such Governmental Approvals should be finally 
rejected through no fault of LESSEE; (ii) any Governmental Approval issued to LESSEE is 
canceled, expires, lapses, or is otherwise withdrawn or terminated by governmental authority 
through no fault of LESSEE; (iii) LESSEE determines that such Governmental Approvals may 
not be obtained in a timely manner; (iv) LESSEE determines that any soil boring tests, structural 
analysis, or title examination is unsatisfactory; (v) LESSEE determines that the Premises is no 
longer technically or structurally compatible for its use, or (vi) LESSEE, in its sole discretion, 
determines that the use the Premises is obsolete or unnecessary, LESSEE shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement. Notice of LESSEE's exercise of its right to terminate shall be given to 
LESSOR in writing by certified mail, return receipt requested, and shall be effective upon the 
mailing of such notice by LESSEE or upon such later date as designated by LESSEE. All rentals 
paid to said termination date, if applicable, shall be retained by LESSOR.  Upon such 
termination, this Agreement shall be of no further force or effect except to the extent of the 
representations, warranties and indemnities made by each Party to the other hereunder.  
Otherwise, the LESSEE shall have no further obligations for the payment of rent to LESSOR 

14



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 8

9. INDEMNIFICATION.  Subject to Paragraph 10 below, LESSEE shall indemnify 
and hold LESSOR harmless against any claim of liability or loss from personal injury or 
property damage resulting from or arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of 
LESSEE, its employees, contractors or agents, except to the extent such claims or damages may 
be due to or caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of LESSOR or its employees, 
contractors or agents. 

10. INSURANCE.  LESSOR and LESSEE each agree that at its own cost and 
expense, each will continuously maintain commercial general liability insurance with limits not 
less than $1,000,000 for injury to or death of one or more persons in any one occurrence and 
$1,000,000 for damage or destruction to property in any one occurrence or $2,000,000 combined 
single limit coverage for bodily injury and property damage.  LESSOR and LESSEE each agree 
that it will include the other Party as an additional insured.  Nothing contained in this Agreement 
shall be deemed to be a waiver of sovereign immunity by LESSOR.  

11. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  Except for indemnification pursuant to 
paragraphs 9 and 29, neither Party shall be liable to the other, or any of their respective agents, 
representatives, employees for any lost revenue, lost profits, loss of technology, rights or 
services, incidental, punitive, indirect, special or consequential damages, loss of data, or 
interruption or loss of use of service, even if advised of the possibility of such damages, 
whether under theory of contract, tort (including negligence), strict liability or otherwise. 

12. ANNUAL TERMINATION.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained 
herein, provided LESSEE is not in default hereunder beyond applicable notice and cure 
periods, LESSEE shall have the right to terminate this Agreement after the first five year initial 
term upon the annual anniversary of the Commencement Date provided that (6) months prior 
notice is given to LESSOR. 

13. ACCESS TO TOWER.  Subject to the provisions of paragraph 37, LESSOR 
agrees the LESSEE shall have free access to the Premises at all times for the purpose of 
installing and maintaining the said equipment.  LESSOR shall furnish LESSEE with necessary 
means of access for the purpose of ingress and egress to the Premises.  It is agreed, however, 
that only authorized engineers, employees or properly authorized contractors of LESSEE or 
persons under their direct supervision will be permitted to enter said premises. Upon request 
by LESSOR, LESSEE shall provide LESSOR with a list of the names and contact information 
of all such persons authorized to enter the Premises, and shall update such list as changes 
occur. 

14.  TOWER COMPLIANCE.  LESSOR covenants that it will keep the Tower in 
good repair as required by all Laws (as defined in Paragraph 33 below). If the LESSOR fails to 
make such repairs including maintenance the LESSEE may make the repairs and the costs 
thereof shall be payable to the LESSEE by the LESSOR on demand together with interest 
thereon from the date of payment at the greater of (i) ten percent (10%) per annum, or (ii) the 

15



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 9

highest rate permitted by applicable Laws. If the LESSOR does not make payment to the 
LESSEE within ten (10) days after such demand, the LESSEE shall have the right to deduct 
the costs of the repairs from the succeeding monthly rental amounts normally due from the 
LESSEE to the LESSOR.  The LESSOR shall also comply with all rules and regulations 
enforced by the Federal Communications Commission with regard to the lighting, marking and 
painting of towers, if applicable.    

 No materials may be used in the installation of the antennas, transmission lines or 
platform/corral (if applicable) that will cause corrosion or rust or deterioration of the Tower 
structure or its appurtenances.  LESSEE agrees that it shall not perform any welding on any portion 
of the Tower, nor allow any penetration of any part of the Tower, except pursuant to plans and 
specifications approved by LESSOR and prepared by a qualified third party consultant approved by 
the LESSOR and LESSEE. LESSEE shall be responsible for any costs associated with obtaining 
such plans and specifications. LESSEE shall not place or store any equipment or materials on the 
Tower, in the equipment compound or the Property that are not actively in use by LESSEE for the 
permitted use as set forth in this Agreement. LESSEE shall place around the perimeter of the 
ground space portion of the Premises a chain link security fence and one (1) row of landscaping 
around the perimeter of the communications facility which is sufficient to screen the fenced 
compound from outside view.   
 
 All antenna(s) on the Tower must be identified by a marking fastened securely to its bracket 
on the Tower and all transmission lines are to be tagged at the conduit opening where such lines 
enter any user's equipment space. 
 
 LESSOR hereby agrees that, if because of LESSEE’s operations on the Premises, any 
laws or regulations of the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”), FCC or any other relevant 
governmental agency or body require or recommend that LESSEE’s antennas be lit and/or 
marked, LESSEE shall install and maintain any required lighting and markings.  LESSOR will 
permit LESSEE access to all portions of the Premises that LESSEE may need in order to check 
and replace such required or recommended lighting or markings. 
 
 Not later than fifteen (15) days following the execution of this Agreement, LESSOR shall 
supply to LESSEE copies of any received structural analysis reports with respect to the Tower and 
throughout the Term, LESSOR shall supply to LESSEE copies of any future structural analysis 
reports received with respect to the Tower promptly after the receipt of the same. 
 
            Upon request of the LESSOR, LESSEE agrees to relocate its equipment on a temporary basis 
to another location on the Property, hereinafter referred to as the “Temporary Relocation,” for the 
purpose of LESSOR performing replacement, expansion, improvements, maintenance, repair or 
similar work at the Property or on the Tower provided:  
 

a. The Temporary Relocation is similar to LESSEE’s existing location in size and is 

16



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 10

fully compatible for LESSEE’s use, in LESSEE’s reasonable determination; 
 
b. LESSOR credits against LESSEE’s rent obligation all of the costs incurred by 

LESSEE for relocating LESSEE’s equipment to the Temporary Relocation and 
improving the Temporary Relocation so that it is fully compatible for the LESSEE’s 
use, in LESSEE’s reasonable determination, at an amount up to fifty percent (50%) 
of the rent due per month until such costs are completely reimbursed to LESSEE;  

 
c. LESSOR gives LESSEE at least ninety (90) days written notice prior to requiring 

LESSEE to relocate, except in exigent circumstances where public health or safety 
requires Temporary Relocation on shorter notice, in which case LESSOR shall 
provide notice to LESSEE as soon as it can be determined that Temporary 
Relocation will be necessary; 

 
d. LESSEE’s use at the Premises is not interrupted or diminished during the relocation 

and LESSEE is allowed, if necessary, in LESSEE’s reasonable determination, to 
place a temporary installation, including a Cell on Wheels (“COW”) or similar 
installation, on the Property during any such relocation; and 

 
e. Upon the completion of any maintenance, repair or similar work by LESSOR, 

LESSEE is permitted to return to its original location from the temporary location.  
 

15. INTERFERENCE.  LESSEE agrees to install equipment of the type and 
frequency which will not cause harmful interference which is measurable in accordance with 
then existing industry standards to any equipment of LESSOR or other lessees of the Property 
which existed on the Property prior to the date this Agreement is executed by the Parties and 
lessees which are co-locating on the Tower simultaneous with LESSEE.  LESSEE 
acknowledges that U.S. Cellular is co-locating on the Tower simultaneous with LESSEE.  In 
the event any after-installed LESSEE's equipment causes such interference, and after LESSOR 
has notified LESSEE in writing of such interference, LESSEE will take all commercially 
reasonable steps necessary to correct and eliminate the interference, including but not limited 
to, at LESSEE’s option, powering down such equipment and later powering up such equipment 
for intermittent testing.  In no event will LESSOR be entitled to terminate this Agreement or 
relocate the equipment as long as LESSEE is making a good faith effort to remedy the 
interference issue.  LESSOR agrees that LESSOR (except for any public safety equipment of 
LESSOR) and/or any other tenants of the Property who currently have or in the future take 
possession of the Property will be permitted to install only such after-installed equipment that 
is of the type and frequency which will not cause harmful interference which is measurable in 
accordance with then existing industry standards to the then existing equipment of LESSEE.  
The Parties acknowledge that there will not be an adequate remedy at law for noncompliance 
with the provisions of this Paragraph and therefore, either Party shall have the right to 

17



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 11

equitable remedies, such as, without limitation, injunctive relief and specific performance.  
LESSEE further agrees to install FCC type accepted or approved equipment of the type and 
frequency which will not cause harmful interference which is measurable in accordance with 
then existing industry standards to any public safety equipment of LESSOR, either existing or 
later installed on or adjacent to the Property.  In the event of such interference to such public 
safety equipment, LESSEE shall immediately remedy such interference upon notice from 
LESSOR utilizing the FCC’s “Best Practices Guide”. 

16. REMOVAL AT END OF TERM.  LESSEE shall, upon expiration of the Term, or 
within ninety (90) days after any earlier termination of the Agreement, remove its building(s), 
antenna(s), equipment, conduits, fixtures and all personal property and restore the Premises to 
its original condition, reasonable wear and tear and casualty damage excepted.  LESSOR 
agrees and acknowledges that all of the equipment, conduits, fixtures and personal property of 
LESSEE shall remain the personal property of LESSEE and LESSEE shall have the right to 
remove the same at any time during the Term, whether or not said items are considered fixtures 
and attachments to real property under applicable Laws.  If such time for removal causes 
LESSEE to remain on the Premises after termination of this Agreement, LESSEE shall pay 
rent at the then existing monthly rate or on the then existing monthly pro-rata basis if based 
upon a longer payment term, until such time as the removal of the building, antenna structure, 
fixtures and all personal property are completed. 

17. HOLDOVER.  LESSEE has no right to retain possession of the Premises or any 
part thereof beyond the expiration of that removal period set forth in Paragraph 16 herein, 
unless the Parties are negotiating a new lease or lease extension in good faith.  In the event that 
the Parties are not in the process of negotiating a new lease or lease extension in good faith, 
and LESSEE holds over in violation of Paragraph 16 and this Paragraph 17, then LESSEE 
shall be liable to LESSOR for rent at the rate of one hundred fifty percent (150%)  of the rent 
applicable during the month immediately preceding such expiration or earlier termination. 

18. QUIET ENJOYMENT.  LESSOR covenants that LESSEE, on paying the rent and 
performing the covenants herein, shall peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy the 
Premises, subject to the terms of this Agreement. 

19. TITLE.  LESSOR represents and warrants to LESSEE as of the execution date of 
this Agreement, and covenants during the Term that LESSOR is seized of good and sufficient 
title and interest to the Property and has full authority to enter into and execute this Agreement, 
and that there are no liens or judgments affecting LESSOR's title to the same.   

20. INTEGRATION.  It is agreed and understood that this Agreement contains all 
agreements, promises and understandings between LESSOR and LESSEE and that no verbal 
or oral agreements, promises or understandings shall be binding upon either LESSOR or 
LESSEE in any dispute, controversy or proceeding at law, and any addition, variation or 
modification to this Agreement shall be void and ineffective unless made in writing signed by 

18



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 12

the Parties or in a written acknowledgment in the case provided in Paragraph 3.  In the event 
any provision of the Agreement is found to be invalid or unenforceable, such finding shall not 
affect the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement.  The 
failure of either Party to insist upon strict performance of any of the terms or conditions of this 
Agreement or to exercise any of its rights under the Agreement shall not waive such rights and 
such Party shall have the right to enforce such rights at any time and take such action as may 
be lawful and authorized under this Agreement, in law or in equity. 

21. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement and the performance thereof shall be 
governed, interpreted, construed and regulated by the Laws of the State in which the Property 
is located.  Exclusive jurisdiction and venue of any dispute or matters involving litigation 
between the Parties shall be in the courts of Fluvanna County, Virginia. 

22. ASSIGNMENT.  This Agreement may be sold, assigned or transferred by the 
LESSEE without any approval or consent of the LESSOR to the LESSEE's principal, affiliates, 
subsidiaries of its principal or to any entity which acquires all or substantially all of LESSEE's 
assets in the market defined by the Federal Communications Commission in which the 
Property is located by reason of a merger, acquisition or other business reorganization.  As to 
other parties, this Agreement may not be sold, assigned or transferred without the written consent 
of the LESSOR, which such consent will not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned.  
No change of stock ownership, partnership interest or control of LESSEE or transfer upon 
partnership or corporate dissolution of LESSEE shall constitute an assignment hereunder.  No 
such sale, assignment or transfer of this Agreement shall release the LESSEE from the 
obligations of this Agreement.  LESSEE shall not sublet or otherwise allow any third party to 
occupy any of the Premises without the express written consent of LESSOR, at its sole 
discretion. 

23. NOTICES.  All notices hereunder must be in writing and shall be deemed validly 
given if sent by certified mail, return receipt requested or by commercial courier, provided the 
courier's regular business is delivery service and provided further that it guarantees delivery to 
the addressee by the end of the next business day following the courier's receipt from the 
sender, addressed as follows (or any other address that the Party to be notified may have 
designated to the sender by like notice): 

LESSOR: Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County, Virginia 
  ATTENTION: County Administrator 
  P.O. Box 540 

132 Main Street 
  Palmyra, Virginia 22963 
 
 
LESSEE: Cellco Partnership 

d/b/a Verizon Wireless 

19



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 13

180 Washington Valley Road  
Bedminster, New Jersey 07921  
Attention: Network Real Estate 

Notice shall be effective three (3) days following deposit postage prepaid in the U.S. 
Mail, if sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, or upon actual receipt or refusal as shown 
on the courier’s receipt obtained pursuant to the foregoing. 

24. SUCCESSORS.  This Agreement shall extend to and bind the heirs, personal 
representatives, successors and assigns of the Parties hereto. 

25. SUBORDINATION AND NON-DISTURBANCE.  At LESSOR's option, this 
Agreement shall be subordinate to any future master lease, ground lease, mortgage, deed of 
trust or other security interest (a “Mortgage”) by LESSOR which from time to time may 
encumber all or part of the Property, Tower or right-of-way; provided, however, as a condition 
precedent to LESSEE being required to subordinate its interest in this Agreement to any future 
Mortgage covering the Tower or Property, LESSOR shall obtain for LESSEE's benefit a 
non-disturbance and attornment agreement for LESSEE's benefit in the form reasonably 
satisfactory to LESSEE, and containing the terms described below (the “Non-Disturbance 
Agreement”), and shall recognize LESSEE's right to remain in occupancy of and have access 
to the Premises as long as LESSEE is not in default of this Agreement beyond applicable 
notice and cure periods.  The Non-Disturbance Agreement shall include the encumbering 
party's (“Lender's”) agreement that, if Lender or its successor-in-interest or any purchaser of 
Lender’s or its successor’s interest (a “Purchaser”) acquires an ownership interest in the Tower 
or Property, Lender or such successor-in-interest or Purchaser will (1) honor all of the terms of 
the Agreement, (2) fulfill LESSOR's obligations under the Agreement, and (3) promptly cure 
all of the then-existing LESSOR defaults under the Agreement.  Such Non-Disturbance 
Agreement must be binding on all of Lender's participants in the subject loan (if any) and on 
all successors and assigns of Lender and/or its participants and on all Purchasers.  In return for 
such Non-Disturbance Agreement, LESSEE will execute an agreement for Lender's benefit in 
which LESSEE (1) confirms that the Agreement is subordinate to the Mortgage or other real 
property interest in favor of Lender, (2) agrees to attorn to Lender if Lender becomes the 
owner of the Tower or Property and (3) agrees accept a cure by Lender of any of LESSOR's 
defaults, provided such cure is completed within the deadline applicable to LESSOR. In the 
event LESSOR defaults in the payment and/or other performance of any mortgage or other real 
property interest encumbering the Property, LESSEE, may, at its sole option and without 
obligation, cure or correct LESSOR's default and upon doing so, LESSEE shall be subrogated 
to any and all rights, titles, liens and equities of the holders of such mortgage or other real 
property interest and LESSEE shall be entitled to deduct and setoff against all rents that may 
otherwise become due under this Agreement the sums paid by LESSEE to cure or correct such 
defaults. 

20



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 14

26. RECORDING.  LESSOR agrees to execute a Memorandum of this Agreement, a 
copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit D, which LESSEE shall record, at LESSEE’S sole 
expense, with the appropriate recording officer.     

27. DEFAULT.   

a. In the event there is a breach by LESSEE with respect to any of the 
provisions of this Agreement or its obligations under it, including the payment of rent, LESSOR 
shall give LESSEE written notice of such breach.  After receipt of such written notice, LESSEE 
shall have fifteen (15) days in which to cure any monetary breach and thirty (30) days in which 
to cure any non-monetary breach, provided LESSEE shall have such extended period as may be 
required beyond the thirty (30) days if the nature of the cure is such that it reasonably requires 
more than thirty (30) days and LESSEE commences the cure within the thirty (30) day period 
and thereafter continuously and diligently pursues the cure to completion.  LESSOR may not 
maintain any action or effect any remedies for default against LESSEE unless and until LESSEE 
has failed to cure the breach within the time periods provided in this Paragraph. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing to the contrary, it shall be a default under this Agreement if LESSEE fails, within 
five (5) days after receipt of written notice of such breach, to perform an obligation required to 
be performed by LESSEE if the failure to perform such an obligation interferes with the ability 
of LESSOR to conduct its business on the Property which is directly related to the operation of 
the water tower or LESSOR’s public safety and emergency communications equipment installed 
thereon, violates any applicable environmental law, or would increase the cost any fire and 
extended coverage insurance of Lessor; provided, however, that if the nature of LESSEE’s 
obligation is such that more than five (5) days after such notice is reasonably required for its 
performance, then it shall not be a default under this Agreement if performance is commenced 
within such five (5) day period and thereafter diligently pursued to completion. 

b. In the event there is a breach by LESSOR with respect to any of the 
provisions of this Agreement or its obligations under it, LESSEE shall give LESSOR written 
notice of such breach.  After receipt of such written notice, LESSOR shall have thirty (30) days 
in which to cure any such breach, provided LESSOR shall have such extended period as may be 
required beyond the thirty (30) days if the nature of the cure is such that it reasonably requires 
more than thirty (30) days and LESSOR commences the cure within the thirty (30) day period 
and thereafter continuously and diligently pursues the cure to completion. LESSEE may not 
maintain any action or effect any remedies for default against LESSOR unless and until 
LESSOR has failed to cure the breach within the time periods provided in this Paragraph.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing to the contrary, it shall be a default under this Agreement if 
LESSOR fails, within five (5) days after receipt of written notice of such breach, to perform an 
obligation required to be performed by LESSOR if the failure to perform such an obligation 
interferes with LESSEE’s ability to conduct its business on the Property; provided, however, that 
if the nature of LESSOR’s obligation is such that more than five (5) days after such notice is 
reasonably required for its performance, then it shall not be a default under this Agreement if 

21



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 15

performance is commenced within such five (5) day period and thereafter diligently pursued to 
completion. 

28. REMEDIES.  Upon a default, the non-defaulting Party may at its option (but 
without obligation to do so), perform the defaulting Party’s duty or obligation on the defaulting 
Party’s behalf, including but not limited to the obtaining of reasonably required insurance 
policies.  The costs and expenses of any such performance by the non-defaulting Party shall be 
due and payable by the defaulting Party upon invoice therefor.  In the event of a default by either 
Party with respect to a material provision of this Agreement, without limiting the non-defaulting 
Party in the exercise of any right or remedy which the non-defaulting Party may have by reason 
of such default, the non-defaulting Party may terminate the Agreement and/or pursue any 
remedy now or hereafter available to the non-defaulting Party under the Laws or judicial 
decisions of the state in which the Premises are located; provided, however, each Party shall use 
reasonable efforts to mitigate its damages in connection with a default by the other Party.  If 
LESSEE so performs any of LESSOR’s obligations hereunder, the full amount of the reasonable 
and actual cost and expense incurred by LESSEE shall immediately be owing by LESSOR to 
LESSEE.  If LESSOR does not pay LESSEE the full undisputed amount within thirty (30) days 
of its receipt of an invoice setting forth the amount due from LESSOR, LESSEE may offset the 
full undisputed amount, including all accrued interest (if applicable), due against all fees due and 
owing to LESSOR until the full undisputed amount, including all accrued interest, is fully 
reimbursed to LESSEE. 

29. ENVIRONMENTAL. Except as permitted by law, neither Party will allow any 
hazardous substances, including without limitation any and all pollutants, wastes, flammables, 
explosives, radioactive materials, hazardous materials, hazardous wastes, hazardous or toxic 
substances and all other materials defined by or regulated under any Environmental Law, 
including those defined by the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and 
Liability Act of 1980 ("CERCLA"), 42 U.S.C. § 9604, pollutants or contaminants as defined in 
CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9604 (A) (2), or hazardous waste as defined in the Resources 
Conservation and Recovery Act ("RCRA"), 42 U.S.C. § 6903, or other similar applicable 
Federal or State Laws or regulations, to be generated, released, stored, or deposited over, 
beneath, or on the Premises or Property or on any structures located on the Premises from any 
source whatsoever. Each party, to the extent allowed by law, covenants to indemnify and hold 
the other party harmless from all claims, demands, damages, fines, costs, cleanup, attorney's 
fees, and court costs (collectively, “Claims”) arising from the indemnitor's material 
misrepresentations or from existing or future discharge or from the presence or release of any 
hazardous substances or hazardous wastes on the Premises (either intentionally or accidentally) 
by the indemnitor or its predecessors in interest, agents, licensees or assigns, unless caused by 
the indemnitee or persons acting under the indemnitee.    

30. CASUALTY.  In the event of damage by fire or other casualty to the Tower or 
Premises that cannot reasonably be expected to be repaired within forty-five (45) days 

22



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 16

following same or, if the Property is damaged by fire or other casualty so that such damage 
may reasonably be expected to disrupt LESSEE's operations at the Premises for more than 
forty-five (45) days, then LESSEE may, at any time following such fire or other casualty, 
provided LESSOR has not completed the restoration required to permit LESSEE to resume its 
operation at the Premises, terminate this Agreement upon fifteen (15) days prior written notice 
to LESSOR.  Any such notice of termination shall cause this Agreement to expire with the 
same force and effect as though the date set forth in such notice were the date originally set as 
the expiration date of this Agreement and the Parties shall make an appropriate adjustment, as 
of such termination date, with respect to payments due to the other under this Agreement.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the rent shall abate during the period of repair following such 
fire or other casualty in proportion to the degree to which LESSEE’s use of the Premises is 
impaired.  In addition, in the event of damage to the Tower  by fire or other casualty such that 
the Tower cannot reasonably be expected to be repaired within 180 days or if LESSOR 
determines that the Tower is no longer needed as a water supply facility, LESSOR may, at any 
time following such fire or other casualty, terminate this Agreement upon ninety (90) days 
prior written notice to LESSEE.  Any such notice of termination shall cause this Agreement to 
expire with the same force and effect as though the date set forth in such notice were the date 
originally set as the expiration date of this Agreement and the Parties shall make an appropriate 
adjustment, as of such termination date, with respect to payments due to the other under this 
Agreement.   

31. CONDEMNATION.  In the event of any condemnation of all or any portion of the 
Premises, this Agreement shall terminate as to the part so taken as of the date the condemning 
authority takes title or possession, whichever occurs first.  If as a result of a partial 
condemnation of the Premises or Tower, LESSEE, in LESSEE’s sole discretion, is unable to 
use the Premises for the purposes intended hereunder, or if such condemnation may reasonably 
be expected to disrupt LESSEE's operations at the Premises for more than forty-five (45) days, 
LESSEE may, at LESSEE’s option, to be exercised in writing within fifteen (15) days after 
LESSOR shall have given LESSEE written notice of such taking (or in the absence of such 
notice, within fifteen (15) days after the condemning authority shall have taken possession) 
terminate this Agreement as of the date the condemning authority takes such possession.  
LESSEE may on its own behalf make a claim in any condemnation proceeding involving the 
Premises for losses related to the equipment, conduits, fixtures, its relocation costs and its 
damages and losses (but not for the loss of its leasehold interest).  Any such notice of 
termination shall cause this Agreement to expire with the same force and effect as though the 
date set forth in such notice were the date originally set as the expiration date of this 
Agreement and the Parties shall make an appropriate adjustment as of such termination date 
with respect to payments due to the other under this Agreement.  If LESSEE does not 
terminate this Agreement in accordance with the foregoing, this Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect as to the portion of the Premises remaining, except that the rent shall be 
reduced in the same proportion as the rentable area of the Premises taken bears to the total 
rentable area of the Premises.  In the event that this Agreement is not terminated by reason of 

23



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 18

non-exclusive use.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the use of the Tower by LESSOR and any 
other tenants, whether commercial or non-commercial, may include but shall not be limited to, 
attachment of antennas to the Tower at any unleased and unoccupied attachment locations 
which are not inconsistent with the specifications set forth in Exhibits A and B hereto, 
installation of any and all lines, anchors, connections, devices, equipment and line bridge 
facilities for operation of the antennas and connection to ground equipment in locations which 
do not materially interfere with LESSEE’s equipment and which are not inconsistent with the 
specifications set forth in Exhibits A and B hereto, and construction of one or more equipment 
shelters which do not encroach upon LESSEE’s Land Space for use in connection with such 
antennas and equipment.   Lessee's lines, conduits, connections, devices, and equipment 
between the Tower Space and the Land Space shall be installed in a reasonable manner  so as 
not to unreasonably restrict future tenants from installing equipment on the Tower.  

37. WATER SUPPLY FACILITY; PROTECTION OF PUBLIC.  LESSEE 
acknowledges that LESSOR is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia and 
that the Property and Tower are first and foremost a water supply facility serving citizens 
within the County of Fluvanna and the Fork Union Sanitary District, as such district may exist 
from time to time.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, at no time shall 
LESSEE’s activities at the Premises interfere with such operation of the Property and Tower or 
violate any applicable Laws relating to such operation.  LESSOR reserves the right to 
construct, repair, maintain, modify, improve, replace and operate the water supply facility as 
LESSOR sees fit, in LESSOR’s sole discretion, provided however, that LESSOR will 
endeavor to minimize the impact, interference or interruption to LESSEE of any such activity.  
LESSEE specifically acknowledges that the Property and Tower may be included in 
LESSOR’s public safety program and that LESSOR may be required by Laws to institute 
increased security measures for the Property and/or Tower in order to protect against actual or 
potential threats to public safety. Such measures may include but shall not be limited to 
requiring that the Property, the Tower and any easements be secured in a manner permitting 
the access to be opened only by LESSOR’s designee and/or requiring that any person 
accessing the Premises by or on behalf of LESSEE be accompanied by LESSOR’s designee.  
LESSOR shall promptly notify LESSEE of any change in security measures that would affect 
LESSEE’s free access to the Premises, shall provide LESSEE with instructions as to how 
access to the Premises, and shall to the extent reasonably possible and upon reasonable notice, 
provide LESSEE with access to the Premises seven (7) days a week, twenty-four (24) hours a 
day.  

38. ATTORNEY’S FEES.  In the event of any litigation arising under this Agreement, 
the substantially-prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs and expenses, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred from time to time and at all levels of proceedings, 
including but not limited to appeals, collections and bankruptcy. 

25



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 17

such condemnation, LESSOR shall promptly repair any damage to the Premises caused by 
such condemning authority. 

32. SUBMISSION OF AGREEMENT/PARTIAL INVALIDITY/AUTHORITY.  The 
submission of this Agreement for examination does not constitute an offer to lease the 
Premises and this Agreement becomes effective only upon the full execution of this Agreement 
by the Parties. If any provision herein is invalid or unenforceable, it shall be considered deleted 
from this Agreement and shall not invalidate the remaining provisions of this Agreement. Each 
of the Parties hereto warrants to the other that the person or persons executing this Agreement 
on behalf of such Party has the full right, power and authority to enter into and execute this 
Agreement on such Party's behalf and that no consent from any other person or entity is 
necessary as a condition precedent to the legal effect of this Agreement. 

33. APPLICABLE LAWS.  During the Term, LESSOR shall maintain the Property 
and all structural elements of the Tower in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances, directives, covenants, easements, zoning and land use regulations, and 
restrictions of record, permits, building codes, and the requirements of any applicable fire 
insurance underwriter or rating bureau, now in effect or which may hereafter come into effect 
(including, without limitation, the Americans with Disabilities Act and laws regulating 
hazardous substances) (collectively “Laws”).  Provided, however, that LESSEE shall at all 
times, at LESSEE’s sole cost and expense, comply with (a) all Laws applicable to LESSEE’s 
specific use of the Premises; and (b) all building codes requiring modifications to the Tower or 
Premises due to the improvements being made by LESSEE in the Premises. 

34. SURVIVAL.  The provisions of the Agreement relating to indemnification from 
one Party to the other Party shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
Additionally, any provisions of this Agreement which require performance subsequent to the 
termination or expiration of this Agreement shall also survive such termination or expiration. 

35. CAPTIONS.  The captions contained in this Agreement are inserted for 
convenience only and are not intended to be part of the Agreement. They shall not affect or be 
utilized in the construction or interpretation of the Agreement. 

36. COMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES OF LESSOR AND OTHER TENANTS.  
Subject to Paragraph Fifteen (15) of this Agreement (Interference), Lessor may from time to 
time operate governmental communications facilities, including but not limited to public safety 
equipment, on the Tower.  In addition, Lessor may permit operations on the Tower from time 
to time by one or more other tenants.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, LESSOR and LESSEE 
agree and acknowledge that LESSEE’s Land Space and Tower Space, as depicted on Exhibit A 
attached hereto, shall be exclusive to LESSEE, except that LESSOR, provided it does not 
materially disturb or interfere with LESSEE’s equipment, shall not be excluded from access to 
the portion of the Tower leg within the Land Space, and that LESSEE’s Right of Way and 
Further Rights of Way, also as depicted on Exhibit A, attached hereto, shall be for LESSEE’s 

24



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 19

39. DUPLICATE ORIGINALS.  This Agreement is executed in duplicate originals, 
either of which shall be equally authentic.   

 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING 

26



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 20

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have set their hands and affixed their 
respective seals the day and year first above written. 

     LESSOR: 
     BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA 
     COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 
     By: ___________________________ 
 
     Print Name: _____________________ 
 
     Title: ___________________________ 
 
     Date: ___________________________ 

 
 
      LESSEE: 

CELLCO PARTNERSHIP D/B/A VERIZON 
WIRELESS 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 David R. Heverling 
 Area Vice President Network 
 
Date: ____________________________ 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
FLUVANNA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
 

27



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 21

EXHIBIT A 
 

SITE PLAN AND TOWER ELEVATION 
 

See Attached. 
 
 

28



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 22

EXHIBIT B 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND SURVEY 
Page 1 of 2 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
Lessee 20’ Access/Utility Right of Way (Described By Centerline) 
Bremo Bluff 
Bremo Bluff, Virginia 
 
Beginning at a iron rod found in the eastern right of way of James Madison Highway (U.S. 
Highway 15); said rod being a corner to Tax Map 59(A)138; thence N10°50'50"E, 539.95’ feet to 
the TRUE Point Of Beginning of a 20’ Access/Utility Easement; thence N88°13'47"E, 59.28 feet 
to a point passing a 10’ Utility Easement at 9.99’; thence S76°05'08"E, 35.96 feet to a point on 
the line of a 25’ x 48’ Lease Parcel as shown on a survey dated 19 July 2011 prepared by 
Thompson & Litton, Inc., Document No.  
11033-11, Sheet Number Z-1. 
 
Lessee 10’ Utility Easement (Described By Centerline) 
Bremo Bluff 
Bremo Bluff, Virginia 
 
Beginning at a combination power and telephone pole number B320F6; thence S10°51'19"W, 
54.78’ feet to a point in the northern edge of a Proposed Lessee 20’ Access/Utility Easement as 
shown on a survey dated 19 July 2011 prepared by Thompson & Litton, Inc., Document No. 
11033-11, Sheet Number Z-1. 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
New 25’ x 48’ Land Space  
Bremo Bluff 
Bremo Bluff, Virginia 
 
Beginning at the end of the proposed 20’ Access/Utility Easement; thence N11°58'22"E, 11.90 
feet to an iron rod set at the TRUE Point Of Beginning of the 25’ x 48’ Lease Parcel; thence 
S78°01'38"E, 48.00 feet to an iron rod set; thence S11°58'22"W, 25.00 feet to an iron rod set; 
thence N78°01'38"W, 48.00 feet to an iron rod set; thence N11°58'22"E, 25.00 feet to the TRUE 
Point Of Beginning and containing 0.028 Acres (1,200 Square Feet) as shown on a survey 
dated 19 July 2011 prepared by Thompson & Litton, Inc., Document No. 11033-11, Sheet 
Number Z-1. 
 

29



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 23

EXHIBIT C 
 

LESSEE EQUIPMENT 
 

Antennas: Twelve (12) panel antennas 
- BXA-70063/8CF (One (1) per sector) 

o 94.6” x 11.2” 5.1”; 24 lbs. 
- BXA-185085/12CF (One (1) per sector) 

o 72.4” x 6.1” x 4.1”; 13 lbs. 
- LPA-80080/8CF (Two (2) per sector) 

o 94.5” x 5.5” x 13.2”; 24 lbs 
 
Lines:  Eighteen (18) lines of 1 5/8” coax 
 
Frequencies: 
 
TX: 880-890; 891.5-894; 1930-1945; 1970-1975; 776-786 
 
RX: 835-845; 846.5-849; 1850-1865; 1890-1895; 746-757 
 
 

30



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 24

EXHIBIT D 
 

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE 
 
Upon Recording, Return to: 
 
Pennington Law Firm, L.L.C. 
Post Office Box 2844 
Columbia, South Carolina 29202 
 
STATE OF VIRGINIA  ) 
     )      
COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  )       
 

MEMORANDUM OF WATER TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
     This Memorandum of WATER TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT is made this _____ day of 
_____________, 201__, between the BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA COUNTY, 
VIRGINIA, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, with a mailing address of 132 Main 
Street, Palmyra, Virginia 22963, hereinafter collectively referred to as “LESSOR”, and CELLCO 
PARTNERSHIP d/b/a Verizon Wireless, with its principal office located at One Verizon Way, Mail Stop 
4AW100, Basking Ridge, New Jersey 07920, hereinafter referred to as “LESSEE”. LESSOR and LESSEE 
are at times collectively referred to hereinafter as the “Parties” or individually as the “Party”. 
 
1.  LESSOR and LESSEE entered into a Water Tower Lease Agreement (the “Agreement”) for an 

initial term of five (5) years, commencing on the Commencement Date. The Agreement shall 
automatically be extended for four (4) additional five (5) year terms unless the LESSEE 
terminates it at the end of the then current term by giving the LESSOR written notice of the intent 
to terminate at least six (6) months prior to the end of the then current term.   

 
2. PREMISES. LESSOR hereby leases to the LESSEE a portion of that certain space, consisting of 

twelve (12) antenna mount locations (“the Tower Space”) on the LESSOR's water tower, hereinafter 
referred to as the “Tower”, located at 2984 James Madison Highway, Bremo Bluff, Virginia 23022, 
as shown on the Tax Map of the County of Fluvanna as Tax Map Number 51-A-78, and being 
further described in Deed Book 74, Page 129, as recorded in the Clerk’s Office of the Circuit Court 
of Fluvanna County, Virginia (the entirety of LESSOR’s property on which the Tower is located is 
referred to hereinafter as the “Property”), together with a 25’ x 48’ area of land within the Property 
(the “Land Space”) for the installation of LESSEE's equipment building and generator; together 
with the non-exclusive right (“the Right of Way”) for ingress and egress, seven (7) days a week, 
twenty-four (24) hours a day (subject to Paragraph 37 of the Agreement), on foot or motor vehicle, 
including trucks, and for the installation and maintenance of utility wires, poles, cables, conduits, 
and pipes over, under, or along a twenty foot (20’) wide right-of-way extending from the nearest 
public right-of-way, James Madison Highway, to the Land Space; and together with the non-
exclusive use of any further rights of way (the “Further Rights of Way”) over and through the 
Property between the Land Space and the Tower Space for the installation and maintenance of 
utility wires, poles, cables, conduits, and pipes. The Tower Space, Land Space, Right of Way and 

31



LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 

BJM/02.10.2011 
 

 25

Further Rights of Way, if any, are substantially described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a 
part hereof and are collectively referred to hereinafter as the "Premises". The Premises are further 
depicted on the survey attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. In the event any public utility is unable to use 
the Right of Way or Further Rights of Way, the LESSOR may, in its sole discretion, agree to grant 
an additional right-of-way(s) either to the LESSEE or to the public utility. LESSOR and LESSEE 
acknowledge and agree that neither Exhibit “A” nor Exhibit “B” is a boundary survey of 
the Property and that Exhibits “A” and “B” are intended solely as exhibits for purposes of 
describing the LESSEE’s Premises. 

 
  
3. The Commencement Date of the Agreement, of which this is a Memorandum, shall be on the first 

day of the month LESSEE commences installation of the equipment on the Premises, but in no 
event later than March 1, 2012.  In the event the date LESSEE commences installation of the 
equipment on the Premises is prior to March 1, 2012 and such date falls between the 1st and 15th 
of the month, the Agreement shall commence on the 1st of that month and if the installation 
commences prior to March 1, 2012 and such date falls between the 16th and 31st of the month, 
then the Agreement shall commence on the 1st day of the following month (either of such dates or 
March 1, 2012 being the “Commencement Date”).   

 
4. The terms, covenants and provisions of the Agreement are hereby confirmed and shall extend to 

and be binding upon the respective heirs, successors, personal representatives and assigns of 
LESSOR and LESSEE. 

 
5. This Memorandum is not a complete summary of the Agreement.  Provisions in this 

Memorandum shall not be used in interpreting the Agreement.  In the event of a conflict between 
this Memorandum and the Agreement, the Agreement shall control. 

 
 [SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 

32



LESSOR SITE NAME: WEBER CITY 
LESSEE SITE NAME: BREMO BLUFF 
BJM/06.17.2010 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, hereunto and to a duplicate hereof, LESSOR and LESSEE have 

caused this Memorandum to be duly executed. 
       
      LESSOR: 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA 
COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Print Name: _________________ 
 
Title: ________________________ 
 
Date: ________________________  

 
 
 
STATE OF VIRGINIA  )  
     ) ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  
COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  ) 
 
 I, ___________________, a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby certify that 
______________________ personally came before me this day and acknowledged that s/he is the 
______________________ of the BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA COUNTY, 
VIRGINIA, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and s/he, being authorized to 
do so, executed the foregoing MEMORANDUM OF WATER TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT 
as his/her own act and deed on behalf of the BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA 
COUNTY, VIRGINIA.  
 
 WITNESS my hand and official Notarial Seal, this        day of                    , 201__. 
 
     ____________________________________                        
       Notary Public 
My Commission Expires on the ____ day of ________, 2___. 
Registration number: 
 
SEAL: 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Fluvanna County Attorney 
 

33



 

      LESSEE: 
 
      CELLCO PARTNERSHIP 
      D/B/A VERIZON WIRELESS  
 
      BY: _________________________ 
       David R. Heverling 
       Area Vice President Network  
         
      DATE:  ________________________ 
 
 
 
STATE OF MASSACHUSETTS  ) 
      )  ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
COUNTY OF WORCESTER  ) 
 

I, ___________________, a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby certify that 
David R. Heverling personally came before me this day and acknowledged that he is the Area Vice 
President Network of CELLCO PARTNERSHIP d/b/a Verizon Wireless, and that he, as Area 
Vice President Network, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing MEMORANDUM OF 
WATER TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT on behalf of CELLCO PARTNERSHIP d/b/a 
Verizon Wireless. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and official Notarial Seal, this        day of                    , 201__. 
 
      ___________________________________            
       Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
______________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 2734



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

WRITTEN METES AND BOUNDS OF THE PREMISES 
AND INGRESS/EGRESS AND UTILITIES RIGHT OF WAY 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
Lessee 20’ Access/Utility Right of Way (Described By Centerline) 
Bremo Bluff 
Bremo Bluff, Virginia 
 
Beginning at a iron rod found in the eastern right of way of James Madison Highway (U.S. 
Highway 15); said rod being a corner to Tax Map 59(A)138; thence N10°50'50"E, 539.95’ feet to 
the TRUE Point Of Beginning of a 20’ Access/Utility Easement; thence N88°13'47"E, 59.28 feet 
to a point passing a 10’ Utility Easement at 9.99’; thence S76°05'08"E, 35.96 feet to a point on 
the line of a 25’ x 48’ Lease Parcel as shown on a survey dated 19 July 2011 prepared by 
Thompson & Litton, Inc., Document No.  
11033-11, Sheet Number Z-1. 
 
Lessee 10’ Utility Easement (Described By Centerline) 
Bremo Bluff 
Bremo Bluff, Virginia 
 
Beginning at a combination power and telephone pole number B320F6; thence S10°51'19"W, 
54.78’ feet to a point in the northern edge of a Proposed Lessee 20’ Access/Utility Easement as 
shown on a survey dated 19 July 2011 prepared by Thompson & Litton, Inc., Document No. 
11033-11, Sheet Number Z-1. 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
New 25’ x 48’ Land Space  
Bremo Bluff 
Bremo Bluff, Virginia 
 
Beginning at the end of the proposed 20’ Access/Utility Easement; thence N11°58'22"E, 11.90 
feet to an iron rod set at the TRUE Point Of Beginning of the 25’ x 48’ Lease Parcel; thence 
S78°01'38"E, 48.00 feet to an iron rod set; thence S11°58'22"W, 25.00 feet to an iron rod set; 
thence N78°01'38"W, 48.00 feet to an iron rod set; thence N11°58'22"E, 25.00 feet to the TRUE 
Point Of Beginning and containing 0.028 Acres (1,200 Square Feet) as shown on a survey 
dated 19 July 2011 prepared by Thompson & Litton, Inc., Document No. 11033-11, Sheet 
Number Z-1. 

 
 
 2835



 

 
 
 29

EXHIBIT B 
 

BOUNDARY SURVEY OF THE PREMISES 
AND INGRESS/EGRESS AND UTILITIES RIGHT OF WAY 

 
 
 

36



37

ATTACHMENT C



38



39



40

ATTACHMENT D

bmarks
Text Box
LESSEE 25' X 48'LAND SPACE

bmarks
Text Box
LESSEE 20' WIDE INGRESS, EGRESS ANDUTILITIES RIGHT OF WAY

bmarks
Line



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: Board of Supervisors  

FROM: Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst  

SUBJECT: Contingency Balance 

DATE: July 14, 2011 

 

The balances for the BOS and grant contingency lines for FY12 are as follows: 

 

Board of Supervisors contingency:   $100,000.00 

 

Grant contingency:      $ 0 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  

“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

P.O. Box 540, Palmyra, VA 22963  · (434) 591-1910  ·  FAX (434) 591-1911  · www.co.fluvanna.va.us 


	Minutes July 6, 2011
	Minutes July 20, 2011
	Budget Supplement for Park and Recreation Insurance Claim
	Supplemental Appropriation for additional Victim/Witness funding
	Supplemental Appropriation for Families Learning Together grant and Teacher Evaluation Pilot
	Budget Supplement for Social Services Insurance Claim
	Budget Calendar
	Resolution in Support of Restoration of State Funding for Aid to Localities
	Budget Transfer to County Attorney
	Accounts Payable
	Provision of Pound Services
	Authorization to Self-Insure Medical Plan
	FSPCA Agreement
	Authorization to Write-Off Uncollectible FUSD Water Account Balances
	Line of Duty Funding
	DHCD Planning Grant Administration
	Budget Carryover Requests
	EDA Appointments - 2 positions
	Youth Advisory Council BOS Representative Reappointment
	Proposed Lease of Real Property to US Cellular Wireless
	Proposed Lease of Real Property to Verizon Wireless
	BOS Contingency



